ST. JAMES’S PLACE PLC
REPORT & ACCOUNTS 2007

About Us
St. James’s Place is a leading company in
the expanding wealth management market.
We seek to provide trusted face-to-face advice to all our
clients, which is based on their individual needs and circumstances and takes into account their financial objectives. We provide a highly professional service delivering
reliable and personal advice designed to suit individual
requirements.
The UK economy has enjoyed a strong period of growth
in recent times, and as a result it is forecast that the UK
will have the highest concentration of high net worth
households of any G7 country. The majority of these
individuals have an increasing need for advice as financial
markets become ever more complex and governments
and employers continue to transfer the burden of provision to the individual.
We believe we are uniquely positioned to succeed in this
market because of two fundamental principles that have
underpinned our business from day 1: the strength of the
relationship between our advisers and their clients; and
our approach to investment management.
Partner/Client Relationships
Our advisers, members of the St. James’s Place
Partnership, build relationships with clients that last.
Partners work with clients to help them realise their long
term aims, supporting them over the years as their circumstances and priorities change. Advice is face-to-face
and focused on the personal needs of each individual
client as Partners recognise that no one client’s objectives
or circumstances are the same as another. The relationships between Partners and clients endure because they
are founded on mutual respect and trust.

Company Registration Number 3183415

Our Approach to Investment Management
We do not employ in-house fund managers because we
believe that no single investment house can have
a monopoly of investment expertise. We therefore carefully select a number of external managers to manage
our range of funds. The cornerstone of this approach is
the Investment Committee who ‘manage the fund managers’ on behalf of our clients. We retain an independent investment consulting firm, Stamford Associates,
who play a crucial role in selection and management.
This approach gives us both the flexibility to respond to
market conditions as they change and also the certainty
that we are employing the best fund managers for our
clients.
Our Corporate Objective
Our goal is to be acknowledged as the UK’s most successful wealth management adviser. As such we were
delighted that at the end of 2007 the readers of the
Daily Telegraph voted St. James’s Place ‘Wealth
Manager of the Year’.
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Financial Highlights
Year Ended
31 December
2007
European Embedded Value Basis
Life business
Unit trust business
Other

£’Million
189.9
59.0
(4.2)

Year Ended
31 December
2006
£’Million
139.0
39.9
(2.9)

Operating profit before tax

244.7

176.0

Total profit before tax

230.4

244.0

1,203.3

1,032.7

Shareholders’ funds
International Financial Reporting Standards
Life business – shareholder profit
Unit trust business
Profit on sale of LAHC
Other

£’Million
84.4
15.9
(4.2)

£’Million
85.5
18.0
7.0
(2.9)

96.1

107.6

Profit before tax **

103.2

179.9

Shareholders’ funds

442.5

382.2

Profit before shareholder tax *

* figures exclude policyholders’ tax gross up
** figures include policyholders’ tax gross up
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Key Performance Indicators
New Business per Partner
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Chairman’s Statement
I am delighted to report that 2007 has been the fourth consecutive year of substantial
growth in new business, funds under management and profits for the Group.
New business from long-term savings and investments (measured on an APE
basis, the standard industry measure of annual premiums plus one tenth of single
premiums) was up 23%, funds under management at £18.2 billion were up 18%
and European Embedded Value operating profits increased by 39% to £244.7 million.
Financial Performance
The results have been presented on both an IFRS
(International Financial Reporting Standards) basis and
an EEV (European Embedded Value) basis. We continue
to believe that the EEV basis provides a more meaningful
measure of the Group’s operating performance.
On the IFRS basis the operating profit, before
shareholder tax, was £96.1 million compared with
£107.6 million for the prior year. As detailed in the
Financial Commentary the IFRS result is complicated by
one off items in both the current year and the
comparative year. Ignoring these one off items, the
operating profit before shareholder tax for the current
year would have been £76.4 million compared with
£78.0 million for 2006.
On the EEV basis, the pre-tax operating profit increased
by 39% to £244.7 million (2006: £176.0 million). The
total pre-tax profit for the year was £230.4 million
marginally lower than the £244.0 million for 2006.

Shareholders will recall that total pre-tax profit includes
the so called investment variance which takes account of
the investment returns in a particular year. The current
year investment variance is a negative of £14.5 million
compared with a positive £70.8 million in 2006. The
figures reflect the respective stock market conditions
over the two years.
The Financial Commentary on pages 9 to 16 provides
further details on the results for the year.
Dividend
In the Interim Report I indicated that, barring
unforeseen circumstances, shareholders could expect a
similar rise in the full year dividend to that of the Interim
dividend. Due to the continued strong performance in
the second half of the year, the Board has recommended
a 19% increase in the final dividend to 2.55 pence
per share (2006: 2.15 pence per share). This increase
provides for a full year dividend of 4.3 pence per share
(2006: 3.65 pence per share) an increase of 18%.
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Chairman’s Statement
(continued)

Over recent years shareholders have been offered
an alternative of a scrip dividend and this offer will
continue for the current dividend payment.
Subject to the approval of shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting the final dividend will be paid on
14 May 2008 to those shareholders on the register as at
7 March 2008.
Board Changes
On 29 May 2007 David Bellamy was appointed Chief
Executive following the departure of the previous Chief
Executive earlier in the year.
As I commented in my Interim statement David’s
appointment was a reflection of the Board’s confidence
in his experience and proven management ability.
On 3 December 2007 David Lamb, Group Business
Development Director, was appointed as an executive
Director of St. James’s Place plc. David has made an
excellent contribution to the success of the Group and
his appointment will further strengthen the Board.

On 7 February 2008 Simon Gulliford resigned from the
Board as a non-executive Director in the light of his new
appointment to work with Standard Life Group
on their marketing and communication strategy. I would
like to thank Simon for his excellent contribution during
his time on the St. James’s Place Board.
The Nomination Committee will consider and make
their recommendation to the Board as to a suitable
replacement for Simon as an independent non-executive
Director.
Partners and Staff
As stated earlier, 2007 has been our fourth year of
substantial growth in the business which is a reflection of
the continued enthusiasm, commitment and dedication
at every level of our community.
On behalf of the Board and shareholders I would like to
thank the Partnership, our employees and the staff in our
administration centres for their outstanding contribution
to our results last year.

Mike Wilson
25 February 2008
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Chief Executive’s
Statement
This is my fi st statement to shareholders since being appointed Chief Executive
in May 2007.
I have been with St. James’s Place since the Company was founded and it has been
a pleasure to have been involved in the Company’s growth and to have helped its
evolution to the successful wealth management business it is today.
St. James’s Place is a unique business, built around people and with a proven track
record of successfully creating long term relationships with our Partners and our
clients. The Company has a very distinctive culture built on integrity, hard work,
mutual trust and caring for each other and those less fortunate than us.
I hope shareholders can see that demonstrated from some of the content in this
report and accounts.
We remain committed to those values and to building long term relationships
and consequently believe we will continue to deliver excellent long term returns
for shareholders.
New Business
Our stated aim has been to g row new business by
15-20% p.a. over the longer term and it is very pleasing
to report that over the last 10 y ears we have achieved
16% p.a. compound g rowth and an e ven more
impressive 23% in the last 5 years.
In keeping with tha t sustained trac k record, 2007
was another r ecord year for ne w business with APE
increasing by 23% to £428.6 million.The main drivers of
the growth were investment business which was up 27%
and pension business which increased by 23%.

Total single investments were in excess of £3.4 billion for
the year and the final qua ter of 2007 w as our largest
quarter ever for pension business and our second largest
quarter ever for investment business – this despite the
difficult market conditions in the latter part of the year.
Shareholders may recall that our other ne w business
target is for our own manufactured products to represent
at least 80% of ne w business. As has been the case o ver
recent years the 87% (2006: 87%) we achieved last year
has significant y exceeded this stated target.
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Chief Executive’s Statement
(continued)

The St. James’s Place Partnership
I am also delighted to report growth of 8% in the size of
the Partnership in 2007 to 1,251 at the year end, which is
our highest annual growth since 1999.
This was achieved through a combination of levels of
recruitment and retention of our existing Partners.
The marketplace for good advisers is very active at the
present time and we are confident we can continue to
attract the appropriate number and quality in line with
our objectives. Alongside our traditional recruitment
activity, we are also pleased with the progress of our
‘Academy’ initiative. This initiative aims to “grow our
own” advisers to supplement our recruitment efforts in
the medium to long term.
In addition to the increase in the size of the Partnership,
in recent years the growth in new business has been
significantly impacted by the substantial increase in the
productivity per Partner. This trend continued in 2007
with Partner productivity increasing by 14.1% from
£312,000 to £356,000. We continue to see an increase
in business from both existing clients and introductions
from them.
Investment Management
Funds under management at the end of the year of £18.2
billion (2006: £15.4 billion) were up 18% over the year.
In addition to these direct funds under management
we have placed a further £1.6 billion of funds with
our third party service providers for banking, portfolio
management services and cash deposit funds.
2007 was a difficult year for the US, UK and Japanese
markets. The FTSE 100 gained 3.8%, the more broadly
based FTSE All Share index rose just 2.0% with the
S&P also ahead only 1.8% (3.5% on US$ terms) and
Japan falling some 6.8%. Europe and the emerging
markets performed better, with the FTSE Europe index
up nearly 9.7% and Asian markets (excluding Japan) up
over 25% on the year.

Against this backdrop I am pleased to report that
our distinctive approach to investment management
continues to deliver superior investment performance.
Two thirds of our funds under management are in the
top half of their peer groups in 9 out of the last 10 years.
The key results for 2007 were:
Managed funds: top quartile performance from THSP,
Newton, Jupiter and AXA Framlington
Income funds: top quartile performance from all our
income managers
Specialist funds: top quartile results from our new
MPC UK Growth Unit Trust and Neil Woodford’s
UK equity funds.
During 2008 we will continue to broaden the range of
funds available within our investment management
approach.
External Recognition
In October we were delighted to be informed that
St. James’s Place had won the inaugural Daily Telegraph
Wealth Manager of the Year Award which is a great
testament to the Partnership, the quality of their advice
and their relationships with their clients.
This was immediately followed by our elevation to the
top 50 of Britain’s ‘Management Today’s – Most Admired
Companies’ list for 2007 – a tribute to everyone’s hard
work and commitment to St. James’s Place.
Foundation and Community
The St. James’s Place Foundation, the Group’s charitable
trust, plays an important role within the lives of Partners
and employees. 2007 has been our best fundraising year
yet with money raised of £2.4 million (2006: £1.9
million) including the Company matching. This brings
our cumulative funds raised to £12.4 million.
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Chief Executive’s Statement
(continued)

With the funds raised we have been able to award grants
to almost 200 individual c harities in 2007 whilst
maintaining our commitments to the small number
of larger c harities with whic h we have relationships
(Hope & Homes for Children, Teenage Cancer Trust and
the Hospice Movement).
In addition to our fundraising for the F oundation, SJP
also supports charitable work in our local comm unities
through our Emplo yee Volunteering Scheme which
enables staff a t all le vels to g ive time, skills and
experience to c harities in their local comm unities.
We have also r ecently linked up with Young
Gloucestershire, a leading voluntary youth organisation,
delivering programmes for vulnerable young people.
Further details of the fundraising, charities supported by
the Foundation and our in volvement in the comm unity
are provided on pages 17 to 19 and 22 to 23.
On behalf of the Board I would like to thank all members
of St. James’s Place and those supplier s who ha ve
generously supported the F oundation by way of
sponsorship, time and donations.
Outlook
Looking forward, shareholders may be a ware that
Mike Wilson, our Chairman, is 65 in December and his
contract is sc heduled to end then. However I am
delighted to say that the Board and Mike have agreed to
extend his contract for a minim um of thr ee years
beyond that date. Mike will reduce his hours to equate to
three days a week from 1 January 2009.

Despite recent economic indica tors confi ming a
slowdown in the econom y and continued stoc k market
uncertainty, the social and demog raphic conditions
remain positive for a pr oven adviser-based approach to
wealth management. We remain convinced that there
is a g rowing demand for ad vice and belie ve that the
strength, quality and the increase in the size of our team
of advisers, gives us a major competitive advantage.
Consequently, we are very positive about the pr ospects
for continued g rowth in our b usiness over the longer
term, providing we maintain a clear focus on looking
after our clients and manag ing the in vestments they
entrust with us to their satisfaction.That’s been our focus
to date and will continue to be in the future.
As a r esult, our longer ter m growth target for ne w
business remains 15-20% per annum.

David Bellamy
25 February 2008

We have now had four consecutiv e years of str ong
growth in ne w business, funds under management
and profit .
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Financial
Commentary
The Group has delivered a fourth consecutive year of strong profit growth.
The financial performance is covered in the first section of this Financial
Commentary, whilst the second section covers other matters of interest to
shareholders and investors.
Section 1
Commentary on the Results

Year Ended
Year Ended
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
£’ Million
£’ Million

Life business differs from most other businesses, in that
the expected shareholder cash flow from a sale of a
product emerges over a long period in the future.

Life business
Unit trust business
Other

84.4
15.9
(4.2)

The results are therefore presented not only on an IFRS
basis, but also on an EEV basis, which brings into account
the net present value of the expected future cash flows.

Operating profit
LAHC

96.1
-

100.6
7.0

Profit before shareholder tax
Policyholder tax

96.1
7.1

107.6
72.3

103.2

179.9

78.1

88.0

As noted in the Chairman’s Statement the Board
continue to believe that the EEV basis provides a
more meaningful measure of the Group’s operating
performance.
International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS)
The IFRS result is shown on pages 64to 115.
As noted in previous financial commentaries the IFRS
result requires the pre-tax profit of the life business to be
‘grossed up’ for policyholder tax, with the corresponding
amount then being deducted within the tax charge. The
table below reflects the IFRS result after eliminating this
‘gross up’ in order to show the shareholder return from
the business.

Total pre-tax profit
Profit after tax

85.5
18.0
(2.9)

Life Business
The life IFRS result is complicated by one off items in
both the current year and the comparative year.
• Current year one off item – in the half year Financial
Commentary I highlighted that the profit before
shareholder tax was being distorted by the interaction
between policyholder and shareholder tax and that we
were exploring an alternative presentation to reduce
the distortion. For the full year result we have adopted
an alternative methodology which has resulted in a
one off increase in pre-tax profit of £19.7 million.
This is a presentational change and profit after tax
is unchanged.
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Financial Commentary
(continued)

• 2006 one off item – shareholders will recall that
during 2006 we obtained tax relief for prior years
unrelieved expenses which gave rise to a positive
impact on pre-tax profit of £22.6 million.
After eliminating the effect of these one off items the life
business pre-tax operating profit for the current year at
£64.7 million was marginally higher compared with
£62.9 million for the prior year.
This result reflects increased investment management
charges from the higher funds under management. The
increase is offset by higher costs associated with the new
business written during the year.
Following the change in methodology for presenting tax
the results in future years should be less complicated.
Unit Trust Business
The pre-tax operating profit for the unit trust business
was £15.9 million, some £2.0 million lower than the
comparative year profit of £18.0 million. The net
movement between the deferral of acquistion costs and
deferral of the upfront margin has reduced profit by
£5.9 million (2006: £2.4 million). This reflects the
higher level of new business in the current year.
Other
Other operations contributed a loss for the year of
£4.2 million, compared with a loss of £2.9 million for
2006. Included within this figure is the cost of expensing
share options at £12.5 million (2006: £7.6 million).
The prior year loss also included the benefit of deferred
income of £1.75 million from the transfer of mortgage
advisers to a third party.
At the Annual General Meeting in 2005, shareholders
approved a Purchase Share Scheme for members of the
Partnership. The new scheme was launched in January
2008 and is aimed at the top end of the Partnership to
further align their interests with shareholders and to aid
retention. Under accounting rules the deemed cost of

the share scheme is expensed through the profit
and loss account. The actual accounting expense will be
dependent upon the level of new business growth and we
estimate there will be an annual cost of some £5 – 7
million over the four year period 2008-2011.
Operating Profit
The total operating profit for the year was £96.1 million
(2006: £100.6 million).
Excluding the effect of the life business one off items
described earlier, the operating profit for 2007 was
£76.4 million compared to £78.0 million for 2006.
Net Assets
The total net assets were £442.5 million (2006:
£382.2 million) resulting in a net asset value per share
of 92.9 pence (2006: 82.4 pence).
European Embedded Value Basis
The table below summaries the pre-tax profit of the
combined business and the detailed result is shown on
pages 126 to 136.
Year Ended
Year Ended
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
£’ Million
£’ Million
Life business
Unit trust business
Other

189.9
59.0
(4.2)

139.0
39.9
(2.9)

Operating profit

244.7

176.0

Investment return
Economic assumption changes

(14.5)
0.2

Profit from core business
Profit on sale of LAHC

230.4
-

237.0
7.0

Total pre-tax profits

230.4

244.0

Post tax profit

188.4

184.2
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Financial Commentary
(continued)

Life Business
Operating profit has increased by 37% to £189.9 million
from £139.0 million and a full analysis of the result is
shown on page 132.

Unit Trust Business
The operating profit has increased by 48% from
£39.9 million to £59.0 million and a full analysis of the
unit trust result is shown on page 133.

The new business profit was up 31% from £87.6 million
to £114.5 million.

The new business profit has increased by 32% to
£36.4 million from £27.6 million for the prior year
reflecting the stronger new business during the year and
a small amendment to the calculation methodology.

The growth in this figure is a combination of the
increased volumes, the favourable business mix and
limiting establishment expense growth. These two
points mean that not only is there more profit from the
higher volumes, but we are also making more profit per
pound of APE. Section 2 of this commentary provides
further detail on the new business margin.
The unwind of the discount rate for the year was £59.1
million compared with £50.3 million for the prior year.
The additional unwind in 2007 is due to the higher value
of the in-force business at the start of the year.
The investment income of £6.9 million represents the
income on the free assets of the life companies and is
marginally higher than the £6.1 million in 2006.
The experience variance during the year increased
operating profit by £12.2 million (2006: negative
variance of £2.6 million). Shareholders will recall from
the Financial Commentary at the half year that, following
correspondence with HM Revenue & Customs, we have
been able to obtain relief for prior years excess
unrelieved foreign withholding tax. This has resulted in a
one off benefit of £9.7 million in the year. The balance of
the experience variances represents a number of
offsetting factors.
There is a small cost of £2.8 million from operating
assumption changes (2006: negative £2.4 million)
which have been made to the calculation of the
embedded value.

The unwind of the discount rate at £18.6 million was
higher than the £15.2 million for the prior year reflecting
the higher opening value of the in-force.
There was a positive experience variance for the year
of £4.0 million (2006: £0.2 million) reflecting
a number of small positive items including expenses
and improved persistency.
Other
The loss from other operations has previously been
commented on in the IFRS section.
Investment Return
The average after tax increase in our fund prices during
2007 were some 2 – 3% below the assumed growth rate
in the EEV calculation resulting in a negative investment
variance of £14.5 million (2006: £70.8 million positive).
Economic Assumption
The economic assumptions used for the projection of
cash flows, together with the discount rate, are based on
the yield on 10 year gilts. This yield has reduced
marginally since the start of the year, resulting in an
increase in the embedded value of £0.2 million (2006:
decrease of £9.8 million).
The total pre-tax profit for the year was £230.4 million
compared with £244.0 million for the prior year.
Net Assets
The total net assets on an EEV basis were £1,203.3
million (2006: £1,032.7 million) resulting in a net asset
value per share of 252.5 pence (2006: 222.6 pence).
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Financial Commentary
(continued)

Section 2
Other Matters

The table below provides the familiar breakdown
of expenses.

Noted below are a number of issues about the Group
that are of interest to shareholders.

Category

(i) Expenses
This section provides a reminder to shareholders of
categories and nature of expenditure incurred.
Shareholders will recall that “commission, investment
expenses and third party administration costs” are met
from corresponding policy margins. Any variation in
these costs flowing from changes in the volumes of new
business or the level of the stock markets does not
directly impact the profitability of the Company.

Year Ended
31 December 2007
£’ Million

Paid from policy margins
Commission
Investment expenses
Third party administration

Direct expenses
Other new business
related costs
Establishment costs
Contribution from third
party product sales

The direct expenses of the Group which are not
met from corresponding policy margins have been
categorised as follows:
The “other new business related costs”, such as sales
force incentivisation, vary with the level of sales –
determined on our internal measure. As production rises
or falls these costs will move in the corresponding
direction.
“Establishment costs” are the running costs of the
Group’s infrastructure and are relatively fixed in nature
in the short term, however these will increase as the
infrastructure expands to manage the higher number of
existing clients and the growth in the Partnership.
“Contribution from third party product sales” reflects
the net income received from wealth management sales
of £6.1 million (2006: £6.6 million), sales of stakeholder
products of £0.6 million (2006: £1.4 million) and
sales through the Protection Panel of £7.7 million (2006:
£9.7 million).

Year Ended
31December 2006
£’ Million

191.8
68.4
24.7

167.2
55.7
20.9

284.9

243.8

44.4
91.9

35.4
86.2

(14.4)

(17.7)

121.9

103.9

406.8

347.7

At the start of the year we set a target of increasing the
growth in the establishment expenses by less than 10%.
The establishment expense growth for the year was 7%
and importantly the gap between the new business
growth and the expense growth ended the year at some
15%, well above our stated objective. Consequently, as
shown below, the new business margin expanded.
For 2008 we have again set a target of limiting the
growth in the establishment expenses to around 10%; if
we achieve both this target and the new business growth
target, then shareholders can expect a further expansion
in new business margins in the coming year.
(ii) New Business Margin
The insurance sector has historically disclosed new
business in terms of Annual Premium Equivalent (APE).
Most commentators would agree that APE no longer has
much correlation with the underlying profitability of the
new business and consequently the industry is moving to
provide additional disclosure on the present value of
new business premiums (PVNBP).
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Financial Commentary
(continued)

APE is calculated as the sum of regular premiums plus
1/10th single premiums. PVNBPs are calculated as
single premiums plus the present value of expected
premiums from regular premium business, allowing for
lapses and other EEV assumptions. Noted in the table
below is the new business margin calculated both as a %
of APE and PVNBP.
Life business
New business profit (£’m)

2007

2006

114.5

87.6

APE (£’m)
Margin (%)

359.1
31.9

294.6
29.7

2,661.7
4.3

2,124.1
4.1

Unit trust business
New business profit (£’m)

36.4

27.6

APE (£’m)
Margin (%)

69.5
52.4

54.5
50.6

PVNBP (£’m)
Margin (%)

694.6
5.2

534.2
5.2

Total business
New business profit (£’m)

150.9

115.2

APE (£’m)
Margin (%)

428.6
35.2

349.1
33.0

3,356.3
4.5

2,658.3
4.3

PVNBP (£’m)
Margin (%)

PVNBP (£’m)
Margin (%)

The PVNBP calculation only includes our manufactured
business, we do not apply these principles to the nonmanufactured business.

(iii) Cash Flow
Last year we provided additional disclosure on the
underlying cash flow of the Group. We have further
enhanced this disclosure by analysing the cash flow
between that arising from the opening in-force business
and the cash flow arising from new business.
As noted last year, to obtain the underlying cash flow of
the business it is first necessary to adjust the post tax IFRS
profits for the ‘non- cash’ items.
The table below sets out these adjustments:
2007
£’Million
Post tax IFRS result
78.1
Adjustments
Movement in deferred acquisitions cost (91.0)
Movement in deferred income
55.9
Amortisation of purchased VIF
3.3
Movement in financial reassurance balance Release of LAHC provision
Share option expense
12.5
Movement in deferred tax asset
(41.4)
12.8
Movement in deferred tax liability *
Other
2.9
Adjusted post tax cash flow

33.1

2006
£’Million
88.0
(68.6)
42.2
3.1
(8.9)
(7.0)
7.6
(13.3)
23.2
(0.9)
65.4

* excluding amounts in respect of the unit linked funds

Taking account of these non-cash adjustments the Group
generated positive cash flow of £33.1 million during
2007 (2006: £65.4 million). The tables and commentary
on the following page provide an indicative unaudited
analysis of the sources of this cash flow.

The new business margin has been beneficially affected
by the rate of growth in new business, the proportion of
manufactured business, the underlying business mix and
by maintaining the growth in the level of expenses to
well below the growth in new business. In respect of the
unit trust margin there has also been a small amendment
to the calculation methodology.
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2007

Note

Arising from
business
in-force at
1 January 2007
£’ Million

Net annual management fee
Unwind of surrender penalties
Loss arising from new business
Establishment expenses
Investment income
Miscellaneous
Underlying cash flow

1
2
3
4
5
6

109.3
(40.2)
(6.7)
10.5
11.8
84.7

EUFT

7

7.2

Post tax cash flow
2006

91.9
Note

Arising from
business
in-force at
1 January 2006
£’ Million

Net annual management fee
Unwind of surrender penalties
Profit arising from new business
Establishment expenses
Investment income
Miscellaneous
Underlying cash flow

1
2
3
4
5
6

82.8
(29.9)
(6.2)
9.4
12.1
68.2

Tax relief on expenses b/fwd
FSA reserving change

8
9

22.6
20.9

Post tax cash flow

111.7

Notes
1. The net annual management fee: this is the income
on the funds under management that the group retains
after payment of the associated costs. Broadly speaking
the group retains around 1% pre-tax of funds under
management.
2. Unwind of surrender penalties: this relates to the
reserving methodology applied to the surrender
penalties within the charging structure of the single
premium life bonds. At the outset of the life bond we
establish a liability net of the outstanding surrender
penalty which would apply if the policy were to
be encashed. As the surrender penalty reduces to zero

Arising from
new business
in year

Total

£’ Million

£’ Million

13.9
(4.4)
(7.7)
(60.6)
(58.8)
(58.8)

123.2
(44.6)
(7.7)
(67.3)
10.5
11.8
25.9
7.2
33.1

Arising from
new business
in year

Total

£’ Million

£’ Million

10.4
(2.7)
1.9
(55.9)
(46.3)
(46.3)

93.2
(32.6)
1.9
(62.1)
9.4
12.1
21.9
22.6
20.9
65.4

so the liability to the policyholder is enhanced by
increasing their funds by 1% per annum over the first
six years of the product life, to correspond to this
‘unwind’ of the surrender penalty. In other words
there is a cash transfer from the shareholder to the
policyholder.
3. Profit/loss arising from new business: this is the cash
flow arising in the year after taking into account the
directly attributable expenses. The movement from
the small profit in 2006 to a loss in 2007 is due to
the change in mix of the new business particularly in
respect of pensions business.
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4. Establishment expenses: these ar e the post tax
expenses commented on in point (i) abo
ve and
represent the r unning costs of the Gr
oup’s
infrastructure.
5. Investment income: this is the assumed income
accruing on the in vestments and cash held for
regulatory purposes together with the inter
est
received on the surplus capital held by the Group.
6. Miscellaneous: this r epresents the cash fl w of
the business not co vered in an y of the other
categories. It will include miscellaneous pr oduct
charges, reserving changes, experience variances and
the income and expenses included within the Other
operations of the business.

Year Ended
31 December 2007
£’ Billion

Year Ended
31December 2006
£’ Billion

Opening funds under management 15.4
New money invested
3.1
Investment return
0.9

12.3
2.4
1.7

19.4

16.4

Regular income withdrawals/
maturities
Surrender/part surrenders

(0.3)
(0.9)

(0.2)
(0.8)

Closing funds under
management

18.2

15.4

5.4

5.8

Implied surrender rate as % of
average funds under management

7. EUFT: as noted in Section 1 of the Financial
Commentary we have been ab le to obtain r elief for
prior year excess unr elieved foreign withholding
tax. This has r esulted in a one off post tax benefit
of £7.2 million.

The regular income withdra wals represent those
amounts, selected by clients at the plan outset, which are
paid out b y way of per iodic income. The withdrawals
have been assumed in the calcula tion of the embedded
value new business profit

8. Tax relief on expenses b/fwd: as shar eholders will
recall from previous financial commenta ies, the UK
life company obtains tax relief for its expenses against
the tax deductions on the income and capital gains
within the unit linked life funds. At the start of 2006
there was approximately £112.9 million of excess
unrelieved expenses for whic h we obtained r elief,
giving rise to a one off positiv e cash fl w of £22.6
million in that year.

Maturities are those sums paid out wher e the plan has
reached the selected ma turity date (e.g. retirement
date). The expected maturities have been assumed in the
calculation of the embedded value new business profit

9. FSA reserving change: in 2006 the FSA r elaxed the
reserving methodology r equired to be follo wed by
life companies. The adoption of these changes resulted
in a one off £20.9 million in that year.
(iv) Movement in Funds under Management
There has been considerable industry debate concerning
the movement of funds under management and the
apparent high level of outfl ws being experienced.

Surrenders and part surrenders are those amounts where
clients have chosen to withdraw money from their plan.
Surrenders are assumed to occur in the calculation of the
embedded value new business profit based on actual
experience, updated on an annual basis, by plan duration
and the age of the client. The implied sur render rate
shown in the table above is very much a simple average
and it should not be assumed tha t small movements in
this rate will result in a c hange to the embedded v alue
assumptions.

St. James’s Place has not exper ienced any significant
fund outfl ws and the tab le in the follo wing column
provides additional disclosure on the mo vement in our
funds under management.
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The total number of options including those in the
(v) Analysis of the Embedded Value
The table below provides a summarised breakdown of the SJP Employee Trust, together with their anticipated
proceeds, are set out in the table below:
Embedded Value position at the reporting dates:
Year Ended
Year Ended
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
£’ Million
£’ Million
Value of in-force
- Life
- Unit trust
Solvency assets
Total embedded value

746.2
199.7
257.4

590.8
171.5
270.4

1,203.3

1,032.7

(vi) Share Options Maturity
Options outstanding under the various share option
schemes at 31 December 2007 amount to 35.0 million
(31 December 2006: 46.2 million).

Earliest date
of exercise

Average
Number of Anticipated
exercise share options
proceeds
price
outstanding
£
No.
£’ Million

Prior to 1 Jan 2008
Jan – Jun 2008
Jul – Dec 2008
Jan – Jun 2009
Jul – Dec 2009
Jan – Jun 2010
Jul – Dec 2010
Jan – Jun 2011

1.72
1.05
1.83
2.23
2.75
2.84
2.59
2.42

14,140,719
2,292,404
421,648
1,038,143
16,191,862
716,226
177,742
3,334

24.3
2.4
0.8
2.3
44.5
2.0
0.5
0.1

34,982,078

76.9

Of those options with an earliest date of exercise prior to
1 January 2008, 0.9 million options require further
performance conditions to be met before vesting
unconditionally.

Andrew Croft
25 February 2008
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Corporate Social Responsibility Report
St. James’s Place is committed to growing our business in a way that takes
account of the economic, social and environmental impacts of what we do.
The responsible management of such impacts is
increasingly important to our stakeholders – our
shareholders, our clients, our Partners, our employees,
our suppliers and the communities in which we operate.
We are pleased that St. James’s Place continues to be
included in the FTSE4 GOOD Index, which comprises
companies that meet globally recognised corporate
social responsibility criteria. In this year’s report, we
have sought to provide an overview of how we manage
our Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) programme
and highlight five key areas where St. James’s Place has
had a positive impact in 2007:
•
•
•
•
•

The St. James’s Place Foundation
People
Clients
Communities
Environment

Further information can be found on our website at
www.sjp.co.uk.
CSR Management & Governance
Our Corporate Social Responsibility programme is
steered by a CSR Committee which comprises senior
executives from across the business and is chaired by our
Chief Executive, David Bellamy. The CSR Committee
meets quarterly to review the programme.

The key themes for our efforts in 2007 were “Cherishing
the Children” and the Hospice Movement. In 2007, the
Foundation raised a total of £2.4 million, bringing the
cumulative total raised since its formation to
£12.4 million.
Under “Cherishing the Children”, any small charity that
has a project in the UK that is for the direct benefit of
physically disabled children, those suffering from a
mental condition, or a life threatening or degenerative
illness, can apply for a grant from the Foundation.
In 2007, the Foundation distributed 42 grants totalling
£273,000 under this theme.
The Foundation also makes grants to hospices in the UK
for support to fund things such as equipment, the cost of
complementary therapy or specialist nursing staff. In
2007, the Foundation distributed 24 grants totalling
£155,000 under this theme.
Over the past year, the Foundation has continued its
commitment to Hope & Homes for Children
(www.hopeandhomes.org), a UK based charity which
provides family homes and other support for children
orphaned by war or disaster. More than £2.6m has been
paid over to Hope & Homes for Children since the
Foundation started its support.

The St. James’s Place Foundation
The Foundation has been an important part of St. James’s
Place since our formation in 1992. It is much more than
simply corporate philanthropy. It is the focus for the
combined year-round efforts of our Partners, our
employees and our suppliers to work together and make
a positive impact on the communities in which we
operate. There is a real passion for the Foundation
throughout our business.

Hope & Homes for Children
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(continued)

The relationship with Teenage Cancer Trust (TCT)
(www.teenagecancertrust.org) has been developed
further this year, with payments of £325,000 to support
the patient technology in two TCT units in Leeds and
Birmingham. The support to the Birmingham unit
included a significant and generous individual donation
from one of our former Investment Managers. TCT
aims to open 21 such units around the UK for teenagers
with cancer.

CIDA

Teenage Cancer Trust

Further afield, the Foundation also developed a new
relationship with CIDA – a non-profit, private, higher
education institution founded in 1999 in South Africa
(www.cida.co.za). CIDA is focused on creating a
meaningful financial and economic democracy in South
Africa through providing students with business and
technology-based academic qualifications. CIDA
develops these future leaders to spread their knowledge
to their home communities, teaching vast numbers of
school students, community members and unemployed
people about financial literacy, entrepreneurship,
HIV/AIDS and life skills. The Foundation’s initial
funding sponsored 39 students through a three-year
degree course. The programme was highlighted at the
2007 St. James’s Place Annual Company Meeting where
two students spoke with passion about CIDA. Following
their presentation, sponsorship of individual students has
been widely taken up by both Partners and employees
and we now sponsor a total of 101 students. In 2007, the
Foundation granted CIDA £127,000.

Supporting the Foundation’s fundraising activities is a
key corporate objective. Everyone at St. James’s Place
focuses on this objective with the same level of rigour
and passion that we bring to managing the other
key performance indicators for our business. The
Foundation’s Management Committee, in wide
consultation with the community both within and
outside of St. James’s Place, has established a framework
for focusing the award of grants. Once grants have been
made, we follow up with the various organisations to
ensure that funds have been spent as agreed. This has the
impact of bringing us closer to the beneficiaries of our
efforts, and further builds the focus and passion of those
involved. We have seen a strong trend towards this
greater level of involvement leading to further
fundraising, and it helps individuals to learn more about
the context and real impact of their fundraising efforts.
Every Partner and employee is encouraged to take part
in, and contribute towards, fundraising events that raise
anything from a few hundred to hundreds of thousands of
pounds. Each regional office and department takes
responsibility for fundraising led by a local Foundation
Representative who helps shape the national approach.
A healthy spirit of competition and rivalry exists amongst
fundraisers nationally. Social events, as well as more
formal business gatherings, are seen as opportunities
to raise funds and highlight the needs of others.
Many of our suppliers support the Foundation through
regular donations of cash or goods.
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(continued)

Typical fundraising events have included tandem
skydiving, a triathlon where 200 athletes took part,
marathons and ironman challenges. From time to time
extreme challenges emerge, often starting as the dream
of a single employee and quickly blossoming into a viable
plan, gaining support and sponsorship. During 2007,
these included a Ten Tors challenge across Dartmoor for
teams from different offices that raised over £55,000, as
well as the Mont Blanc Challenge where 15 aspirant
mountaineers succeeded in climbing Mont Blanc – at
15,775 feet, the highest point in Europe. This event
alone raised a staggering £248,000, the highest amount
of sponsorship of any event in the Foundation’s history.

of Partners, deductions from their gross earnings. This
has the benefit of providing a regular monthly income to
the Foundation and enabling the Foundation to reclaim
the tax relief provided under the Gift Aid scheme. Over
80% of the St. James’s Place community regularly
make monthly donations to the Foundation. This raised
£325,000 in 2007. This impressive result demonstrates
the commitment to the Foundation throughout our
Partners and employees at every level.
Since 1999, every pound raised by members of the
St. James’s Place community has been matched by
St. James’s Place. This matching totalled £1.2 million
in 2007.
The Foundation is a great example of a company acting
responsibly whilst simultaneously generating real
business benefits. In our case, the Foundation has made a
significant impact in maintaining our core values and
reinforcing team working amongst our Partners and
employees. We are confident this has played a large part
in the sustained growth of St. James’s Place.
Looking forward, we already have ambitious plans for
2008 to match, and hopefully better, 2007’s
phenomenal Foundation fundraising total of £2.4
million.

Ten Tors Challenge

People
Our Approach
St. James’s Place has published a statement of business
practice in the form of a booklet entitled ‘Our
Approach’. It is provided to all employees and members
of the Partnership and covers areas such as:

Mont Blanc Challenge

Alongside these ad hoc fundraising initiatives, the
Foundation has consistently promoted regular employee
giving through deductions from payroll and, in the case

• our objectives;
• the St. James’s Place brand and how its integrity and
value are maintained;
• our corporate culture and management style;
• how we deal with internal and external
communication; and
• our commitment to the St. James’s Place Foundation.
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The booklet emphasises the values of integrity, trust,
openness, partnership and teamwork and is designed to
guide individual and corporate actions, decisions and
standards.
The Partnership
The St. James’s Place Partnership is made up of some
of the most experienced, able and highly regarded
professionals working in wealth management today.
They are self-employed business people who represent
St. James’s Place when advising on the wealth management
products and services made available from the Group.
Members of the St. James’s Place Partnership form a
close bond with the Company and share its core values.
On average, they have over 16 years’ service in the
financial services industry and Partner retention has
remained very strong in recent years as indeed has
recruitment of new Partners.
Partners are encouraged to continually develop their
knowledge and expertise. We offer a wide range of
courses to all Partners to further refine and develop their
skills and they receive regular information and guidance
with regard to changes in legislation or regulation.
A number of them will specialise in particular aspects of
wealth management advice, for example, Retirement
Planning and Inheritance Tax, or Corporate Advice
where Partners will help business owners with anything
from exit strategy to employee benefits. In all of these
areas we provide specialist support to help Partners
deepen their knowledge.
The remuneration arrangements for our Partners
are designed such that their interests are aligned with
clients and support the long term relationships we aspire
to achieve.
Our Employees
We firmly believe that our success as a business depends
on the people who work here and the people we work
for. Our employees give us a sustainable competitive
advantage and the attitude, knowledge and commitment
of our people continues to be a strong differentiator.

We take pride in being a people business and continue to
seek employee’s views and opinions through our annual
Employee Survey. Our 2007 Survey received a response
rate of 83% and our employee engagement was as high as
94% in some areas. Some of the highlights were that
77% of employees feel a strong sense of belonging to
St. James’s Place and believe they are valued for what
they can offer, 77% are satisfied with the benefits
package and 89% of employees would recommend
St. James’s Place as a good place to work. In addition,
91% of our employees are proud to work for St. James’s
Place. The graphs opposite demonstrate how we
compare with peer benchmarks and how we have made
progress since the 2006 Survey.
Employee retention for 2007 is 90.3% and attracting
new employees has rarely posed a problem for us. Days
lost through sickness across the business currently stands
at 3.58 days per employee, per year, which is
significantly below the national average. We seek to
employ the best person for each job and aim to ensure
everyone can enjoy equal opportunities in an
environment that is free from discrimination of any sort.
Our workplace gender profile is fairly evenly split with a
total of 350 female and 297 male employees.
The performance and development of our people is
encouraged and supported through a formalised
Performance Development Review process and 88% of
employees informed us that their last Review accurately
reflected their performance. Our reward package is
competitive with a comprehensive range of benefits
provided to all employees including Pension, Life & Critical
Illness cover and Private Medical cover. We also provide
the opportunity for all the employees to benefit from
annual bonuses linked to St. James’s Place performance.
Recognising the benefit of all employees having the
opportunity of an equity interest in St. James’s Place
everyone can join the SAYE plan and acquire discounted
shares. 70% of all employees are currently members of
this scheme. Management are also given the opportunity
to participate in share incentive schemes, further details
of which are set out in the Remuneration Report.
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“I would recommend SJP
as a good place to work”

We continue to focus on employee training and
development. 2007 saw a significant relaunch of our
programme and a marked increase in satisfaction
with training and development opportunities amongst
our people.
We work hard not only to ensure we create an excellent
working environment for our staff and Partners, but also
that our offices all comply with Health and Safety
regulations. During 2007 the construction of our new
45,000 sq. ft. purpose-built Head Office, in our home
town of Cirencester, was completed and our staff have
now moved into this prestigious building. Ultimately,
this will mean that we will have all our head office teams
in two buildings rather than the previous six.
St. James’s Place has a well-established awareness of the
statutory and social responsibilities with regard to
the recruitment or employment of disabled staff. Our
recruitment procedures are free from bias and
discrimination and we will always consider possible
modifications to our working environment to ensure a
disabled person has the chance to take up opportunities
or promotion.
We ensure that every effort is made to achieve continuity
of employment in the event of an employee becoming
disabled. Similarly best practice principles ensure that
our responsibilities are met as an equal opportunity
employer.
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We remain committed to an open style of communication.
We keep all of our community informed on a regular
basis on matters that might affect their day-to-day work
and communicate items of interest. Regular feedback is
encouraged and managers are expected to have monthly
one-to-ones with team members as well as monthly team
meetings. Directors and senior managers regularly visit
all SJP office locations to disseminate key corporate
messages and obtain valuable feedback.
Clients
At the heart of our business is the relationship between
our advisers, the members of the St. James’s Place
Partnership, and our clients. These relationships are
founded on the principle that every client has different
goals and responsibilities and that therefore each requires
individual and personal advice. By applying this
principle, our Partners have developed exceptionally
strong and lasting relationships with their clients
founded on trust.
We support and encourage these relationships in two key
ways. Firstly, by ensuring that the range of wealth
management products and services we offer are
comprehensive and that they meet both the current and
future needs of our clients. Secondly, by guaranteeing
the advice given by members of the Partnership when
recommending any of the products and services
provided by companies in the St. James’s Place Group.
We also recognise that our clients’ needs change and that
we need to anticipate, understand and respond to these
changes. We therefore consult regularly both with
the Partnership and our clients. With Partners this
consultation is through formal surveys and consultation
groups as well as regular, informal one-to-one
discussions between management and Partners. For
clients, we undertake an annual satisfaction survey as
well as more focused research on specific parts of our
offering. Our first annual survey in 2007 delivered very
positive results and gave us a clear understanding of what
our clients want and expect.

As well as providing advice on a range of products and
services, a substantial part of our business is the
management of our clients’ money. We employ
Stamford Associates, an external firm of consultants, to
oversee the performance of our Fund Managers and
report regularly to our Investment Management
Committee. Our approach of selecting the best Fund
Managers, closely monitoring their activities and
introducing new managers where appropriate has
consistently delivered above average investment returns
over the medium to long term for our clients.
For clients particularly interested in investing in
environmentally friendly companies and to comply with
the policy on socially responsible investment by Trustees
of Occupational Pension Schemes, the Group offers
ethical funds. These funds invest in companies
demonstrating sound environmental and social policies.
In settling life and health claims, we take a positive view
and do not hide behind the ‘small print’. Wherever
possible, we will pay claims in line with the spirit of
the contract. We also place great emphasis on
communicating the characteristics of our products and
services with clarity and transparency.
Inherent in everything we do is our desire to be fair and
reasonable to clients.
Communities
We recognise our responsibility to help build strong and
healthy communities in the areas in which we operate.
In July 2007, we launched our Employee Volunteering
Scheme which supports St. James’s Place employees
wishing to volunteer with schools, charities or local
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programmes for vulnerable young people. Our Group
Legal Director & Company Secretary, Hugh Gladman,
has joined its board and we are currently working with
them on plans to open a youth drop-in centre in the
Cirencester area and a number of other initiatives.

Lewisham Youth Theatre

community groups. Under the Scheme, our people can
take up to four days paid leave per year and use this time
to work with charities and other organisations in their
local communities. One such group is the Lewisham
Youth Theatre.
Close to our Head Office location in Cirencester,
Gloucestershire we support the activities of both
Young Gloucestershire and Cirencester College.
Young Gloucestershire is the leading voluntary youth
organisation in the county, delivering high-quality

Young Gloucestershire

Cirencester College has recently been awarded the title
of top Tertiary and General Further Education College
in the country by the Department for Education and
Skills. The college has over 1,600 students between the
ages of 16 and 19 and a further 7,000 students attending
a variety of adult learning courses. We work with the
college on its Academy programme which offers
vocational courses in areas such as finance, marketing,
IT and law. We provide mentors and paid internships
for Academy students as well as support for other areas
of the college’s activities such as its adult financial
literacy programme.
St. James’s Place also sponsors the UK’s top-ranked
swimming programme, Loughborough University
Swimming. This reflects our belief in supporting
a community programme of talented individuals in the
build-up to the London 2012 Olympic Games.

Loughborough University Swimming
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Environment
We are extremely focused on manag ing the g rowth of
St. James’s Place in a w ay that takes account of our
environmental impact. 2007 has been a y ear of significan
progress leading up to Al Gore addressing nearly 3,000
of our P artners, employees and other stak eholders at
our Annual Company Meeting at The O2 in January 2008.
The issue of clima te change is incr easingly pressing.
Al Gore challenged us to be par t of the solution.
His address has fur ther fi ed our commitment to mak e
a difference.
We measure our en vironmental data from October to
September, which allows sufficient time for our third pa ty
providers to pr oduce relevant data for inclusion in this
Corporate Social Responsibility Repor t. The table below
summarises our CO 2 footprint for the y ears 2005/6 and
2006/7:
In the year, we can r eport a 11% reduction in our CO 2
footprint measured by full time occupant. This reduction
has been split across the main areas of gas, electricity, travel
and general waste.

2005/6
Tons CO2
Electricity
Gas
Travel
General Waste (Landfill
Total by FTO

1,662
491
1,348
268

2005/6 Tons
CO2 per
FTO
1.433
0.423
2.487
0.231
4.574

We use the services of ENTECH who check, monitor and
produce our annual usage figu es. As can be seen from the
table below, gas consumption has r educed by 23% and
electricity usage r educed by 3% based on a full-time
occupancy measure. Our fuel management systems
provide fuel usage figu es, which are added to mileage
expense claims to obtain total annual v ehicle mileage
figu es. This, along with rail and air mileage, is then used to
calculate an o verall CO2 figu e attributable to tra vel.
Between 2005/6 and 2006/7, there was an incr ease
in vehicle mileage dr iven by increased numbers of
employees and g reater business volumes. However, this
increase has been offset by lower rail and air travel, with the
result that we have achieved an overall saving by full time
occupant of 13%.
The Carbon Disclosur e Project is a global initia tive to
inform investors of the r isks and opportunities presented
by climate change and to inform company management of
their shareholders’ views on the issues. The project issued
its latest information request, CDP5, in February 2007.
In a r eport on CDP5 pr oduced by Trucost Plc, the
environmental research organisation, St. James’s Place
was named as one of the 45 ‘Best Reporting Companies’
out of the 245 fr om the FTSE 350 tha t responded.
This was based on our ability to provide externally verifie
data on CO2 emissions and purchased electricity.

2006/7
Tons CO2
1,739
409
1,356
265

2006/7 Tons
CO2 per
FTO
1.386
0.326
2.169
0.211
4.092

%
Reduction in CO2
per FTO
-3%
-23%
-13%
-9%
-11%

Notes:
(1) FTO = Full Time Occupant
(2) FTO figu es for electricity, gas and general waste calculations include all occupants of SJP premises. FTO figu es for travel include only those for
whom SJP pays travel expenses directly. The key difference between these two figu es are members of the Partnership who are based in SJP office .
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Corporate Social Responsibility Report
(continued)

Our new Head Office in Cirencester has been constructed
with environmental issues in mind. It has been designed to
achieve a ‘good’ rating using BREEAM (Building Research
Establishment Environment Assessment Method), and
uses advanced heat recovery technology to increase the
efficiency of the heating and cooling of the building. Other
initiatives range from the installation of more efficient high
frequency lights, which turn themselves off once no
movement has been detected for a pre-defined time, to the
fact that we no longer use plastic cups and spoons. In order
to encourage as much recycling as possible, we have
removed all personal under-desk bins in favour of
providing central general waste and recycling bins. We
anticipate an increase in electricity and gas related CO 2
emissions during 2007/8 as we transition from our older
offices in Cirencester to our new Head Office, prior to the
overall rationalisation of our leasehold estate.

Tirunelveli India

three year contract with the Carbon Neutral Company to
fully offset our carbon footprint. Through this, we are
investing in projects such as forestry regeneration in
Snowdonia, Wales and a renewable energy project in
Southern India.
Across all our locations, office paper recycling has
increased by 7% during 2007. We promote the use of
recycled paper within our print portfolio and source paper
that follows the rules of the FSC (Forest Stewardship
Council). Other items being recycled include IT
equipment, mobile phones and toner cartridges.

Cirencester Head Office

We continue to work with our energy consultants to
achieve the most efficient use of energy and are now in the
second year of a three year contract to provide CCL
exempt energy from green resources, which has been an
important factor in reducing our CO2 emissions footprint.
However, we have recognised that in spite of our continued
initiatives to control our direct carbon footprint, additional
steps were necessary. During the course of early 2007 we
carried out a full evaluation and in June 2007 we entered a

We continue to offer electronic communication for
shareholders, so that they can elect to receive St. James’s
Place documentation and to vote on AGM resolutions
electronically rather than by post, which reduces printing
and distribution, financial and environmental costs. The
eTree initiative remains in place whereby for every
shareholder that registers to receive their communications
electronically, a sapling is donated on the shareholder’s
behalf in an area selected for reforestation in the UK via
Woodland Trust’s “Tree for all” campaign. Further details
can be found at www.etreeuk.com.
A full Environmental Report is published annually on
our website at www.sjp.co.uk .
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President and Board of Directors

Sir Mark Weinberg (76) (I) President
Sir Mark founded the St. James’s Place Group with Mike Wilson in 1991 and was Chairman of
the Group until September 2004, when he resigned from the Board and was appointed President of
the Company. He currently chairs the Investment Committee. He originally practised as a barrister
and was formerly Deputy Chairman of the Securities and Investments Board, the forerunner to the
Financial Services Authority. He is the Chairman of the Pension Corporation and of Synergy
Insurance and was appointed to the Board of GuestInvest Group in November 2007.
The current Directors of the Company are:
Mike Wilson (64) (N) Chairman
Mike has worked in the financial services industry since 1963 and founded the St. James’s Place
Group with Sir Mark Weinberg in 1991. He was Chief Executive until September 2004. Mike is a
trustee of the St. James’s Place Foundation and member of the Nomination Committee. He was
formerly Chairman of the Mental Health Foundation and a non-executive director of Vendôme
Luxury Group plc between 1993 and 1998.
Sarah Bates (49) (I) (R) Non-executive Director
Sarah joined the Board as an independent non-executive Director in September 2004 and is a
member of the Investment and Risk Committees. She is a director of various listed investment
trusts and strategic investment adviser to the Merseyside and East Riding Pension Funds. Sarah
is lay adviser to the investment committee of the Royal College of Surgeons and a member of
Newnham College, Cambridge and the Cancer Research UK Pension Fund Investment Committees.
She has a law degree from Trinity Hall, Cambridge and an MBA from the London Business School.
David Bellamy (54) Chief Executive
David joined the Group in April 1991, was appointed to the Board in September 1997 and became
Chief Executive in May 2007, having previously fulfilled the roles of Group Operations Director and
Managing Director. He has worked in the financial services industry since 1973 and is a trustee of the
St. James’s Place Foundation.
Andrew Croft (43) (I) Group Finance Director
Andrew joined the Group as Financial Accountant in 1993 and was promoted to various roles
culminating in his appointment as Group Finance Director in September 2004. He qualified as a
Chartered Accountant at PriceWaterhouseCoopers in 1988 and has a degree in Accounting and
Economics from Southampton University. He is a member of the Investment Committee and a
trustee of the St. James’s Place Foundation.
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President and Board of Directors
(continued)

Jo Dawson (45) Non-executive Director
Jo was appointed to the Board as a non-independent, non-executive Director on 31 May 2006
representing HBOS plc. She is Chief Executive of Retail Distribution, Insurance and Investment at
HBOS plc and joined the HBOS board on 1 May 2006. She originally joined Halifax in June 2000
as General Manager, Retail Sales, having held senior positions at Nat West and Green Flag. Jo is a
graduate of Cambridge and has an MBA from Warwick Business School. She is also a member of
the Board of the Association of British Insurers.
Andy Hornby (41) Non-executive Director
Andy was appointed to the Board as a non-independent, non-executive Director on 31 May 2006
representing HBOS plc. He joined the Board of Halifax plc as Chief Executive, Halifax Retail in
1999, having previously held senior positions at Blue Circle and Asda. He was appointed Chief
Executive of HBOS plc in July 2006 and is also a non-executive director of Home Retail Group.
Andy graduated from Oxford and has an MBA from Harvard.
Ian Gascoigne (51) Group Sales Director
Ian was appointed to the Board as Group Sales Director in January 2003. He has worked in the
financial services industry since 1986, joined the Group in December 1991 and was appointed
to the Board of St. James’s Place UK plc in 1997. He has a degree from Lancaster University and
an MA from Leicester University and is also a trustee of the St. James’s Place Foundation.
David Lamb (51) (I) Group Business Development Director
David joined the Group in 1992 with responsibility for the finance department. More recently
he has had responsibility for developing the Group’s wealth management offering and fund
management range and was promoted to the position of Group Business Development Director in
December 2001 and to the Board in December 2007. He is a member of the Investment
Committee. David is a graduate of City University, London and a Fellow of the Institute
of Actuaries.
Derek Netherton (63) (Rem) (A) (N)Non-executive Director
Derek is an independent non-executive Director, appointed in May 1996. He is Chairman of the
Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration and Nomination Committees. Derek is
Chairman of Greggs plc and is a non-executive director of Next PLC. He is a Fellow of the
Institute of Actuaries and was formerly a director of J. Henry Schroder & Co Limited.
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President and Board of Directors
(continued)

Mike Power (50) (R) (A) Non-executive Director
Mike joined the Board as an independent non-executive Director in May 2005. He is Chairman of
the Risk Committee and a member of the Audit Committee. He is Professor of Accounting and a
Research Director of the ESRC Centre for Analysis of Risk and Regulation at the London School
of Economics and Political Science, where he has worked since 1987. He is a Fellow of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and an Associate of the UK Chartered
Institute of Taxation. He sits on the risk management committee of the London School of
Economics and lectures and writes on risk management, regulation and compliance issues.
Michael Sorkin (64) (I) (Rem) (N) (A)Senior Independent Director
Michael was appointed to the Board as an independent non-executive Director in January 2002.
He was appointed Senior Independent Director in May 2005, is Chairman of the Remuneration
and Nomination Committees and a member of the Audit Committee. He joined Hambros Bank in
1968 and was a director of Hambros plc between 1986 and 1999 and a Managing Director of S G
Hambros from 1999 to 2001 . He is Vice Chairman of Investment Banking at N M Rothschild
Corporate Finance Limited and a non-executive director of J Z Equity Partners plc.
Roger Walsom (54) (R) (Rem) Non-executive Director
Roger was appointed to the Board as an independent non-executive Director in July 2005 and
is a member of the Risk and Remuneration Committees. After several years in the financial
services industry, he graduated in law from Southampton University and qualified as a solicitor
in 1980 with a City law firm. He became a partner at Ashurst, another leading City law firm, in
1988, specialising in the financial services industry. He retired as a partner in April 2005 but
continues as a consultant to Ashurst. He is a non-executive director of The Pensions Regulator
and a director of Invesco Income Growth Trust plc.
Ages correct as at 25 February 2008.
(I) – Member of the Investment Committee
(R) – Member of the Risk Committee
(Rem) – Member of the Remuneration Committee
(N) – Member of the Nomination Committee
(A) – Member of the Audit Committee
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Directors’ Report
The Directors present their Report & Accounts of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2007.
Business Review
The information that fulfils the Companies Act requirements of the Business Review can be found in the following sections:
Principal risks and uncertainties

The Risk and Risk Management section of the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 42 to 44

Performance and development during the year
and position at the end of the year

Chief Executive’s Statement on pages 5 to 7 and the
Financial Commentary on pages 9 to 16

Information on likely future developments

Chief Executive’s Statement on page 7 and the
Financial Commentary on page 12

Directors’ and Officers’ Indemnity and Insurance

The Corporate Governance Report on page 42

Financial and non-financial KPIs

Key Performance Indicators on page 2

Results and Dividends
An interim dividend of 1.75 pence per share (2006: 1.5 pence per share) was paid on 19 September 2007. The
Directors recommend that shareholders approve a final dividend of 2.55 pence per share (2006: final dividend of
2.15 pence per share and a special dividend of 6.35p per share) to be paid on 14 May 2008 to shareholders on the
register at the close of business on 7 March 2008.
A resolution to renew the Directors’ authority to offer a scrip dividend will be put to the shareholders at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.
Status of Company
The Company is registered as a public limited company under the Companies Act 1985.
Activities
The Company is a financial services holding company with principal interests in the sale and marketing of wealth
management products and services. A full review of the activities of the Group is given in the Chief Executive’s
Statement on pages 5 to 7.
Substantial Shareholders
The Company is aware of the interests of the following companies in 3% or more of the ordinary issued share capital
of the Company as at 25 February 2008:
HBOS plc: 284,609,990 (59.73%)
BlackRock Investment Management (UK) Limited: 24,931,866 (5.23%)
Newton Investment Management Limited: 14,774,467 (3.10%)
Details of the relationship agreement between HBOS plc and the Company are set out on page 42.
The interests of the Directors, their families and any connected persons in the issued share capital of the Company
are shown on page 59.
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Directors’ Report
(continued)

Share Capital
Structure of the Company’s capital
As at 31 December 2007 476,485,853 ordinary shares of 15p each were issued and were fully paid up. All ordinary
shares are quoted on the London Stock Exchange and can be held in uncertificated form in CREST. Details of the
movement in the issued share capital during the year are provided in note 29 to the financial statements on page 107.
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive the Company’s reports and accounts, to attend and speak at General
Meetings of the Company, to appoint proxies and to exercise voting rights. The rights and obligations attaching to the
ordinary shares are set out in the Company’s Articles of Association, which can be amended by a special resolution of the
members of the Company. Copies of the Articles of Association can be obtained from Companies House.
Restrictions on transfer of shares
Share transfers cannot be made in favour of more than four joint holders. In respect of a transfer of shares held in
certificated form, the Directors may decline to recognise any instrument of transfer unless it is (i) in respect of only one
class of share and (ii) lodged (duly stamped if required) at the Transfer Office (as defined in the Articles of Association)
accompanied by the relevant share certificate(s) and such other evidence as the Directors may reasonably require to show
the right of the transferor to make the transfer (Article 35.1).
The Directors may refuse to register any transfer of any share held in certificated form which is not fully paid provided
that such discretion may not be exercised in such a way as to prevent dealings in the shares of that class from taking place
on an open and proper basis (Article 35.2).
If the Directors become aware that (a) a person has applied to have shares (in certificated or uncertificated form)
registered in his name either for his own account or for the account of others and that as a result such shares would be
held or owned, directly or beneficially, by, or (b) that any shares are held or owned, directly or beneficially, by, a
US Person who would cause the aggregate number of beneficial owners of issued shares who are US Persons to exceed
70 (or such other number as the Directors may, from time to time, deem appropriate) the Directors may, amongst
other things, refuse to register an allotment or transfer of shares (whether in certificated or uncertificated form) where
it appears that such registration would or might result in the record or beneficial ownership of such shares by any
US Person (Article 36.1). In this context, “US Person” means a person defined as such under Regulation S under the
United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended.
The registration of transfers may be suspended at such times and for such periods (not exceeding 30 days in any year) as
the Directors may from time to time determine and either generally or in respect of any class of shares, except that, in
respect of uncertificated shares, the Register shall not be closed without the consent of the operator (Euroclear UK &
Ireland Limited) (Article 39).
Restrictions on voting rights
Proxy forms sent by the Company to shareholders in relation to any general meeting must be received by the Company
not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding of the meeting or adjourned meeting (Article 71).
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Directors’ Report
(continued)

If any member, or any other person appearing to be interested in shares held by such member, has been sent a notice by
the Company under Section 793 of the Companies Act 2006 (Notice by company requiring information about interests in its
shares) and has failed to supply the relevant information for a period of 14 days, then the member shall not (for so long as
the default continues) be entitled to attend or vote either personally or by proxy at a shareholders’ meeting or to exercise
any other right conferred by membership in relation to shareholders’ meetings (Article 63).
If those default shares represent at least 0.25 per cent of their class any dividend payable in respect of the shares shall be
withheld by the Company and (subject to certain limited exceptions) no transfer, other than an excepted transfer (as
defined in Article 63.7), of any shares held by the member in certificated form shall be registered (Article 63.3).
Power of the Company’s Directors
The Articles of Association provide for the business and affairs of the Company to be managed by the Directors, who can
exercise all such powers of the Company as are not by the Statutes or by the Articles required to be exercised by the
Company in General Meeting. The power of the Directors are subject to any regulations of the Articles, to the provisions
of the Statutes and to such regulations as may be prescribed by special resolution of the Company.
The Company’s Articles of Association provide that all the unissued shares are at the disposal of the Directors. However
section 80 of the Companies Act 1985 requires that the authority of the Directors to allot relevant securities shall be
subject to the approval of shareholders in general meeting. At the 2007 AGM, shareholders authorised the Directors to
allot the Company’s unissued shares up to a nominal amount of £20,357,128. The Directors also have power to allot
equity securities otherwise than in accordance with pre-emption rules set out in the Companies Act 1985 for a period
which expires on the date of the annual general meeting in 2008. However any equity securities allotted for cash pursuant
to such power cannot exceed a nominal amount of £3,509,850.
Directors
Brief particulars of the Directors’ membership of the Board Committees are contained in the Corporate Governance
Report. Details of the Company’s rules regarding the appointment and replacement of Directors are contained in the
Company’s Articles of Association.
David Lamb was appointed to the Board on 3 December 2007. Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company
he will retire at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and offer himself for re-election. As reported in last year’s
annual report and accounts, Mark Lund resigned from the Board on 4 January 2007. Simon Gulliford resigned as a
non-executive Director on 7 February 2008.
Pursuant to the Articles of Association, all those Directors who were elected or last re-elected at or before the Annual
General Meeting held in 2005 shall retire from office by rotation. The Directors retiring by rotation at the AGM are Sarah
Bates, Andrew Croft, and Michael Sorkin. Derek Netherton will also be seeking annual re-election to meet corporate
governance guidelines applicable to his length of service on the Board.
Further details on the background of those Directors seeking re-election are set out in the Directors’ biographies
on pages 27 to 29 and in the Notice of the Annual General Meeting. The Chairman is pleased to confirm that those
non-executive Directors seeking re-election continue to be effective in their roles on the Board and its Committees and
have demonstrated their continued commitment to their roles.
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Directors’ Report
(continued)

Except as stated in the Remuneration Report, no Director has, or has had during the year under review, any beneficial
interest in any contract or arrangement with the Company or any of its subsidiaries as defined by the Companies Act 1985
or pursuant to the Listing Rules published by the FSA. Details of all executive Directors’ service contracts are set out in the
Remuneration Report on page 52.
The Company does not have agreements with any Director or employee that would provide compensation for loss of
office or employment resulting from a takeover except that provisions of the Company’s share schemes and plans may
cause options and awards granted to employees under such schemes and plans to vest on a takeover.
Creditors’ Payment Policy
The payment of supplier invoices is made on the Company’s behalf by St. James’s Place Management Services Limited
(“SJPMS”), a subsidiary company. It is SJPMS’s policy to pay creditors in accordance with the Confederation of British
Industry Better Practice Payment Code on supplier payments. SJPMS’s average number of days purchases outstanding in
respect of trade creditors at 31 December 2007 was 16 days (2006: 11 days).
Charitable and Political Donations
As agreed by shareholders in 2000, the Group pays an amount to the St. James’s Place Foundation (a charitable trust) each
year which matches funds raised for the Foundation by staff and members of the Partnership during the year, up to a limit
determined by the Directors from time to time, which was set at £1.25 million for 2007. During the year ended
31 December 2007, the Group contributed £1,080,382 (2006: £850,492) to the St. James’s Place Foundation. A list of
charitable donations made by the Foundation, together with a report which outlines the basis on which priorities for
donations have been established, is available on request. Further details on the Foundation are included in the Corporate
Social Responsibility Report on pages 17 to 19.
It is the Group’s policy not to make any donations to political parties within the meaning of the definitions set out in
the Political Parties, Elections and Referendums Act 2000 and which (with effect from 1 October 2007) are now set out in
sections 362 to 379 of the Companies Act 2006. The Group did not make any political donations during the year
(2006: Nil).
Employees
The Company aims to provide equal opportunities for all, without discrimination on the grounds of race, religion, marital
status, age, gender, sexual orientation or disability in all its dealings with employees. The Company recruits and promotes
those best suited for the job. The Company respects the dignity of individuals and their beliefs and does not tolerate any
sexual, racial, physical or mental harassment of staff in the workplace.
The Company gives full and fair consideration to applications for employment from disabled persons. In the event of
employees becoming disabled, every effort is made to maintain them in employment with appropriate retraining if
necessary. It is the Company’s policy that disabled persons should be given the same opportunity for training, career
development and promotion, as other employees.
Further details of the Group’s approach to employee involvement, training and development and communication can
be found in the Corporate Social Responsibility Report on pages 20 to 22.
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Directors’ Report
(continued)

Change of Control
There are a number of agreements that take effect, alter or terminate upon a change of control of the Company following
a takeover bid, such as the investment management agreements with fund managers. None of these are individually
deemed to be significant in terms of their potential impact on the business as a whole. All of these agreements have been
entered into in the ordinary course of business and are on arm’s length commercial terms.
Annual General Meeting
The Company’s Annual General Meeting will be held on 30 April 2008 at The Royal Aeronautical Society, 4 Hamilton
Place, London W1J 7BQ at 11.00am.
Authority to Purchase Own Shares
At the Annual General Meeting in 2007, shareholders granted authority to the Directors for the purchase by the Company
of its own shares in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act 1985. The authority will expire at the
end of the Annual General Meeting to be held in 2008 or 18 months from the date granted, whichever is earlier. During
the year the Company did not purchase any of its own ordinary shares. The Directors will propose the renewal of the
authority to purchase own shares at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.
Going Concern
The Directors confirm that they are satisfied that the Company and the Group have adequate resources to continue
in business for the foreseeable future. For this reason, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing
the accounts.
Auditors
Each of the Directors at the date of approval of this report confirms that:
• So far as the Director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditors are unaware; and
• The Director has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a Director to make himself/herself aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that information.
This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of s234 ZA of the Companies
Act 1985.
The auditors, KPMG Audit Plc, have indicated their willingness to continue in office and a resolution that they be
re-appointed until the end of the 2009 Annual General Meeting will be put to shareholders at the Annual General Meeting
on 30 April 2008.
By Order of the Board

Hugh Gladman
Company Secretary
25 February 2008
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Corporate Governance Report
This report explains the approach the Group has taken to apply the principles
and provisions set out in the Combined Code on corporate governance.
The Financial Services Authority requires listed companies to disclose, in relation to section 1 of the Combined Code,
how they have applied its principles and whether they have complied with its provisions throughout the accounting
year. The Board considers that the Group has achieved compliance with all the provisions of the Combined Code
throughout the financial year.
The Board
The Board is responsible for providing leadership for the Group and for ensuring that the right strategy and controls
are in place in order to deliver value to shareholders and the wider community of individuals and organisations which
benefit from the Group’s activities. St. James’s Place is committed to high standards of Corporate Governance and
supports the Combined Code on Corporate Governance.
The Board meets six times a year, with additional meetings arranged on an ad hoc basis as required. During 2007 there
were six formal Board Meetings plus an additional all day strategy meeting. A table containing the Directors’
attendance at Board meetings can be found on page 38.
Prior to each Board meeting, members are supplied with an agenda and pack containing reports on current
trading, sales, operational issues, compliance, risk, accounting and financial matters. The Chairmen of the various
sub-committees of the Board also report to the Board at each meeting and copies of board committee minutes are
included in the packs for information purposes.
The Board has a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved to it, a copy of which can be found in the Corporate
Governance section of the corporate website. The primary responsibilities of the Board are to:
•
•
•
•
•
•

determine the overall strategy of the Group;
ensure that the Group’s operations are well managed and proper succession plans are in place;
review major transactions or initiatives proposed by the executive Directors;
implement appropriate Corporate Governance procedures;
periodically review the results and operations of the Group;
ensure that proper accounting records are maintained and adequate controls are in place to safeguard the assets of
the Group from fraud and other significant risks;
• identify and manage risk; and
• decide the Group’s policy on charitable and political donations.
A Board Control Manual sets out the primary policy and decision-making mechanisms within the Group and defines
the terms of reference of the Committees of the Board and the Group’s risk policies. In addition, it contains detailed
job descriptions of the Directors showing their individual responsibilities. The Manual is reviewed by the
Board annually.
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Corporate Governance Report
(continued)

The Roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive
The division of responsibilities between the Chairman of the Board, Mike Wilson, and the Chief Executive, David
Bellamy, is clearly defined and has been approved by the Board. No single individual has unfettered powers of decision
making. The Chairman is responsible for ensuring the continued effectiveness of the Board of Directors and
communication with shareholders. He also liaises with senior members of the Partnership and acts as a sounding board
to the senior management team, where they feel it appropriate. The Chief Executive’s primary responsibility is to
manage the Group and implement the strategies adopted by the Board.
Directors and Directors’ Independence
The Board currently comprises an Executive Chairman, five independent non-executive Directors, two nonindependent non-executive Directors and four executive Directors. Changes to the Board during the year include the
resignation of Mark Lund in January 2007, the appointment of David Bellamy as Chief Executive in May 2007 and the
appointment to the Board of David Lamb, Group Business Development Director, in December 2007.
Simon Gulliford resigned as a non-executive Director in February 2008. The Nomination Commiteee has started the
process to find a replacement non-executive Director with the assistance of an external search consultancy.
When determining whether a non-executive Director is independent, the Board considers for each non-executive
Director whether they are independent in character and judgement, how they conduct themselves in Board meetings,
whether they have any relationships or other circumstances which are likely to affect, or could appear to affect, their
judgement, and whether they act in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times. The Board has
considered the independence of Derek Netherton with particular care given that he has served on the Board for more
than nine years. The Board does not believe that it is in the interests of the Group to replace Derek Netherton with a
further non-executive Director appointment at the present time. Derek continues to contribute significantly to the
Board and its Committees through his individual skills and considerable knowledge of both the Company and the
financial services industry. His financial and actuarial knowledge is particularly helpful in connection with his role as
Chairman of the Audit Committee and he continues to demonstrate a strong independence of management in the
manner in which he discharges his responsibility as a Director at Board and Committee meetings by questioning and
constructively challenging management as and when he considers it appropriate. This matter is subject to annual
review by the Board (with the assistance of the Nomination Committee). The terms and conditions of appointment of
the non-executive Directors are available on request and will be available at the Annual General Meeting in April 2008.
The Senior Independent Director
Michael Sorkin has acted as the Senior Independent Director since May 2005. The Senior Independent Director is
available to meet shareholders on request and to ensure that the Board is aware of shareholder concerns not resolved
through the existing mechanisms for investor communication.
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Professional Development
Directors receive training in their duties and responsibilities on appointment as part of an induction process designed
to assist them in their understanding of the business, including meeting with members of senior management, Partners
and visiting some of the Group’s offices. The Directors are also offered training on an ongoing basis via a rolling
programme coordinated by the Company Secretary. During 2007 a number of non-executive Directors attended
location meetings and the Double Partner Development Conference, where they received presentations on the
business and had an opportunity to meet with Partners and staff. Non-executive Directors are briefed on the views of
major shareholders at Board meetings and have an opportunity to meet with shareholders as necessary.
The Directors are regularly updated on their duties and responsibilities and have access to the advice of the Company
Secretary as well as independent professional advice where needed in furtherance of their duties. Further training is
made available as necessary to ensure that the whole Board is kept abreast of relevant developments applicable to their
roles and topical issues are also addressed before each Board meeting. For example, the Board have been updated by
the Company Secretary on the new Directors’ duties and other material changes introduced by the Companies Act
2006, as well as receiving pre-Board presentations on topical business projects by senior management that have
included results of the 2007 staff survey, solvency update and an update on the implications and progress of FSA’s
Retail Distribution Review.
Performance Evaluation
During 2007, the Chairman met each non-executive Director on a one-to-one basis as well as meeting the nonexecutive Directors together. Issues discussed included feedback on Board issues, topics for pre-Board presentations,
non-executive Director training requirements and the results of the performance evaluation of the Board. In addition,
the non-executive Directors, led by the Senior Independent Director, also met without the Chairman present to
appraise the Chairman’s performance and to discuss other topical issues such as succession plans and the overall
performance of the Board.
The Board carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance and of its committees and individual Directors by
way of a detailed questionnaire and interviews carried out by the Company Secretary. The findings were presented to
the Board and, as a result, a number of improvements are being made such as ensuring more information is provided in
Board packs on competitor activity and more detailed discussions on succession planning. The Senior Independent
Director carried out a formal appraisal of the Chairman’s performance.
Board Committees
The Board has formally constituted six committees, being the Audit, Investment, Nomination, Remuneration, Risk
and Urgent Issues Committees. The membership and terms of reference of the Board committees are reviewed at least
annually and are available on request and on the Company’s website.
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Board Meetings and Attendance
The attendance of the individual Directors at Board and Committee meetings during 2007 was as follows:

Sarah Bates
David Bellamy
Andrew Croft
Jo Dawson
Ian Gascoigne
Simon Gulliford
Andy Hornby
Derek Netherton
Mike Power
Michael Sorkin
Roger Walsom
Mike Wilson

Board
(7 meetings)
7
7
7
7
7
6
7
6
7
6
6
7

Risk
Audit
(5 meetings) (5 meetings)
5
5
5
5
2
4
-

Remuneration
(3 meetings)
3
3
3
-

Nomination
(2 meetings)
2
2
2

Investment
(6 meetings)
6
4(4)
3(4)
-

Figures in brackets indicate the maximum number of meetings in the period in which the Director was a Board or
Committee member. David Lamb was appointed an executive Director on 3 December 2007, after the last Board
meeting of the year. He has not, therefore, been included for the purposes of the above table, however he is a member
of the Investment Commitee and attended all meetings during the year. David Bellamy and Ian Gascoigne attend Risk
Committee meetings. Mike Wilson and David Bellamy also attend Remuneration Committee meetings as required.
Audit Committee
Members: Derek Netherton (Chairman), Michael Sorkin and Mike Power
The Audit Committee comprises solely independent non-executive Directors. All of the Committee members held
office throughout the year and at the date of this report and have considerable financial experience, as can be seen from
their biographies on pages 27 to 29. During the year, the Committee invited the Finance Director, the Group Risk
Director, members of the Internal Audit and Risk Management team, an HBOS representative and the external
auditor to attend meetings. The Committee also received further training on IFRS during the year. The terms of
reference of the Committee can be found on the corporate website and a summary is set out below:
• to examine any matters relating to the financial affairs of the Group, including reviewing and advising the Board
on the Company’s interim and annual financial statements, its accounting policies and compliance with
accounting standards;
• to review the nature and scope of the work to be performed by the external auditors, the results of the audit work
and the responses of management;
• to make recommendations on the appointment and remuneration of the external auditors and to monitor their
performance;
• to review any non-audit services provided by the external auditors and to maintain responsibility for ensuring the
independence, cost effectiveness and objectivity of the external auditors;
• to monitor and oversee the Group’s internal control procedures and risk management processes;
• to approve the internal audit plan for the year and review reports on the results of such internal audits including
the response of management;
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• to review the activities, resources, organisational structure and operational effectiveness of the internal
audit function;
• to receive reports from the internal audit function on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s
control framework;
• to carry out an annual review of the Group’s system of internal control; and
• to assess the appropriateness of the Group’s ‘whistleblowing’ procedures.
During the year, the Committee formally reviewed and considered the following:
• the draft interim and annual reports and associated preliminary and interim announcements, focussing on key areas
of judgement and accounting policies;
• reports of the Risk Management and Internal Audit functions and findings of the external auditor;
• at each meeting a progress report on the internal audit plan and regular updates on the implementation of that plan;
• an annual review of the Group’s system of internal control;
• the performance of the external auditor;
• the appropriateness of the Group’s ‘whistleblowing’ policy and HBOS related party transactions; and
• the outcome of SJP UK plc’s Individual Capital Assessment.
The Audit Committee annually reviews the auditors’ independence and the services provided by the external auditors.
In order to ensure auditor objectivity and independence, the Committee has established a financial limit of £100,000
on the fees that can be paid to the external auditors in respect of non-audit advice and consultancy work. Details of the
amounts paid to the external auditors during the year for audit and other services are set out in the Notes to the
Accounts on page 82.
Remuneration Committee
Members: Michael Sorkin (Chairman), Derek Netherton and Roger Walsom.
The Remuneration Committee comprises solely independent non-executive Directors. Michael Sorkin, Simon
Gulliford and Derek Netherton held office during the year. Simon Gulliford resigned as a non-executive Director and
member of the Committee in February 2008 and Roger Walsom has been apointed to serve on the Committee as
Simon’s replacement. The terms of reference of the Committee can be found on the corporate website and a summary
is set out below:
• to determine all remuneration for executive Directors and senior management;
• to determine the discretionary bonus scheme for executive Directors and to review the performance of the
Directors against the scheme;
• to determine appropriate incentives to executive Directors to encourage enhanced performance including grants of
options or awards of shares and determining the policy and performance conditions of such grants or awards;
• to determine the policy for and scope of termination payments and severance terms for executive Directors; and
• to be responsible for selecting, appointing and setting the terms of reference for any remuneration consultants who
advise the Committee.
Further details on the work of the Committee are set out in the Remuneration Report on page 48.
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Nomination Committee
Members: Michael Sorkin (Chairman), Derek Netherton and Mike Wilson
In January 2007, Mike Wilson stepped down as Chairman of the Committee and was succeeded by Michael Sorkin.
Simon Gulliford resigned as a non-executive Director and member of the Committee in February 2008 and Derek
Netherton has been appointed to serve on the Committee as Simon’s replacement. The Committee’s terms of
reference can be found on the corporate website and a summary is set out below:
• to review the structure, size and composition of the Board and evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and
experience required for a role and the preparation of a description of any new role and the capabilities required;
• to consider new appointments and to make recommendations on suitable candidates to the Board; and
• to consider succession planning for senior executive positions and the need for the progressive refreshing of
the Board.
During the year, the Committee played a lead role in evaluating suitable candidates for the post of Chief Executive. An
external consultancy was appointed to assist with the search and helped the Committee to define and agree a set of
objective criteria on which the merits of each candidate were then assessed. Following a thorough process during
which a number of external candidates were identified and interviewed, the Committee recommended to the Board
the appointment of David Bellamy to the role. This decision was considered and ratified by the full Board in May 2007.
In addition, the Committee considered and advised the Board on the appointment of David Lamb, Group Business
Development Director, as an executive Director to the Board, following a review of the size, structure and
composition of the Board. The Committee will also in due course, consider suitable non-executive candidates to fill
the post recently vacated by Simon Gulliford. The Committee also reviewed the succession plans for Board and senior
management and considered the results of the staff survey.
Risk Committee
Members: Mike Power (Chairman), Sarah Bates and Roger Walsom.
During 2007, the Chief Executive, Group Sales Director, Group Risk Director, members of the Internal Audit and
Risk Management team and an HBOS representative were all invited by the Chairman to attend meetings.
The terms of reference of the Committee can be found on the Company’s website and a summary is set out below:
• to foster a culture of effective risk identification and management throughout the Group;
• to review the material and emerging risks affecting the Group and to call for reports from management on how
material risks are being managed;
• to report to the Audit Committee and the Board on any material areas of concern or weakness identified by the
Committee;
• to review and approve the Group’s Risk Appetite Statement and risk policies;
• to carry out an annual review of the procedures for the identification, recording and mitigation of material risks
across the Group; and
• to make recommendations for changes in risk related practices or procedures.
During the year, the Committee received regular updates by senior executives on risk identification and mitigation
within specific areas of the business, including Risk Management structures relating to the financial advice provided
by the St. James’s Place Partnership and the Group’s compliance arrangements. In addition, the Committee
considered the arrangements in place for Business Continuity Planning.
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The Committee also formally reviewed and considered the following:
• the emerging, topical and corporate risks;
• reports from operational compliance on Risk Management;
• the annual Risk Appetite Statement;
• risk reports from the Irish life company St. James’s Place International plc;
• the annual Money Laundering Reporting Officer s report;
• SJP UK plc’s Individual Capital Assessment; and
• the Internal Audit plan.
Investment Committee
Members: Sir Mark Weinberg (Chairman), Sarah Bates, Andrew Croft, David Lamb and Michael Sorkin
Sir Mark Weinberg and Sarah Bates held office th oughout the year. Mark Lund was a Committee member until his
resignation on 4 J anuary 2007. Andrew Croft, David Lamb and Mic hael Sorkin were appointed member s of the
Committee during the year. Various members of the Asset Management team and advisers from Stamford Associates
were all invited to attend meetings during the year by the Chairman. The Committee’s main responsibilities are:
• to oversee the Group’s investment management approach;
• to monitor the performance and suitability of the fund managers and to ensure that they follow the terms of their
agreements with the Group;
• to make recommendations in relation to the appointment or removal of fund managers;
• to oversee market risk; and
• to consider and make recommendations in relation to the appointment and the continued effectiveness of the
investment consultant.
In 2007, the Committee continued to monitor the Gr oup’s existing investment managers and focused on the k ey
issue of div ersific tion in order to r educe risk for in vestors. During the y ear, the Committee for mally reviewed
and considered:
• the appointment of four new managers to run a range of newly created funds investing in different assets with
different risk attributes;
• the replacement of a European equity manager with a new manager; and
• holding face-to-face reporting sessions with each fund manager on a regular basis throughout the year, giving
members the opportunity to question them closely.
A copy of the Repor t of the Investment Committee 2007, which gives more details on the w ork of the Investment
Committee, can be obtained by contacting the Company.
Urgent Issues Committee
Comprising the Chairman and at least two other Directors, one of whom must be a non-executive Director, the role of
the Urgent Issues Committee is to make decisions on matters of urgency which cannot await the next meeting of the
Board. It can act only by unanimous decision. If this cannot be reached, the issue under consideration will be referred
for decision to the full Board.The Committee did not meet during 2007.
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Directors’ and Officers’ Indemnity and Insurance
The Group has taken out insurance covering Directors and officers against liabilities they may incur in their capacity as
Directors or officers. During the year, members of the Board and other senior employees who act as Directors of
subsidiary companies were each granted indemnities from the Company to the extent permitted by law. These
indemnities are uncapped in amount and protect recipients from certain losses and liabilities that they may incur to
third parties in connection with the furtherance of their duties as Directors or employees of the Company or its
subsidiaries. Copies of the indemnities are available to the shareholders upon request.
Relations with Shareholders
The Board maintains close relationships with institutional shareholders through dialogue and frequent meetings.
In addition, there are regular meetings with the Company’s brokers, JPMorgan Cazenove and Dresdner Kleinwort,
who facilitate meetings with other investors and their representatives. Attendance notes from such meetings are
circulated to members of the Board so they are aware of the views of major shareholders. The Senior Independent
Director is available for consultation with shareholders should the need arise. Non-executive Directors are also
available to meet with major shareholders on request.
Members of the Board will be available at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting to answer shareholders’ questions
on the Group’s plans and strategy and the activities of the Board and its Committees.
Relationship with HBOS plc
The Company and Halifax Group plc entered into a Relationship Agreement in order to regulate the relationship
between the two companies after the completion of the Partial Offer in June 2000. The Relationship Agreement was
novated to HBOS plc following the merger of Halifax and Bank of Scotland in 2001.
The principal purpose of the Relationship Agreement is to ensure that the Company can operate independently of the
HBOS group and to provide that the relationship between members of the HBOS group and the SJP Group will be
conducted on an arm’s length basis. Under the Agreement, HBOS has power to appoint a number of Directors to the
Board and its Committees. The number varies in relation to HBOS’ shareholding in the Company and HBOS currently
has the right to appoint three non-executive Directors to the Board. As at the date of this report, HBOS has appointed
two non-executive Directors to the SJP Board, being Jo Dawson and Andy Hornby.
Risk & Risk Management
Introduction
The mechanisms for identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring risk are an integral part of SJP’s management
process. Understanding the risks we face and managing them appropriately enables effective decision making and helps
us to achieve our business objectives.
As shareholders will appreciate, however, like any successful business we must take some risk, and where we do this
we seek to manage our exposure in accordance with our Risk Appetite Statement as described on the following page.
The information contained opposite in The Risk Management Framework and Principal Risks & Uncertainties sections
is an integral part of the audited financial statements.

42 St. James’s Place plc Report & Accounts 2007

211729 SJP R&A 2007 txt:JR0530 Report & Accounts 2007

16/3/08

11:12

Page 43

Corporate Governance Report
(continued)

The Risk Management Framework
The Board is ultimately responsible for setting the framework within which risk is managed at SJP. At the hub of this
framework is our Risk Appetite Statement.
Through our Risk Appetite Statement, the Board clearly sets out the ‘risk boundaries’, by specifying the types of risks
the Group is willing to take and to what extent. The Statement is regularly reviewed and updated by the Board to
ensure that it remains current and continues to take account of any emerging or topical risk.
For example, our Risk Appetite Statement currently explicitly precludes the Group from:
• the manufacture of, or provision of advice on, products which promise guaranteed investment returns;
• taking any credit or insurance related risks through the manufacture of general insurance or lending products; and
• the sale of with-profits business.
Supporting the implementation of our Risk Appetite Statement, we have a formal risk policy, which clearly sets out
our objectives, principles and high level roles and responsibilities in relation to risk management. This policy
underpins the deployment of sound risk management throughout the organisation and does so via a range of individual
sub-risk policies and processes in areas including insurance risk, market risk, credit risk, group risk and liquidity risk.
High level oversight of our Risk Management Systems is provided by the Risk Committee of the Board. The
Committee is responsible for ensuring that a culture of effective risk identification and management is fostered across
the Group and it reviews and assesses corporate and emerging risks. Further information on the Risk Committee is set
out on pages 40 and 41.
At an operating level, all key business divisions across the Group are required to maintain risk schedules which record
specific risks and vulnerabilities to which they may be exposed, as well as providing detail on how these vulnerabilities
are being managed and whether the exposure is increasing or decreasing. Production and maintenance of these
schedules is the responsibility of individual business areas, with new or emerging risks being reported to, and
challenged by, the Executive Committee on a bi-monthly basis.
Sitting alongside all of the above elements of the risk framework, we also have a central Group Risk function whose
primary role is to ensure that an appropriate Risk Management System is in place, that it is fit for purpose and is working
as intended. It is responsible for the ongoing development and co-ordination of risk management and, importantly, for
the consolidation, reporting and, where appropriate, escalation of risk related management information.
Principal Risks & Uncertainties
The principal risks facing the Group are considered to be inherent within both our business model and the market
environment within which we operate. At the time of preparing this report, the principal risks and uncertainties facing
the business and the high level controls and processes in place by which we aim to mitigate those risks are (over page):
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Business Model Risks

Mitigation

That the Group’s distribution strength may be eroded due to an
inability to recruit and retain Partners of the appropriate quality.

We employ a number of specialist managers specifically to
manage the recruitment and retention of high quality Partners.
Formal retention strategies are in place to ensure that, wherever
possible, we retain good quality, experienced Partners. All
recruitment and retention activity is closely monitored.

That our approach to investment management may fail to deliver
expected results to clients of the Group.

We actively manage and monitor the performance of
our investment managers through the Investment Committee and
a firm of professional external advisers – Stamford Associates.
We are able to, and do, react swiftly to poor fund performance
and we replace underperforming fund managers where this is felt
appropriate.

That the Group may face regulatory censure should it fail to
comply with historic, current or future regulation.

We seek to maintain open and mutually beneficial relationships
with our regulators. Via our Group Risk Department, we have a
range of compliance monitoring activities designed to ensure we
remain compliant with applicable regulations.

That the Group’s outsourcing dependent business model may
come under threat should any of its key investment management
or administration business partners decide to exit or significantly
revise their strategy.

We maintain close working relationships with our outsourced
business partners and should have sufficient warning of any
material changes that may impact upon our business model.
All relationships are governed by formal agreements with
adequate notice periods and full exit management plans. Strong
alternative providers exist in the market.

That a major and successful new entrant to the adviser-based mass
wealth management market has an impact on the key drivers of
SJP’s business.

We closely monitor competitor activity and the marketplace for
signs of any potential new entrants or threats. As noted above, we
also have a proven track record in Partner acquisition and
retention over the last 15 years which we believe would make it
difficult for a new entrant to challenge SJP’s position. Established
SJP Partners have significant equity stakes in their practices and
these are structured to aid retention.

That developments in the industry or in the scale of SJP’s business
have an adverse effect on SJP’s culture and ultimately the
continuing success of the business.

We have a range of strategic initiatives in place including, for
example, regular staff surveys and consultation groups which
enable us to monitor the sentiment of our staff and advisers and
identify any adverse or potential adverse impacts upon our
culture.

Market Environment Risks
That changes in the wider regulatory, legislative or tax
environment in which the Group operates ultimately lead to a
significant decline in new business volumes.

That a major and prolonged economic downturn and/or stock
market crash leads to a failure to meet targets and to a significant
underperformance of our business plan.

Where appropriate, we maintain dialogue with the UK Financial
Services Authority (FSA), the Irish Financial Regulator and other
key industry bodies on proposed or potential changes which may
affect SJP’s business model. Where necessary, we will develop
alternative strategies to minimise the impact of any changes.
We closely monitor the performance of our business plan, the
performance of the markets and consumer confidence. Robust
management information is used to facilitate this monitoring and
to identify early signals of a market decline.
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Internal Control
The Directors are responsible for the Group’s system of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness. This
includes a responsibility for financial, operational and compliance controls in managing the risks inherent in the
business. The Audit and Risk Committees of the Board along with the appropriately staffed and qualified Internal
Audit, Risk Management and Compliance functions support the Directors in the discharge of these responsibilities.
The Group has fully complied with provision C.2.1 of the Combined Code throughout the financial year and up to the
date of approval of the Annual Report and Accounts.
In accordance with the Turnbull Guidance on Internal Control, the Directors and senior managers of the Group are
committed to maintaining a strong control culture within all business areas and have established processes for
evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the Group. Adherence to regulatory codes of conduct is required
at all times and the Board actively promotes a culture of quality and integrity. In addition to these ongoing procedures,
the Audit Committee conducts an annual review that considers the effectiveness of the Group’s systems of internal
control including financial, operational, compliance and other risk management systems. The review also includes the
nature and scope of the ongoing monitoring processes, including the effectiveness of the internal audit function, and
the potential impact on these processes as a result of any changes during the year to the risks that the Group faces.
When control issues of significance have occurred the Audit Committee has received full and detailed reports from
management and internal audit, including proposals for amending and strengthening the business systems involved in
line with the Group’s focus on continuous improvement. Where appropriate, such cases have been taken forward to
the Board by the Chairman of the Audit Committee for noting and discussion.
In establishing the system of internal control, the Directors have regard to materiality of relevant risks, the likelihood
of risks occurring and the cost of mitigating risks. It is therefore designed to manage, rather than eliminate risks and as
such can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
In the Board’s view, the information it has received from entity wide risk assessment, operational management, and
the reports issued by the internal auditors was sufficient to enable it to properly review the effectiveness of the
Company’s system of internal control in accordance with the Guidance for Directors on Internal Control (Turnbull).
Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in Respect of the Report and Accounts and the Financial
Statements
The Directors are responsible for preparing the Report and Accounts and the Group and parent company financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.
Company law requires the Directors to prepare Group and parent company financial statements for each financial
year. Under that law they are required to prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the EU and applicable law and have elected to prepare the parent
company financial statements in accordance with UK Accounting Standards and applicable law (UK Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles).
The Group financial statements are required by law and IFRSs, as adopted by the EU, to present fairly the financial
position and the performance of the Group; the Companies Act 1985 provides that, in relation to such financial
statements that references in the relevant part of that Act to financial statements giving a true and fair view, are
references to their achieving a fair presentation.
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The parent company financial statements are required by law to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the parent company.
In preparing each of the Group and parent company financial statements, the Directors are required to:
• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
• make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
• for the Group financial statements, state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs adopted by
the EU;
• for the parent company financial statements, state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been
followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the parent company financial statements;
and
• prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group and
the parent company will continue in business.
The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the parent company and enable them to ensure that its financial statements comply with
the Companies Act 1985. They have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to
safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.
The Directors have chosen to prepare supplementary information in accordance with the European Embedded Value
Principles issued in May 2004 by the Chief Financial Officers Forum as supplemented by the Additional Guidance on
European Embedded Value Disclosures issued in October 2005 (“the EEV Principles”). When compliance with the
EEV Principles is stated, those principles require the Directors to prepare supplementary information in accordance
with the methodology contained in the EEV Principles and to disclose and explain any non-compliance with the EEV
Guidance included in the EEV Principles.
In preparing the EEV supplementary information, the Directors have:
• prepared the supplementary information in accordance with the EEV Principles;
• identified and described the business covered by the EEV Principles;
• applied the EEV Principles consistently to the covered business;
• determined assumptions on a realistic basis, having regard to past, current and expected future experience and to
any relevant external data, and then applied them consistently; and
• made estimates that are reasonable and consistent.
Under applicable law and regulations, the Directors are also responsible for preparing a Directors’ Report, Directors’
Remuneration Report and the Corporate Governance Statement that comply with that law and those regulations.
The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included
on the Company’s website. Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements
may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.
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Remuneration Report
The Directors have pleasure in presenting their Remuneration Report for the
financial year ended 31 December 2007. The Report will be put to shareholders for
approval at the forthcoming AGM. It also contains additional information required
by the FSA Listing Rules and the Combined Code on corporate governance.

The sections marked with an asterisk (“*”) are subject to audit by KPMG Audit Plc.
The Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee (the “Committee”), on behalf of the Board, determines the remuneration packages of
the executive Directors of the Company, including the Chairman. The Committee also monitors the remuneration of
the senior management team and oversees the operation of the executive long term incentive schemes.
Members of the Committee during the year were Michael Sorkin as Chairman, Derek Netherton and Simon Gulliford,
all of whom are independent non-executive Directors. Simon Gulliford resigned as a non-executive Director of the
Company in February 2008 and has been replaced on the Committee by Roger Walsom. The membership and terms
of reference of the Committee are reviewed at least annually and the terms of reference are available on request and on
the Company’s website. Details of the number of meetings of the Committee during the year can be found in the
Corporate Governance Report on page 38.
The Company Secretary, Hugh Gladman, acts as Secretary to the Committee, providing advice on corporate
governance, legal and regulatory issues and the design and operation of the long term incentive schemes. At the
Committee’s request, Committee meetings are also attended by other executives, in particular the Chairman and
Chief Executive, who may make recommendations to the Committee regarding changes to the remuneration packages
of individual Directors or policy generally. Such recommendations are discussed by the Committee and adopted or
amended as the Committee sees fit. No Director is present at any part of a meeting of the Committee when his own
remuneration or contractual terms are being discussed.
The Committee also has access, as required, to professional advice and market data and this was provided by New
Bridge Street Consultants LLP (“NBSC”) in 2007. NBSC was appointed by the Committee to provide advice and data
on executive remuneration, long term incentives and other remuneration issues and they have not provided any other
services to the Company.
Remuneration Policy
The Committee applies the principles set out in the Combined Code when setting remuneration policy.
The remuneration policy, as approved by the Committee, is designed to ensure that remuneration is sufficiently
competitive to attract, retain and motivate executive Directors of sufficient calibre to enable the Group to achieve its
business objectives.
The Committee aims to set fixed benefits (salary, pension and fringe benefits) at below the median position for
companies of a similar size in the UK financial services market (although a cross check is also made against companies
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of a similar size in other sectors), with significant annual bonus and long term incentive awards enhancing an
executive’s potential total remuneration to on or above the median, but only if stretching short term and long term
performance targets are achieved. In this way, the Committee aims to incentivise the Directors to achieve above
average results compared with competitor organisations. The incentive schemes are designed to be retentive in nature
as well as linking the value of an award to movements in the share price, in line with shareholder interests. Based
on data provided by NBSC, approximately 50-55% of the total remuneration of the executive Directors is
performance related, except for Mike Wilson, the Chairman, where approximately 40% of his total remuneration is
performance related.
The full-time executive Chairman, Mike Wilson, does not participate in the annual bonus scheme. He does however,
participate in the long term incentive scheme (the Performance Share Plan), as this plan focuses on long term value
creation (rather than the more operationally focussed annual bonus plan). Any shares in the Company which vest to
Mike Wilson will be retained by him until he ceases to be a Director of the Company, less any shares required to meet
a tax liability on vesting.
The Committee also operates shareholding guidelines for the executive Directors, whereby as and when awards vest
under the Performance Share Plan or other long term incentive schemes, the executive Directors are required to
retain no fewer than 50% of the vested shares, less any shares required to pay any tax liability which arises on vesting,
until such time as a shareholding equivalent to 100% of base salary has been achieved.
The Committee has followed the provisions of Schedule A to the Combined Code in designing schemes of
performance-related remuneration. Further details of all of the above elements of remuneration are set out below.
Salaries
Salaries are reviewed annually in January, using comparative company data provided by NBSC. As stated above, the
Committee aims to set fixed benefits (salary, pension and fringe benefits) below the median position for companies of
a similar size in the UK financial services market (with a cross check with other sectors), with adjustments then being
made to take into account the responsibility and accountabilities of each role, the experience of the relevant individual
and any other relevant factors. On this basis, the Committee approved the following salary increases for the executive
Directors with effect from 1 January 2008:
David Bellamy
Ian Gascoigne
Andrew Croft
David Lamb
Mike Wilson

New Salary
£425,000
£320,000
£320,000
£250,000
£525,000

Previous Salary
£400,000
£300,000
£300,000
£200,000
£500,000

In respect of David Bellamy, Ian Gascoigne and Andrew Croft, the above new salaries, when taken together with
pension and other fringe benefits, are below the median, based on the comparator data provided by NSBC and the
increases are considered appropriate after taking account of performance and increased experience of the individual.
For David Lamb, his new salary has been consciously positioned below the median in light of his recent appointment to
the Board, although the Committee expects his salary to increase over time to a market level as he becomes more
experienced in the role. With respect to the Chairman, an increase was considered appropriate by the Committee
after reviewing market data for comparable roles and recognising that his salary had not been changed for three years.
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Annual Bonus
For 2008, as in previous years, the Committee has determined that the maximum annual bonus will be 120% of salary,
with half of any bonus award payable in cash, the remainder being invested in the Company’s shares and deferred for
three years.
Taking the cash and shares element of the bonus together, up to 80% of salary will be awarded by reference to the
performance of the Group, largely based on growth in European Embedded Value operating profit before tax,
although the Committee retains the discretion to amend the bonus, up or down, to take into account other relevant
factors such as the Group’s performance compared with competitor organisations, regulatory issues, overall client
satisfaction and completion of other business plan objectives. Up to a further 40% of salary will be awarded by
reference to the personal performance of the executive Director.
The operating profit target set by the Committee is based on a sliding scale, to progressively reward incremental
performance. The range of operating profit before tax for the 2008 bonus represents a significant increase from the
actual level of operating profit before tax achieved in 2007, after excluding the benefit of the positive experience
variance on 2007.
The Committee is also able to take into account the performance of the Group on environmental, social and
governance (ESG) matters when assessing the bonus to be paid to the executive Directors. The Committee believes
that the Group’s remuneration structure helps to alleviate ESG risks affecting the Group.
No executive Director has a contractual right to receive an annual bonus award. The satisfaction of the targets
is assessed by reference to the Company’s internal management information systems verified by the Committee,
which the Committee believes is the most appropriate method, given the internal nature of the performance targets.
Mike Wilson does not participate in the annual bonus scheme.
The Committee believes that the annual bonus scheme is an effective incentive for the executive Directors, whilst at
the same time offering strong retentive characteristics through the deferred element which normally lapses if an
executive leaves the Group, as well as being aligned with shareholder interests due to the value of the deferred element
of the award on vesting being dependent on share price performance.
Long Term Incentive Schemes
All UK employees of the Group, including the executive Directors, are eligible to enter into a Save As You Earn
(SAYE) contract, under which they are able to save up to £250 per month, and at the end of a three year savings period
acquire shares in the Company at a price not less than 80 per cent of the market price of SJP shares at the date of the
invitation to participate.
The sole long term incentive plan operated by the Company is the Performance Share Plan (PSP). Under this Plan, the
Committee may make awards of performance shares to the executive Directors, which vest after three years, subject
to the achievement of challenging performance conditions. The PSP is also used to make awards to other senior
managers within the Group.
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The Committee reviewed the grant levels and the performance conditions in January 2008 and, after the higher grant
level of 175% of salary in 2007, decided to revert to the ongoing policy of making annual PSP awards to the executive
Directors with a value representing 150% of base salary, subject to the same mix of EPS and TSR performance
conditions as in 2007. For 2008 awards under the PSP, two-thirds of the shares are subject to an earnings growth
condition and one-third of the shares are subject to a comparative Total Shareholder Return (‘TSR’) condition, both
measured over a single three-year period. Awards vest after three years subject to the achievement of the performance
conditions and continued employment. The Committee believes that this provides an appropriate balance of targets
that both incentivise the executives to achieve stretching long term financial performance targets, whilst also keeping
their interests aligned with those of shareholders.
Earnings per share is calculated by reference to adjusted consolidated profit after tax on the European Embedded
Value (EEV) basis of accounting for both the life and unit trust businesses (on a fully diluted per share basis). The
adjustment to the consolidated after tax figures will be to strip out the EEV investment variance and any economic
assumption change. Shareholders will appreciate that these factors are not within the control of management and
produce wide variations in reported earnings due to stock market fluctuations.
For the awards made in 2008, the two-thirds of the shares based on earnings will vest if the following growth targets
are achieved:
Average annual earnings growth
Below RPI +7%
RPI +7%
RPI +16% or more
Between the above points

Proportion exercisable
Zero
25%
100%
Pro rata between 25% and 100%

The Committee assessed these thresholds and believe them to be suitably demanding in the context of the prospects of
the Company and the current operating environment. The Committee decided to reduce the earnings growth scale
from RPI +8 to 18% in 2007 to RPI +7 to 16% for 2008 after taking account of the challenging trading environment
caused by recent market instability and concerns over the availability of credit. In addition, the 2007 year end earnings
figure represented outstanding performance and results in a higher base from which to grow earnings in the future.
The Committee believes the new earnings growth scale to be no less demanding for the executives, in the
circumstances, as the scales applicable in previous years.
For the one third of shares based on TSR, these will vest (as for awards made in 2007) as follows:
Company’s ranking compared to comparator group #
at end of performance period
Below median
Median
Upper quartile
Between the above points

Proportion exercisable
Zero
25%
100%
Pro rata

Details of the awards made under the PSP are set out on page 56.
# The comparator group comprises: Aberdeen Asset Management, Aviva, Bradford & Bingley, Close Brothers, F&C Asset Management,
Friends Provident, Henderson Group, Investec, Legal & General, New Star Asset Management, Old Mutual, Prudential, Hargreaves
Lansdown, Rathbone Brothers, Schroders and Standard Life. These companies were selected by the Committee as a result of having
business interests reasonably comparable with those of the St. James’s Place Group.
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Pension and Death in Service Benefits
In 2007 employer contributions of 20% of base salary were made to the money purchase Group personal pension for
the executive Directors, except for Mike Wilson who received the relevant amount as additional salary due to the
pension cap.
The costs of the pension and death in service arrangements for the executive Directors during the year ended
31 December 2007 are shown on page 55.
Service Agreements
It is the Committee’s policy that service agreements should not contain notice periods in excess of one year. The terms
and conditions of the Directors ’ service agreements are reviewed regularly and all service agreements contain an
express obligation on the executive to mitigate his loss in the event the agreement is terminated. In addition, the
Company reserves the right to pay an amount representing the value of salary and benefits in lieu of any outstanding
period of notice on a monthly basis so that, should the executive obtain alternative employment during the notice
period, the monthly payments can be reduced to take into account any earnings received under the new employment.
When considering the size of any proposed termination payment, the Committee would take into account a number of
factors including the health, length of service, age and the performance of the relevant executive, including the duty to
mitigate his own loss, with a broad aim to avoid rewarding poor performance while dealing fairly with cases where the
departure is due to other reasons, for example illness.
All of the executive Directors have entered into a service agreement with the Company. Each service agreement can
be terminated, inter alia, by either party giving the other not less than twelve months’ written notice. The agreements
automatically terminate on the 65th birthday of the executive, except for Mike Wilson, whose agreement terminates
on 31 December 2011, as explained in the Chief Executive’s Statement on page 7. All the service agreements provide
for benefits in kind, including life assurance, pension provision, private health insurance and a company car. Mike
Wilson and David Bellamy are also entitled to a chauffeur.
Further details of the service agreements of the executive Directors are provided below:
Executive
Mike Wilson
David Bellamy
Ian Gascoigne
David Lamb
Andrew Croft

Date of contract

Base salary

27 May 2005
8 August 2006
8 August 2006
8 August 2006
8 August 2006

£525,000
£425,000
£320,000
£250,000
£320,000

Date contract
automatically
terminates
31 December 2011
15 April 2018
7 July 2021
31 January 2022
11 June 2029

Currently, no executive Director acts as a non-executive Director on the Board of another listed company.
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Non-executive Directors
The remuneration of the non-executive Directors is determined by the Board as a whole, within the limits set by the
provisions of the Articles of Association. A basic annual fee of £25,000 per annum was paid to the non-executive
Directors in 2007, with additional fees being paid in respect of Board Committee and other responsibilities. The Board
reviewed the fees paid to the non-executive Directors in January 2008, with the help of comparative data provided
by NBSC. It was decided to retain the basic annual fee of £25,000 but increase the fees paid for Committee and
other responsibilities.
Set out below are the annual fees paid to the non-executive Directors in 2007 and those currently payable in relation
to 2008:
Director
Sarah Bates
Jo Dawson#
Andy Hornby#
Derek Netherton
Mike Power
Michael Sorkin
Roger Walsom

2007 fee
£
50,000
25,000
25,000
47,500
52,500
67,500
35,000

2008 fee
£
55,000
25,000
25,000
55,000
58,000
72,500
43,000

Date of Letter of
Appointment
26 July 2004
31 May 2006
31 May 2006
15 Mar 1999
22 April 2005
16 Oct 2001
21July 2005

Year of re-election
at AGM
2008
2010
2010
2008
2009
2008
2009

Notes:
(i) Fees to Directors marked with # are payable directly to HBOS plc.
(ii) Simon Gulliford was paid a non-executive fee of £37,500 in 2007.

The non-executive Directors do not have service contracts or any benefits in kind arrangements and do not participate
in any of the Group’s pension or long term incentive arrangements. The term of the appointment of each nonexecutive Director (other than those appointed by HBOS plc pursuant to the Relationship Agreement described more
fully on page 42) is for three years, terminating on the date on which the non-executive Director is required to retire
by rotation at the AGM, at which time the appointment will be reviewed by the Board. Any period of service longer
than six years is subject to particularly rigorous review by the Nominations Committee of the Board.
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Performance Graph
The graph below, prepared in accordance with the Companies Acts, shows a comparison of the Company’s TSR
performance against the FTSE All-Share index over the last five financial years. The Company considers this to be the
most appropriate comparative index, given the broad nature of the index and the companies within it.
St. James’s Place – Net Total Return
FTSE All-Share – Net Total Return
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200
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-50
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Directors’ Remuneration *
Total Directors’ remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2007 is shown below, with comparative figures for
the year ended 31 December 2006:
Year Ended
31 December 2007
£

Year Ended
31 December 2006
£

340,000

270,000

Emoluments to executive Directors‡

3,598,406

3,106,401

Aggregate gains on exercise of share options

5,383,506

4,251,662

388,178

348,600

9,710,090

7,976,663

Aggregate emoluments
Fees to non-executive Directors

Company contributions to money purchase
pension schemes – see note (iii) to the table opposite

‡

Consists of the emoluments of the executive Directors and includes the compensation for loss of office for Mark Lund in respectof his contractual and statutory rights
as detailed in note (v) of the table opposite.
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The following table, which has been prepared in accordance with regulatory requirements, sets out the elements
of Directors’ aggregate emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2007 or for the period ended 31 December 2007
if appointed during the year.
Director

Sarah Bates
David Bellamy
Andrew Croft
Jo Dawson
Ian Gascoigne
Simon Gulliford
Andy Hornby
David Lamb
Mark Lund (v)
Derek Netherton
Mike Power
Michael Sorkin
Roger Walsom
Mike Wilson

Salaries & Fees

Bonus

Deferred
Bonus

Death In Service
& Other Benefits

£
50,000
400,000
300,000
25,000
300,000
37,500
25,000
15,890
425,000
47,500
52,500
67,500
35,000
500,000

£
240,000
180,000
180,000
9,137
-

£
240,000
180,000
180,000
9,137
-

£
37,368
29,281
31,230
2,893
12,937
46,494

2007
Aggregate
Emoluments
£
50,000
917,368
689,281
25,000
691,230
37,500
25,000
37,057
437,937
47,500
52,500
67,500
35,000
546,494

2006
Aggregate
Emoluments
£
40,000
647,047
597,434
11,726
647,646
32,500
11,726
676,463
40,000
47,500
40,000
30,000
537,811

Notes:
(i) Death in service and other benefits comprise the entitlement to company car or cash equivalent, fuel, private health care, l ife and critical illness cover and are
generally the amounts which are returned for taxation purposes.
(ii) The fees in respect of the services of Jo Dawson and Andy Hornby were paid directly to HBOS plc.
(iii) Company contributions to money purchase pension schemes for David Bellamy, Andrew Croft, Ian Gascoigne, David Lamb and Mar
k Lund were £80,000, £60,000,
£60,000, £3,178 and £85,000 respectively. No other Directors had any such contributions made on their behalf. Mike Wilson’s c
ontributions amounting to
£100,000 were paid as additional salary due to the pensions cap.
(iv) For the annual discretionary bonus in 2007, executive Directors could earn up to 80% of salary by reference to Group perfor mance based on growth in pre-tax
operating profit and other business plan targets set at the start of the year, including growth in the net manpower of the Part
nership, growth in the productivity of the
Partnership and the successful launch of various initiatives such as new funds and other services to further develop the Group’ s unique approach to investment
management. A further payment of up to 40% of salary could be earned by reference to individual performance (both individuallyand as a team), based on personal
objectives set at the start of the year and the executive’s performance generally in 2007.
The Remuneration Committee met in January 2008 to review the performance of the Group and the executives against the objectives set at the start of the year.
In light of the performance of the Group in 2007, including the achievement of all major objectives, the Committee awarded themaximum bonus of 120% of salary
to David Bellamy, Andrew Croft and Ian Gascoigne and 115% of salary to David Lamb, 50% of which was payable in cash and the remaining 50% used to purchase
deferred shares which vest in three years, subject to continued employment. Further details of the annual bonus scheme can beound
f on page 50.
(v) The Board and Mark Lund (the former CEO of the Company) agreed that Mark Lund would leave the Group on 4 January 2007 so tha t Mark could seek a fresh
challenge. Under the terms of the agreement between the Company and Mark Lund, the Company paid to Mark Lund the sum of £716,97 6 as compensation for
loss of office in respect of his contractual and statutory rights, with part of the said payment being made by monthly instalme nts in accordance with his service
agreement, subject to Mark Lund’s express duty to mitigate his loss. In addition, Mark Lund was able to vest a total of 115,931 SJP ordinary shares in accordance
with the terms of the SJP deferred bonus scheme (as the shares were considered to have been’earned’ as part of the annual bonus ). Finally Mark Lund was able to
exercise options over 744,958 SJP ordinary shares granted to him in February 2004 in accordance with the terms of the executive share option scheme with the
remaining 5,042 shares lapsing under the terms of the said scheme on his resignation date on 4 January 2007. Mark Lund’s awards over 459,228 and 11,354 SJP
shares under the Performance Share Plan and SAYE schemes respectively lapsed and ceased to be capable of vesting on 4 January007.
2
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Share Awards
The tables below set out details of share awards that have been granted to individuals who were Directors during
2007 and which had yet to vest at some point during the year.
Performance Share Plan – awards held during 2007 *
Director
David Bellamy

Andrew Croft
Ian Gascoigne
David Lamb†
Mark Lund (iii)
Mike Wilson

Balance at
1 January
2007 (i)
170,648
131,661
156,996
121,316
170,648
131,661
61,433
42,319
43,644
259,385
199,843
341,296
235,109
-

Granted
in year

Exercised
in year

(ii)

114,566
40,276
114,566
114,566
190,943

-

Balance at
31 December
2007
170,648
131,661
114,566
40,276
156,996
121,316
114,566
170,648
131,661
114,566
61,433
42,319
43,644
341,296
235,109
190,943

Date from
which
exercisable
17 May 2008
2 Mar 2009
2 Mar 2010
7 Aug 2010
17 May 2008
2 Mar 2009
2 Mar 2010
17 May 2008
2 Mar 2009
2 Mar 2010
17 May 2008
2 Mar 2009
2 Mar 2010
17 May 2008
2 Mar 2009
17 May 2008
2 Mar 2009
2 Mar 2010

Expiry date
17 Nov 2008
2 Sept 2009
2 Sept 2010
7 Feb 2011
17 Nov 2008
2 Sept 2009
2 Sept 2010
17 Nov 2008
2 Sept 2009
2 Sept 2010
17 Nov 2008
2 Sept 2009
2 Sept 2010
17 Nov 2008
2 Sept 2009
17 Nov 2008
2 Sept 2009
2 Sept 2010

† David Lamb was appointed to the Board on 3 December 2007 and his opening balance is correct as at that date.
Notes:
(i) These awards were made on 17 May 2005 and 2 March 2006 when the share price was £2.1775 and £3.1675 respectively. The perfor
mance period is the three year
period ending on 31 December 2007 and 31 December 2008 respectively. The performance conditions relate to EPS for two-thirds of the award and TSR for onethird of the award, as more fully described on pages 50 and 51, except that for 2005 awards the EPS scale starts at RPI +12.5%
for 25% of the award to vest and ends
at RPI +22.5% for 100% of the award to vest, with pro-rata vesting between the said points. For the 2006 awards the EPS starts
at RPI +8% for 25% of the award to
vest and ends at RPI +18% for 100% of the award to vest, with pro-rata vesting between the said points.
(ii) These awards were made on 2 March 2007 when the share price was £4.42. David Bellamy received a further award on 7 August 0207 following his appointment as
Chief Executive when the share price was £4.26 per share. The performance period is the three year period ending on 31 December
2009. The performance
conditions relate to EPS for two-thirds of the award and TSR for one-third of the award, as more fully described on pages 50 an
d 51.
(iii) See note (v) on page 55.
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Deferred Bonus Scheme – shares held during 2007 *
The table below sets out details of the awards held by the Directors under the deferred element of the annual bonus
scheme during 2007:
Director
David Bellamy

Andrew Croft

Ian Gascoigne

David Lamb†
Mark Lund (v)
Mike Wilson

Balance at
1 January
2007
28,263
30,371
42,968
15,477
33,057
39,531
26,917
31,818
42,968
24,793
30,937
23,023
50,619
65,312
60,565
65,082

Released
during year
(i)
28,263
15,477
26,917
50,619
65,312
60,565
-

Granted
during year
(ii)
35,814
33,000
35,814
-

Balance at
31 December
2007
30,371
42,968
35,814
33,057
39,531
33,000
31,818
42,968
35,814
24,793
30,937
23,023
65,082

Vesting
Date
30 Mar 2007
29 Mar 2008
8 Mar 2009
9 Mar 2010
30 Mar 2007
29 Mar 2008
8 Mar 2009
9 Mar 2010
30 Mar 2007
29 Mar 2008
8 Mar 2009
9 Mar 2010
29 Mar 2008
8 Mar 2009
9 Mar 2010
29 Mar 2008
8 Mar 2009
30 Mar 2007
29 Mar 2008

† David Lamb was appointed to the board on 3 December 2007 and his opening balance is correct as at that date.
Notes:
(i) These deferred share awards were granted on 8 March 2004, equal in value to the executive’s 2003 annual cash bonus.
(ii) These deferred share awards were granted on 8 March 2007, equal in value to the executive’s 2006 annual cash bonus. These s hares will be held in trust for a
restricted period ending on 8 March 2010. The share price on 8 March 2007 was £4.42.
(iii) Outstanding awards at the year end relate to share awards granted in 2005, 2006 and 2007 (see (ii) above). The share priceat the date of the 2005 award (29 March
2005) was £2.42 and the share price at the date of the 2006 award (8 March 2006) was £3.20.
(iv) Further details of the deferred element of the annual bonus scheme are set out on page 50.
(v) See note (v) on page 55.
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Executive Share Option Schemes – options held during 2007 *
Details of the options held by the Directors in 2007 under the Company’s executive scheme and any movements
during the year are as follows:
Director

Options
held at
1 January
2007
David Bellamy
176,470
Andrew Croft
57,419
30,000
25,000
144,351
134,453
Ian Gascoigne
184,873
Mark Lund (iv)
750,000
Mike Wilson
378,151

Granted
in year

Exercised
in year
(i)

-

176,470
57,419
25,000
144,351
134,453
184,873
744,958
378,151

Options
held at
31 December
2007
30,000
-

Exercise
price

Date from
which
exercisable

Expiry date

£1.781/2
£1.33
£1.45
£1.45
£1.191/2
£1.781/2
£1.781/2
£1.781/2
£1.781/2

27 Feb 2007
1 July 2002
15 Mar 2007
28 Feb 2006
6 June 2006
27 Feb 2007
27 Feb 2007
27 Feb 2007
27 Feb 2007

27 Feb 2014
13 July 2007
15 Mar 2012
13 Dec 2010
6 June 2013
27 Feb 2014
27 Feb 2014
27 Feb 2014
27 Feb 2014

Notes:
(i) On 27 February 2007, David Bellamy, Andrew Croft, Ian Gascoigne and Mike Wilson exercised options at the option price per share as shown in the table above.
The market value of the shares on 27 February 2007 was £4.69. The aggregate gain on the exercise of these options was £3,318,12
0.
(ii) The exercise price corresponds with the market price (as defined in the Scheme rules) on the date on which the options were
granted. At 31 December 2007 the mid
market price for SJP shares was £2.76. The range of prices between 1 January 2007 and 31 December 2007 was between £2.56 and £4
.84.
(iii) For options granted in 2004, the Company’s EPS must grow by an average annual rate of RPI +3% to 5% over a fixed three year period for 33.33% to 100% of the
options to be exercisable.
(iv) See note (v) on page 55. The aggregate gain on the exercise of Mark Lund’s options was £2,065,386.
(v) David Lamb did not hold any executive options on his appointment to the Board on 3 December 2007.

SAYE Share Option Schemes – options held during 2007 *
Details of the options held by the Directors in 2007 under the SAYE scheme and the equivalent predecessor scheme
are as follows:
Director

Options
held at
1 January
2007
David Bellamy
22,812
Andrew Croft
3,831
Ian Gascoigne
David Lamb†
22,812
Mark Lund (i)
11,354
Mike Wilson
22,812

Granted
in year

Exercised
in year

2,554
-

-

Options
held at
31 December
2007
22,812
3,831
2,554
22,812
22,812

Exercise
price

Date from
which
exercisable

Expiry date

£0.72
£2.44
£3.70
£0.72
£1.44
£0.72

1 May 2008
1 May 2009
1 May 2010
1 May 2008
1 May 2009
1 May 2008

31 Oct 2008
31 Oct 2009
31 Oct 2010
31 Oct 2008
31 Oct 2009
31 Oct 2008

† David Lamb was appointed to the Board on 3 December 2007 and his opening balance is correct as at that date.
Notes:
(i) See note (v) on page 55.
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Share Interests
St. James’s Place plc *
The interests of the Directors in the share capital of the Company as at 1 January 2007 (or as at the date of
appointment, if applicable) and as at 31 December 2007 (or as at the date of resignation, if applicable) are given below:
Director

Sarah Bates
David Bellamy
Andrew Croft
Jo Dawson
Ian Gascoigne
Simon Gulliford
Andy Hornby
David Lamb†
Mark Lund (iii)
Derek Netherton
Mike Power
Michael Sorkin
Roger Walsom
Mike Wilson

31 December 2007
Ordinary Shares of 15 pence each
Beneficial
13,500
557,862
146,563
279,700
214,805
10,000
3,194
3,590,869

Non-Beneficial
238,100
30,000
3,681
750,000

1 January 2007
Ordinary Shares of 15 pence each
Beneficial
13,500
507,827
103,190
244,953
214,805
138,511
10,000
3,625,584

Non-Beneficial
238,100
30,000
3,681
750,000

† David Lamb was appointed to the board on 3 December 2007 and his opening balance is correct as at that date.
Notes:
(i) The beneficial interests of the executive Directors set out above include deferred bonus scheme awards held in trust for the Directors, details of which are set out
on page 57.
(ii) The Company’s register of Directors’ interests contains full details of Directors’ shareholdings and any share awards underthe Company’s various share schemes.
(iii) Mark Lund ceased to be a Director of the Company on 4 January 2007. At this date he had an interest in 138,511 ordinary ares.
sh

Between 31 December 2007 and 25 February 2008 there were no transactions in the Company’s shares by Directors.
Dilution
Dilution limits agreed by shareholders at the time of shareholder approval of the various long term incentive schemes
allow for the following:
• up to 5% of share capital in ten years to be used for grants to employees under discretionary schemes;
• up to 10% of share capital in ten years to be used for grants to employees under all employee share schemes; and
• up to 15% of share capital in ten years to be used for grants to employees and members of the St. James’s Place
Partnership (the Group’s salesforce) under all share schemes i.e. both the employee and ‘Partner’ share schemes.
This increased limit reflects the unique structure of the business and the importance of the Partnership to the
ongoing success of the Group.
The table on the following page sets out, as at 31 December 2007, the number of new ordinary shares in the
Company which have been issued, or are capable of being issued (subject to the satisfaction of any applicable
performance conditions) as a result of options or awards granted under the various long term incentive schemes
operated by the Company in the ten years prior to 31 December 2007.
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Page 60

Remuneration Report
(continued)

Share Scheme
SAYE schemes
Executive Share schemes
Partners Share schemes
Total

Number of new ordinary
shares of 15 pence each
4,696,521
10,895,836
39,542,669
55,135,026

% of total issued share capital
as at 31 December 2007
0.98%
2.29%
8.30%
11.57%

In addition, as at 31 December 2007, the Group’s Employee Share Trust held 4,398,922 shares in the Company, which
were purchased in the market to satisfy awards made under the PSP and executive share option schemes.
A further 2,078,839 shares, registered to employees under the terms of the Group’s deferred bonus scheme, have been
allocated by the Group’s Employee Share Trust. These shares are allocated to the relevant individuals on a restricted
basis whereby the recipients are not entitled to the shares until completion of the required term of employment. If such
conditions are not met, the shares are transferred back to the Share Trust.
HBOS plc *
The Directors had no interests in the share capital of HBOS plc as at 31 December 2007 except for the beneficial
interests set out below:
Director
Jo Dawson
Ian Gascoigne
Andy Hornby
David Lamb†
Mark Lund (i)
Mike Wilson

31 December 2007
Ordinary Shares of
25 pence each
106,654
3,500
608,031
206
1,500

1 January 2007
Ordinary Shares of
25 pence each
52,485
3,500
535,379
206
474
1,500

† David Lamb was appointed to the Board on 3 December 2007 and his opening balance is correct as at that date.
Notes:
(i) Mark Lund ceased to be a Director of the Company on 4 January 2007. At this date he had an interest in 474 ordinary shares.

Between 31 December 2007 and 25 February 2008 there have been no transactions in shares of HBOS plc by Directors.
Interests in Shares Held in Trusts
Certain executive Directors and employees are deemed to have an interest or a potential interest as potential
discretionary beneficiaries under the SJP Employee Share Trust. As such, they were treated as at 31 December 2007
as being interested in 4,398,922 ordinary shares of 15p held by S G Hambros Trust Company (Channel Islands)
Limited, the trustee of that trust.
This report was approved by the Board of Directors and signed on its behalf by

Michael Sorkin
Chairman, Remuneration Committee
25 February 2008
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Consolidated Accounts
under International Financial
Reporting Standards
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Page 62

Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members
of St. James’s Place plc

We have audited the group financial statements of St. James’s Place plc for the year ended 31 December 2007, which
comprise the Group Income Statement, the Group Balance Sheet, the Group Cash Flow Statement, the Group
Statement of Changes in Equity and the related notes. These group financial statements have been prepared under the
accounting policies set out therein.
We have reported separately on the parent company financial statements of St. James’s Place plc for the year ended
31 December 2007 and on the information in the Directors’ Remuneration Report that is described as having
been audited.
This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with section 235 of the Companies Act
1985. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we
do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for
our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.
Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors
The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Report and Accounts and the group financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the EU are set out in the
Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities on pages 45 and 46.
Our responsibility is to audit the group financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory
requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).
We report to you our opinion as to whether the group financial statements give a true and fair view and whether the
group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4
of the IAS Regulation. We also report to you whether in our opinion the information given in the Directors’ Report
is consistent with the group financial statements. The information given in the Directors’ Report includes that specific
information presented in the Corporate Governance Report, Chief Executive’s Statement, Financial Commentary
and Key Performance Indicators that are cross referred from the Directors’ Report.
In addition we report to you if, in our opinion, we have not received all the information and explanations we require
for our audit, or if information specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration and other transactions is not
disclosed.
We review whether the Corporate Governance Statement reflects the company’s compliance with the nine provisions
of the 2006 Combined Code specified for our review by the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority, and we
report if it does not. We are not required to consider whether the board’s statements on internal control cover all risks
and controls, or form an opinion on the effectiveness of the group’s corporate governance procedures or its risk and
control procedures.
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Page 63

Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members
of St. James’s Place plc
(continued)

We read the other information contained in the Report and Accounts and consider whether it is consistent with the
audited group financial statements. We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent
misstatements or material inconsistencies with the group financial statements. Our responsibilities do not extend to
any other information.
Basis of audit opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the
Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures in the group financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments
made by the directors in the preparation of the group financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the group’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.
We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the group financial
statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our
opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the group financial statements.
Opinion
In our opinion:
• the group financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU, of the state
of the group’s affairs as at 31 December 2007, and of its profit for the year then ended;
• the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and
Article 4 IAS Regulation; and
• the information given in the Directors’ Report is consistent with the group financial statements.
KPMG Audit Plc
Chartered Accountants
Registered Auditor
London
25 February 2008
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Page 64

Consolidated Income Statement

Note

Insurance premium revenue
Less premiums ceded to reinsurers
Net insurance premium revenue
Fee and commission income
Profit on sale of investment in Life Assurance
Holding Corporation
Other investment return
Total investment income
Other operating income
Net revenue

Year Ended
31 December
2007
£’ Million
97.2
(27.3)
69.9
83.8

4
3

1,088.8
1,088.8
2.5
1,245.0

Year Ended
31 December
2006
£’ Million
101.2
(33.8)
67.4
87.6
7.0
1,519.3
1,526.3
1.8
1,683.1

Policy claims and benefits
Gross amount
Reinsurers’ share
Net policyholder claims and benefits incurred

(50.7)
18.2
(32.5)

(58.2)
23.1
(35.1)

Change in insurance contract liabilities
Gross amount
Reinsurers’ share
Net change in insurance contract liabilities

(31.0)
4.6
(26.4)

62.0
(41.0)
21.0

22

(697.1)

(1,139.3)

5

(269.9)
(112.6)
(3.3)
(385.8)

(260.6)
(86.1)
(3.1)
(349.8)

103.2

179.9

(7.1)
(18.0)
(25.1)

(72.3)
(19.6)
(91.9)

78.1

88.0

Pence
16.8
16.1

Pence
19.4
18.4

Investment contract benefits
Fees, commission and other acquisition costs
Administration expenses
Other operating expenses

Operating profit and profit before tax
Tax on policyholders’ return
Tax on shareholders’ return
Total tax expense

7
7
7

Profit for period attributable to shareholders
Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share

8
8

The notes and information on pages 69 to 115 form part of these accounts.
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Page 65

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year Ended
31 December
2007
£’ Million

Year Ended
31 December
2006
£’ Million

Opening equity shareholders’ funds

382.2

274.5

Profit for the financial period, being total
recognised income for the financial period

78.1

88.0

(47.7)

(15.1)

10.7
16.0

11.1
19.2

(10.3)

(5.4)

12.5

7.6

1.0

2.3

Net increase to shareholders’ funds

60.3

107.7

Closing equity shareholders’ funds

442.5

382.2

Dividends
Issue of share capital
Scrip dividend
Exercise of share options
Consideration paid for own shares
P & L reserve credit in respect of share option charges
P & L reserve credit in respect of proceeds from exercise
of share options of shares held in trust

The notes and information on pages 69 to 115 form part of these accounts.
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Page 66

Consolidated Balance Sheet

31 December
2007
£’ Million

31 December
2006
£’ Million

484.6
61.0
545.6
10.4
125.2
642.5

393.6
64.3
457.9
6.3
83.8
568.2

10,780.4
720.7
1,098.8
32.9
18.0
19.5
160.2
1,929.2

9,014.5
595.2
963.9
0.2
28.3
11.5
9.7
87.1
1,606.9

16,083.4

13,433.5

19
21

405.4
5.3

374.3
3.1

22
23

14,144.0
11.2
0.2
268.2
21.8
347.8
50.0
119.4
267.6

11,819.8
13.1
0.1
277.6
18.5
291.9
19.9
100.5
132.5

15,640.9

13,051.3

442.5

382.2

71.5
82.2
(15.9)
304.7

69.6
57.4
(8.4)
263.6

442.5

382.2

Pence
92.9

Pence
82.4

Note
Assets
Intangible assets
Deferred acquisition costs
Acquired value of in force business

10
10

Property & equipment
Deferred tax assets
Investment property
Investments
Equities
Fixed income securities
Investment in Collective Investment Schemes
Currency forwards
Reinsurance assets
Insurance and investment contract receivables
Income tax assets
Other receivables
Cash & cash equivalents

11
12
13

20
16
17

Total assets
Liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities
Other provisions
Financial liabilities
Investment contracts
Borrowings
Currency forwards
Deferred tax liabilities
Insurance and investment contract payables
Deferred income
Income tax liabilities
Other payables
Net asset value attributable to unit holders

24
25
26
15

Total liabilities
Net assets
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital
Share premium
Other reserves
Retained earnings

29
31
31
31

Total shareholders’ equity
Net assets per share

The financial statements on pages 64 to 115 were approved by the Board of Directors on 25 February 2008 and signed on its behal
f by:

D Bellamy
Chief Executive

A Croft
Finance Director

The notes and information on pages 69 to 115 form part of these accounts.
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Page 67

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax for the period
Adjustments for:
Depreciation
Amortisation of acquired value of in-force business
Fair value gains on non-operating investments
Share based payment charge
Profit on sale of investment
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Increase in deferred acquisition costs
Increase in investment property
Increase in investments
(Increase) /decrease in reassurance assets
(Increase) /decrease in insurance and investment contract receivables
Increase in other receivables
Increase /(decrease) in insurance contract liabilities
Increase in provisions (excluding LAHC)
Increase in financial liabilities (excluding borrowings)
Decrease in reinsurance liabilities
Increase /(decrease) in insurance and investment contract payables
Increase in deferred income
Increase in other payables
Increase in net assets attributable to unit holders

Year Ended
31 December
2007
£’ Million

Year Ended
31 December
2006
£’ Million

103.2

179.9

2.2
3.3
12.5
(91.0)
(74.3)
(2,026.1)
(4.6)
(6.5)
(75.8)
31.1
2.2
2,319.0
3.3
55.9
18.9
135.1

Cash generated from operations

408.4

Income taxes paid

(52.8)

Net cash from operating activities

355.6

2.5
3.1
(0.1)
7.6
(7.0)
(68.6)
(248.8)
(2,100.2)
49.6
3.6
(3.5)
(56.3)
0.5
2,408.0
(8.9)
(1.0)
42.2
29.1
40.2
271.9
(9.3)
262.6

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of property & equipment
Proceeds from sale of plant & equipment
Proceeds from sale of LAHC

(6.5)
0.1
-

(3.0)
0.2
3.9

Net cash from investing activities

(6.4)

1.1

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from the issue of share capital
Consideration paid for own shares
Proceeds from exercise of options over shares held in trust
Repayment of borrowings
Dividends paid

26.7
(10.3)
1.0
(1.9)
(47.7)

30.3
(5.4)
2.3
(4.1)
(15.1)

Net cash from financing activities

(32.2)

8.0

Net increase in cash & cash equivalents
Cash & cash equivalents at 1 January
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held

317.0
1,606.9
5.3

271.7
1,337.7
(2.5)

Cash & cash equivalents at 31 December

1,929.2

1,606.9

The notes and information on pages 69 to 115 form part of these accounts.
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Page 69

Notes to the Consolidated Accounts under
International Financial Reporting Standards

1. Accounting policies
St. James’s Place plc (“the Company”) is a company incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales.
Statement of Compliance
The Group financial statements consolidate those of the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
“Group”).
The Group financial statements have been prepared and approved by the Directors in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU (“adopted IFRSs”). The Group has applied all IFRSs and
interpretations adopted by the EU excluding IFRS 8 Operating Segments. The effective date for IFRS8 is for accounting
periods commencing 1 January 2009 and it is likely that further disclosures will be required when the standard is applied.
During 2007, the Group has applied for the first time, the following:
• Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (Capital Disclosures)
• IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
The Group financial statements also comply with the revised Statement of Recommended Practice issued by the
Association of British Insurers in December 2005 in so far as these requirements do not contradict IFRS
requirements.
Basis of Preparation
The financial statements are presented in pounds sterling, rounded to the nearest one hundred thousand pounds.
They are prepared on a historical cost basis except for assets classified as investment property, investments and
currency forwards, which are held at fair value. Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform to
the current year’s presentation.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
Judgements made by management in the application of IFRSs that have significant effect on the financial statements
and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in the next year are discussed in note 2.
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Page 70

Notes to the Consolidated Accounts under
International Financial Reporting Standards
(continued)

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these consolidated
financial statements.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial information incorporates the assets, liabilities and the results of the Company and of its
subsidiaries. Subsidiaries are those entities in which the Group directly or indirectly has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies in order to gain benefits from its activities (including unit trusts in which the Group
holds more than half of the units). The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intragroup balances, and any income and expenses or unrealised gains and losses arising from intragroup transactions,
are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
(b) Product classification
The Group’s products are classified for accounting purposes as either insurance contracts or investment contracts.
(i) Insurance contracts
Insurance contracts are contracts that transfer significant insurance risk. The Group’s product range includes a variety
of term assurance and whole of life protection contracts involving significant insurance risk transfer.
(ii) Investment contracts
Contracts that do not transfer significant insurance risk are treated as investment contracts. The majority of the
business written by the Group is unit linked investment business and is classified as investment contracts.
Where contracts contain both insurance and investment components and the investment components can be
measured reliably, specifically unit linked pension contracts, the contracts are unbundled and the components are
separately accounted for as insurance contracts and investment contracts respectively.
(c) Long-term business
(i) Premium income
For unit linked insurance contracts, premiums are recognised as revenue when the liabilities arising from them are
recognised. All other premiums are accounted for when due for payment.
Investment contract premiums are not included in the income statement but are reported as deposits to investment
contract liabilities in the balance sheet.
(ii) Revenue from investment contracts
Fees charged for services related to the management of investment contracts are recognised as revenue as the services
are provided. Initial fees which exceed the level of recurring fees and relate to the future provision of services, are
deferred and amortised over the anticipated period in which services will be provided.
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Page 71

Notes to the Consolidated Accounts under
International Financial Reporting Standards
(continued)

(iii) Claims
For insurance contracts, death claims are accounted for on notification of death. Critical illness claims are accounted
for when admitted. All other claims and surrenders are accounted for when payment is due.
For investment contracts, benefits paid are not included in the income statement but are instead deducted from
investment contract liabilities. The movement in investment contract benefits within the income statement
principally represents the investment return credited to policyholders.
(iv) Acquisition costs
For insurance contracts, acquisition costs comprise direct costs such as initial commission and the indirect costs of
obtaining and processing new business. Acquisition costs which are incurred during a financial year are deferred by
use of an explicit asset which is amortised over the period during which the costs are expected to be recoverable and
in accordance with the incidence of future related margins.
For investment contracts, only directly related acquisition costs, which vary with and are related to securing new
contracts and renewing existing contracts, are deferred to the extent that they are recoverable out of future revenue.
These deferred acquisition costs, which represent the contractual right to benefit from providing investment
management services, are amortised on a straight-line basis over the average lifetime of the Group’s investment
contracts. All other costs are recognised as expenses when incurred.
Where contracts contain both insurance and investment components, specifically unit linked pension contracts, the
associated deferred acquisition costs are classified as deferred acquisition costs on investment contracts. The
associated deferred income on such contracts is included in deferred income on investment contracts.
(v) Insurance contract liabilities
Under current IFRS requirements, insurance contract liabilities are measured using accounting policies consistent
with those adopted previously under existing accounting practices.
Insurance contract liability provisions are determined following an annual actuarial investigation of the long-term
fund in accordance with regulatory requirements. The provisions are calculated on the basis of current information
and using the gross premium valuation method. The Group’s accounting policies for insurance contracts meet the
minimum specified requirements for liability adequacy testing under IFRS 4, as they consider current estimates of all
contractual cash flows, and of related cash flow such as claims handling costs.
Long-term business provisions can never be definitive as to their timing nor the amount of claims and are therefore
subject to subsequent reassessment on a regular basis.
(vi) Investment contract liabilities
All the Group’s investment contracts are unit linked. Unit linked liabilities are measured at fair value by reference to
the value of the underlying net asset value of the Group's unitised investment funds, determined on a bid value, at the
balance sheet date. An allowance for deduction of future tax to be paid in respect of unrealised capital gains,
discounted to reflect the time period over which such gains are expected to be realised, is also reflected in the
measurement of unit linked liabilities. Investment contract liabilities are recognised when units are first allocated to
the policyholder; they are derecognised when all units allocated to the policyholder have been cancelled.
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Page 72

Notes to the Consolidated Accounts under
International Financial Reporting Standards
(continued)

The decision by the Group to designate its unit linked liabilities as fair value through the income statement reflects the
fact that the underlying investment portfolio is managed, and its performance evaluated, on a fair value basis.
(vii) Insurance and investment contract receivables and payables
Insurance and investment contract receivables and payables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently at
amortised cost less impairment losses.
(d) Reinsurance
Reinsurance premiums are accounted for when due for payment and reinsurance recoveries are accounted for in the
same period as the related claim.
Reinsurance assets represent amounts recoverable from reinsurers in respect of outstanding claims and in respect of
insurance contract liabilities, net of any future reinsurance premiums payable.
(e) Fee & commission income
Fee & commission income primarily consists of management fees on investment contracts (see accounting policy note
c (ii)) and commission due in respect of products sold on behalf of third parties. Commission is recognised in full on
acceptance and inception of the policy by the product provider. Where the product provider retains the right to
clawback of commission on an indemnity basis, turnover on sale of these products is recognised net of a provision for
the estimated clawback.
(f) Investment return
Investment return comprises investment income and investment gains and losses. Investment income includes
dividends, interest and rental income from investment properties under operating leases. Dividends are accrued on
an ex-dividend basis, and rental income is recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of
the lease. Interest, which is generated on assets classified as fair value through profit and loss, is accounted for on an
accruals basis.
(g) Revenue
Revenue consists principally of premium income, fee and commission income and investment return. Accounting
policies in respect of each of these are set out in the following accounting policy notes:
• Premium income: (c) (i)
• Fee & commission income: (e)
• Investment return: (f)
(h) Expenses
(i) Commission
Commission expense is recognised on the sale of insurance, investment and other third party products by the Group.
Depending on the nature of the sale and product, the commission expense may be classified as initial, renewal or trail
commission. Initial commission resulting directly from the sale of insurance and investment products that may be
deferred, is described further under accounting policy note (c) (iv).
Commission in respect of some insurance business and investment business may be paid in advance and accelerated by
up to five years. The unearned element of this accelerated commission is recognised as an asset within other receivables.
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Page 73

Notes to the Consolidated Accounts under
International Financial Reporting Standards
(continued)

(ii) Operating lease payments
Leases where a significant proportion of the risks and rewards of ownership is retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the income statement on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised in the income statement as an integral part
of the total lease expense and are spread over the life of the lease.
(i) Income taxes
Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax payable by the Group in respect of
policyholders and shareholders. Income tax is recognised in the income statement except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.
(i) Current tax
Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantially
enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.
(ii) Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.
The following differences are not provided for: goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of
assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit, and differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future. The amount of deferred tax
provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.
A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
the related tax benefit will be realised.
(iii) Policyholder and shareholder tax
The total income tax charge is a separate adjustment within the income statement based on the movement in current
and deferred income taxes in respect of income, gains and expenses. The allocation between shareholders and
policyholders is based on the returns recognised within these categories.
(j) Dividends
Dividend distributions to the Company's shareholders are recognised as liabilities in the period in which the dividends
are declared, and, for the final dividend, when approved by the Company's shareholders at the annual general
meeting.
(k) Intangible assets
(i) Deferred acquisition costs
See accounting policy note c (iv).
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(ii) Acquired value of in-force business
The acquired value of in-force business in respect of insurance business represents the present value of profits that are
expected to emerge from insurance business acquired on business combinations. It is calculated at the time of
acquisition using best estimate actuarial assumptions for interest, mortality, persistency and expenses, and it is
amortised over the anticipated lives of the related contracts in the portfolio. An intangible asset is also recognised in
respect of acquired investment management contracts representing the fair value of contractual rights acquired under
those contracts.
The acquired value of in-force business is expressed as a gross figure in the balance sheet with the associated tax
included within deferred tax liabilities.
(iii) Goodwill
Goodwill on the acquisition of subsidiaries prior to 1 January 2004 has been charged directly to reserves.
Prospectively the Group’s policy is to recognise goodwill on the balance sheet as an intangible asset, measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses.
(l) Property & equipment
Items of property & equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
accounting policy note q). The deemed cost of owner occupied property is the fair value determined by an
independent valuer as at 1 January 2004, the date of transition to IFRS.
Depreciation is charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the property
and equipment as follows:
•
•
•
•
•

Computers: 3 years
Fixtures and fittings: 5 years
Office equipment: 5 years
Motor vehicles: 4 years
Buildings: 50 years

(m) Investment property
Investment properties, which are all held within the unit linked funds, are properties which are held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation. They are stated at fair value.
An external, independent valuer, having an appropriate recognised professional qualification and recent experience
in the location and category of property being valued, values the portfolio every month.
The fair values are based on market values, being the estimated amount for which a property could be exchanged on
the date of valuation between a willing buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s length transaction after proper
marketing wherein the parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsion.
Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value is recognised in the income statement. Rental income from
investment property is accounted for as described in accounting policy note (f).
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(n) Investments
The Group’s investments are all classified as fair value through profit and loss, with all gains and losses recognised
within investment income in the income statement. The fair values of quoted financial investments, which represent
the vast majority of the Group’s investments, are based on current bid prices. If the market for a financial investment
is not active, the Group establishes fair value by using valuation techniques such as recent arm’s length transactions,
reference to similar listed investments, discounted cash flow models or option pricing models.
The decision by the Group to designate its investments at fair value through the income statement reflects the fact
that the investment portfolio is managed, and its performance evaluated, on a fair value basis. The one exception to
this is in respect of currency forwards which are classified as held for trading within the category of fair value through
profit and loss.
The Group recognises purchases and sales of investments on trade date. The costs associated with investment
transactions are included within administration expenses in the income statement.
(o) Currency forwards
The Group uses currency forwards within some unit linked funds to hedge exposure to foreign currency. Each
contract is recognised initially and subsequently at fair value, based on quoted market prices, with all changes in value
recognised within investment income in the income statement.
(p) Other receivables
Other receivables are stated at amortised cost less impairment losses.
(q) Impairment policy
Formal reviews to assess the recoverability of deferred acquisition costs on insurance and investment contracts and
the acquired value of in-force business are carried out at each balance sheet date. The recoverability of such assets is
measured and the asset is deemed impaired if the projected future margins are less than the carrying value of the asset.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s other assets that are not carried at fair value are also reviewed at each balance
sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If there is any indication of irrecoverability or
impairment, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated based on the present value of its estimated future cash flows.
Impairment losses are reversed –through the income statement –if there is a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. Such losses are reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation where
applicable, if no impairment loss had been recognised.
(r) Cash & cash equivalents
Cash & cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments, and bank overdrafts to the extent that the Group has a right of set-off.
(s) Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events such
that it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
of the amount of the obligation can be made. Provisions are measured as the discounted expected future cash flows
taking account of the risks and uncertanties associated with the specific liability where appropriate. The Group
recognises provisions for onerous contracts when the expected benefits to be derived from a contract are less than the
unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract.
75 St. James’s Place plc Report & Accounts 2007

211729 SJP R&A 2007 txt:JR0530 Report & Accounts 2007

16/3/08

11:13

Page 76

Notes to the Consolidated Accounts under
International Financial Reporting Standards
(continued)

(t) Borrowings
Borrowings are measured initially at fair value, net of transaction costs, and subsequently stated at amortised cost.
The difference between the proceeds and the redemption value is recognised in the income statement over the
borrowing period on an effective interest rate basis. Borrowings are recognised on drawdown and derecognised on
repayment.
(u) Other payables
Other payables are stated at amortised cost.
(v) Net asset value attributable to unit holders
The Group consolidates unit trusts in which it holds more than half of the units. The third party interests in these unit
trusts are measured at fair value and are presented in the balance sheet as net asset value attributable to unit holders.
Income attributable to the third party interests accounted for within investment income, offset by a corresponding
change in investment contract benefits.
(w) Employee benefits
(i) Pension obligations
The Group operates a defined contribution personal pension plan for its employees. Contributions to this plan are
recognised as an expense in the income statement as incurred.
(ii) Share-based payments
The Group operates a number of share-based payment plans. The fair value of equity instruments granted is
recognised as an expense spread over the vesting period of the instrument, with a corresponding increase in equity in
the case of equity settled plans. The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the
awards at the grant date, measured using standard option pricing models.
At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments that are expected to
vest and it recognises the impact of the revision of original estimates, if any, in the income statement, such that the
amount recognised for employee services are based on the number of shares that actually vest. The charge to the
income statement is not revised for any changes in market vesting conditions.
(x) Treasury shares
Where any Group company purchases the Company’s equity share capital, the consideration paid is deducted from
equity attributable to shareholders, as disclosed in the Treasury Shares reserve. Where such shares are subsequently
sold, reissued or otherwise disposed of, any consideration received is included in equity attributable to shareholders,
net of any directly attributable incremental transaction costs and the related income tax effects.
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(y) Foreign currency translation
The Group’s presentational currency is pounds sterling. The functional currency of the Group’s foreign operations is
the currency of the primary economic environment in which these entities operate.
Foreign currency transactions are translated into sterling using the approximate exchange rate prevailing at the date
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated using the rate of
exchange ruling at the balance sheet date and the gain or losses on translation are recognised in the income statement.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities which are held at historical cost are translated using exchange rates prevailing at
the date of transaction; those held at fair value are translated using exchange rates ruling at the date on which the fair
value was determined.
(z) Segment reporting
The principal activity of the Group is the transaction of long-term insurance and investment business and the Group
segments its operations by lines of business: life, unit trust and other business revenues. Revenues and expenses
allocated to business units reflect those revenues and expenses generated in or incurred by the legal entities
comprising the segments.
Separate geographical segmental information is not presented since the Group does not segment its business
geographically, its customers being based and its assets managed predominantly in the United Kingdom.
(aa) Current and non-current disclosure
Assets which are expected to be recovered or settled no more than twelve months after the balance sheet date are
disclosed as current within the notes to the accounts. Those expected to be recovered or settled more than twelve
months after the balance sheet date are disclosed as non-current.
Liabilities which are expected and due to be settled no more than twelve months after the balance sheet date are
disclosed as current within the notes to the accounts. Those liabilities which are expected and due to be settled more
than twelve months after the balance sheet date are disclosed as non-current.
Deferred tax balances are all treated as non-current.
2. Critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying accounting policies
Judgements
The primary area in which the Group has applied judgement in applying accounting policies lies in the classification
and unbundling of contracts between insurance and investment business. Contracts with a significant degree of
insurance risk are treated as insurance; pension contracts in general have been treated as investment contracts and,
where they contain a significant degree of insurance risk, the insurance and investment components have been
unbundled. All other contracts are treated as investment contracts. The Group has also elected to treat all assets
backing linked and non unit linked contracts at fair value through profit or loss although some of the assets in question
may ultimately be held to maturity.
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Estimates
The principal areas in which the Group applies accounting estimates are:
• determining the value of insurance contract liabilities;
• deciding the amount of management expenses that are treated as acquisition expenses;
• amortisation and recoverability of deferred acquisition costs and deferred income; and
• determining the fair value, amortisation and recoverability of acquired in-force business.
Estimates are also applied in determining the amount of deferred tax asset recognised on unrelieved expenses and the value
of other provisions.The basis of estimation has changed during the year and further details are set out in notes 7 and 12.
Measurement of insurance contract liabilities
The assumptions used in the calculation of insurance contract liabilities that have a significant effect on the income
statement of the Group are:
• the lapse assumption, which is set prudently based on an investigation of experience during the year;
• the level of expenses, which is based on actual expenses in 2007 and expected long term rates;
• the mortality and morbidity rates, which are based on the results of an investigation of experience during the year; and
• the assumed rate of investment return, which is based on current gilt rates.
Greater detail on the assumptions applied is shown in note 19.
Acquisition expenses
Certain management expenses vary with the level of sales and have been treated as acquisition costs. Each line of costs
has been reviewed and its variability to sales volumes estimated on the basis of the level of costs that would be
incurred if sales ceased.
Amortisation and recoverability of DAC and DIR
Deferred acquisition costs and income on investment contracts are amortised on a straight-line basis over the average
lifetime of the underlying contracts. The average lifetime of the contracts has been estimated from the experienced
termination rates and the average age of clients at inception and maturity.
Deferred acquisition costs and income on insurance contracts are amortised over the period during which the costs
are expected to be recoverable in accordance with the projected emergence of future margins.
Deferred acquisition costs relating to insurance and investment contracts are tested annually for recoverability by
reference to expected future income levels.
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Acquired in-force business
There have been no new business combinations during the year. The acquired value of the in-force business is
amortised on a basis that reflects the expected profit stream arising from the business acquired at the date of
acquisition. This profit stream is estimated from the experienced termination rates, expenses of management and age
of the clients under the individual contracts as well as global estimates of investment growth, based on recent
experience at the date of acquisition.
The acquired value of in-force business relating to insurance and investment contracts is tested annually for
recoverability by reference to expected future income levels.
3. Segment reporting
The Group segments its operations into three lines of business:
1. Life business – offering pensions, protection and investment products through the Group’s
life assurance subsidiaries;
2. Unit trust business – offering unit trust investment products, including ISAs and PEPs, through the St. James’s
Place Unit Trust Group; and
3. Other – offering financial products such as annuities, mortgages and stakeholder pensions, from
third party providers.
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The income and results of these segments are as follows:
Net revenue
Life business
Net insurance premium income
Net movement on deferred income
Investment income – unit linked policyholders
Segment revenue
Unit trust business
Fee income (excluding deferred income)
Net movement on deferred income
Segment revenue
Other business
Commission income
Investment income – sale of investment in LAHC
Investment income – other shareholders
Investment income – other(1)
Other operating income
Segment revenue

Year Ended
31 December
2007
£’ Million

Total net revenue (2)

Year Ended
31 December
2006
£’ Million

69.9
(30.5)
1,063.9
1,103.3

67.4
(23.3)
1,503.9
1,548.0

85.4
(25.4)
60.0

67.7
(18.9)
48.8

54.3
11.6
13.3
2.5
81.7

62.1
7.0
6.7
8.7
1.8
86.3

1,245.0

1,683.1

Investment income – other relates to investment income on third party holdings in the St.James’s Place unit trusts which
are subject to consolida tion (the third par ty interest holdings are disclosed as “net asset value attributable to unit
holders” within the balance sheet).This income is offset by a change in investment contract benefits within the incom
statement.

(1)

(2)

All revenue is generated from external transactions.

Segment result
Life business
Shareholder
Policyholder tax gross up
Unit trust business
Profit on sale of investment – LAHC
Other loss
Total other business
Total operating profit and profit before t
Income taxes
Policyholder tax
Shareholder tax

Year Ended
31 December
2007
£’ Million

Profit after tax
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Other segmental information

Year Ended
31 December
2007
£’ Million

Segment Assets
Life business
Unit trust business
Other business
Unallocated assets
Consolidation adjustments

Year Ended
31 December
2006
£’ Million

15,385.0
150.6
300.5
144.7
102.6

12,963.5
103.3
303.9
93.5
(30.7)

Total Assets

16,083.4

13,433.5

Segment Liabilities
Life business
Unit trust business
Other business
Unallocated liabilities
Consolidation adjustments

14,879.7
130.1
76.1
318.2
236.8

12,481.8
94.0
69.4
297.5
108.6

Total Liabilities

15,640.9

13,051.3

Capital expenditure
Other business

6.5

3.0

Depreciation Expense
Other business

2.2

2.5

38.6
3.3
6.8

35.0
3.1
5.2

Amortisation Expense
Life business – DAC
Life business – acquired value of in-force business
Unit trust business - DAC
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4. Other investment return

Year Ended
31 December
2007
£’ Million

Dividend income
Interest income
Rental income
Net realised gains
Net unrealised (losses)/gains
Income attributable to third party holdings in unit trusts
Total other investment return

283.9
119.4
32.8
812.7
(173.3)
13.3
1,088.8

Year Ended
31 December
2006
£’ Million
243.2
88.2
21.6
1,084.7
72.9
8.7
1,519.3

5. Expenses
The following items are included within the expenses disclosed in the income statement:
Year Ended
31 December
2007
£’ Million

Year Ended
31 December
2006
£’ Million

44.5
2.2
3.3
45.4
9.5

40.9
2.5
3.1
40.2
9.1

0.1

0.1

0.4
-

0.4
-

Employee costs (see note 6)
Depreciation
Amortisation of acquired value of in-force business
Amortisation of DAC
Payment under operating leases
Fees payable to the company’s auditor for the audit of the
company’s annual accounts
Fees payable to the company’s auditor and its associates
for other services:
- the audit of the company’s subsidiaries
pursuant to legislation
- other services pursuant to legislation

In addition to audit services relating to SJP plc and its subsidiaries, fees of £0.1 million (2006: £0.1 million) have been
paid to the auditors in respect of the audit of the sixteen unit trusts managed by the Group.
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6. Employee costs

Year Ended
31 December
2007
£’ Million

Year Ended
31 December
2006
£’ Million

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Pension costs in relation to defined contribution schemes

36.9
4.6
3.0

34.1
4.2
2.6

Total employee benefits

44.5

40.9

Average number of persons employed by the Group
during the year

635

579

The above information includes Directors’ remuneration. Details of the Directors’ remuneration, share options,
pension entitlements and interests in shares are disclosed in the Remuneration Report on pages 48 to 60.
7. Income taxes

Year Ended
31 December
2007
£’ Million

Year Ended
31 December
2006
£’ Million

12.4

9.2

(7.5)
(30.4)
(23.2)
55.8

41.8
21.3

Total policyholder tax charge for the year

7.1

72.3

Shareholder tax
UK corporation tax
Current year charge
Prior year charge
Overseas taxes

4.6
1.0
2.2

8.7
0.1
0.9

Policyholder tax
Overseas withholding taxes
Deferred tax on unrelieved expenses
Current year credit
Prior year credit
Deferred tax on unrealised gains in unit linked funds
UK corporation tax

Deferred tax charge / (credit)
On unrelieved expenses
Other

7.8

9.7

10.2

(1.1)
11.0

Total shareholder tax charge for the year

18.0

19.6
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The prior year credit for deferred tax on unrelieved expenses relates to the change in basis of valuation for tax relief from a
market consistent stochastic model to the recognition of deferred tax on the entire balance of unrelieved expenses – also
see note 12. In addition, where deferred tax balances represent future adjustments at the policyholder rate, these are now
recognised as policyholder items.
The change in the corporation tax rate from 30% to 28% effective from 1 April 2008 included in the 2007 Finance Act has
been incorporated into the defered tax balances.
Year Ended
31 December
2007
£’ Million

Year Ended
31 December
2006
£’ Million

Reconciliation of tax charge
Profit before tax
Tax at 30%

103.2
31.0

179.9
54.0

Effects of:
Disposal of LAHC – non taxable
Deferred tax on unrelieved expenses current year
Deferred tax adjustment on unrelieved expenses
Overseas withholding tax in unit linked funds
Deferred tax in unit linked funds
Shareholder deduction for policyholder tax
Adjustments to reserves
Policyholder tax rate differential
Prior year items
Change in tax rate
Other adjustments

(7.5)
(30.4)
12.4
(16.6)
(20.2)
3.8
62.6
(1.7)
(6.1)
(2.2)

(2.1)
(1.1)
9.2
30.6
(7.4)
(7.8)
19.8
(3.3)

25.1

91.9

Total tax charge for the year

The policyholder tax rate differential relates to the effect of the difference between the shareholder tax rate of 30% and the
policyholder tax rate of 20%.
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8. Earnings per share

Year Ended
31 December
2007
pence

Year Ended
31 December
2006
pence

Basic earnings per share
Adjustments – disposal of LAHC

16.8
-

19.4
(1.5)

Basic adjusted earnings per share

16.8

17.9

Diluted earnings per share
Adjustments – disposal of LAHC

16.1
-

18.4
(1.5)

Diluted adjusted earnings per share

16.1

16.9

Year Ended
31 December
2007
£’ Million

Year Ended
31 December
2006
£’ Million

The earnings per share (EPS) calculations are based on the following figures:

Earnings
Profit after tax (for both basic and diluted EPS)
Adjustments – disposal of LAHC

78.1
-

88.0
(7.0)

Adjusted profit (for both basic and diluted EPS)

78.1

81.0

Weighted average number of shares
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue(for basic EPS)
Adjustments for outstanding share options

465.6
20.4

452.8
25.8

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (for diluted EPS)

486.0

478.6

9. Dividends
The following dividends have been paid by the Group:

Final dividend in respect of
previous financial year
Special dividend in respect of
previous financial year
Interim dividend in respect of
current financial year
Total

Year Ended
31 December
2007
pence
per share

Year Ended
31 December
2006
pence
per share

Year Ended
31 December
2007
£’ Million

Year Ended
31 December
2006
£’ Million

2.15

1.85

10.0

8.3

6.35

-

29.4

-

1.75

1.50

8.3

6.8

10.25

3.35

47.7

15.1

The Directors have recommended a final dividend of 2.55 pence per share (2006: 2.15 pence). This amounts to
£12.2 million (2006: £10.0 million) and will, subject to shareholder approval at the Annual General Meeting, be paid
on 14 May 2008 to those shareholders on the register as at 7 March 2008.
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10. Intangible assets
Deferred Acquisition Costs
Life
business
- insurance
DAC
£’ Million

Life
business
- investment
DAC
£’ Million

Unit trust
business
- investment
DAC
£’ Million

Total DAC

Acquired value
of in-force
business

Total

£’ Million

£’ Million

£’ Million

At 1 January 2006
Additions

62.5
8.4

281.6
78.7

61.6
21.7

405.7
108.8

73.4
-

479.1
108.8

At 31 December 2006

70.9

360.3

83.3

514.5

73.4

587.9

At 1 January 2007
Additions

70.9
8.3

360.3
101.8

83.3
26.3

514.5
136.4

73.4
-

587.9
136.4

At 31 December 2007

79.2

462.1

109.6

650.9

73.4

724.3

At 1 January 2006
Charge for the year

33.8
10.4

39.2
24.6

7.7
5.2

80.7
40.2

6.0
3.1

86.7
43.3

At 31 December 2006

44.2

63.8

12.9

120.9

9.1

130.0

At 1 January 2007
Charge for the year

44.2
8.3

63.8
30.3

12.9
6.8

120.9
45.4

9.1
3.3

130.0
48.7

At 31 December 2007

52.5

94.1

19.7

166.3

12.4

178.7

At 1 January 2006

28.7

242.4

53.9

325.0

67.4

392.4

At 31 December 2006

26.7

296.5

70.4

393.6

64.3

457.9

At 31 December 2007

26.7

368.0

89.9

484.6

61.0

545.6

Cost

Amortisation

Carrying value

Outstanding amortisation period
At 31 December 2006

6 years

14 years

14 years

19 years

At 31 December 2007

6 years

14 years

14 years

18 years

Amortisation of deferred acquisition costs is charged within the fees, commission and other acquisition costs line in the
income statement. The amortisation of the acquired value of in-force business is charged within other operating expenses.
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11. Property & equipment

Fixtures, Fittings,
Computers &
Office Equipment
£’ Million

Motor
Vehicles

Land &
Buildings

Total

£’ Million

£’ Million

£’ Million

Cost
At 1 January 2006
Additions
Disposals

27.9
2.4
-

1.9
0.6
(0.7)

1.2
-

31.0
3.0
(0.7)

At 31 December 2006

30.3

1.8

1.2

33.3

30.3
6.0
(12.5)

1.8
0.5
(0.3)

1.2
-

33.3
6.5
(12.8)

23.8

2.0

1.2

27.0

At 1 January 2006
Charge for the year
Disposals

24.3
2.0
-

0.8
0.5
(0.6)

-

25.1
2.5
(0.6)

At 31 December 2006

26.3

0.7

-

27.0

26.3
1.7
(12.4)

0.7
0.5
(0.2)

-

27.0
2.2
(12.6)

15.6

1.0

-

16.6

At 1 January 2006

3.6

1.1

1.2

5.9

At 31 December 2006

4.0

1.1

1.2

6.3

At 31 December 2007

8.2

1.0

1.2

10.4

At 1 January 2007
Additions
Disposals
At 31 December 2007
Depreciation

At 1 January 2007
Charge for the year
Disposals
At 31 December 2007
Net book value
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12. Deferred tax assets

31 December
2007
£’ Million

31 December
2006
£’ Million

55.0
34.1
28.1
8.0

17.1
34.6
22.5
9.6

125.2

83.8

Life business – unrelieved expenses
Life business – deferred income
Unit trust business – deferred income
Other
Total deferred tax asset

The method of calculation of the deferred tax asset in respect of unrelieved expenses has been revised for 2007 from the
previously used market consistent stochastic model to the recognition of full value for deferred expenses. £30.4 million
of the movement in the deferred tax asset relates to the expenses which would have been recognised under the new
basis in prior years.
13. Investment property

31 December
2007
£’ Million

31 December
2006
£’ Million

Balance at 1 January
Additions
Disposals
Changes in fair value

568.2
226.1
(60.6)
(91.2)

319.4
291.0
(95.0)
52.8

Balance at 31 December

642.5

568.2

The rental income and direct operating expenses recognised in the income statement in respect of investment
properties are set out below. All expenses relate to property generating rental income.
Year Ended
31 December
2007
£’ Million

Year Ended
31 December
2006
£’ Million

32.8
1.5

21.6
1.1

Rental income
Direct operating expenses
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14. Assets held to cover linked liabilities
Included within the balance sheet are the following assets and liabilities which represent the net assets held to cover
linked liabilities. The difference between these assets and liabilities and those shown in the consolidated balance sheet
represents assets and liabilities held outside the unit linked funds.

Assets
Investment property
Investments
Equities
Fixed income securities
Investment in Collective Investment Schemes
Currency forwards
Other receivables
Cash & cash equivalents
Total assets

31 December
2007
£’ Million

31 December
2006
£’ Million

642.5

568.2

10,535.7
666.0
864.1
68.4
1,841.3
14,618.0

8,883.0
544.4
728.6
0.2
39.4
1,501.4
12,265.2

0.2
117.6
45.0
162.8

0.1
139.8
33.5
173.4

14,455.2

12,091.8

Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Currency forwards
Deferred tax liabilities
Other payables
Total liabilities
Net assets held to cover linked liabilities

15. Assets attributable to unit holders
The following assets and liabilities are attributable to third party holdings in the St. James’s Place unit trusts which are
subject to consolidation:
31 December
2007
£’ Million

31 December
2006
£’ Million

Investments – equities
Investments – fixed income securities
Investments – collective investment schemes
Cash & cash equivalents
Other receivables
Other payables

244.7
9.8
3.4
9.4
0.8
(0.5)

131.5
2.3
0.8
(2.1)

Net assets attributable to unit holders

267.6

132.5
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16. Other receivables

31 December
2007
£’ Million

31 December
2006
£’ Million

41.4
7.8
17.5
25.1
68.4

16.9
3.9
4.9
10.4
11.6
39.4

Total other receivables

160.2

87.1

Current
Non current

111.7
48.5
160.2

65.0
22.1
87.1

St. James’s Place Partnership loans
Deferred LAHC proceeds
Prepayments
Unearned commission
Miscellaneous
Balances held within unit linked funds

The fair value of loans and receivables included in other receivables is not materially different from amortised cost.
17. Cash & cash equivalents
31 December
2007
£’ Million
Cash at bank
Bank overdrafts
Cash & cash equivalents held outside unit linked
and unit trust funds

31 December
2006
£’ Million

120.4
(41.9)

120.6
(17.4)

78.5

103.2

Balances held within unit linked funds
Balances held within unit trust funds

1,841.3
9.4

1,501.4
2.3

Total cash & cash equivalents

1,929.2

1,606.9
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18. Insurance risk
The Group assumes insurance risk through the issuance of insurance contracts under which the Group agrees to
compensate the policyholder or other beneficiary if a specified uncertain future event (the insured event) affecting the
policyholder occurs. The Group insures mortality and morbidity risks.
Risk management objectives and risk policies
The Group has a medium appetite for insurance risk – to accept where financially beneficial, or in support of strategic
objectives – and seeks to manage insurance risk through the use of reassurance, reviewable terms, regular review of
pricing and underwriting controls.
The insurance liabilities have a contractual maturity of up to one year and the liquidity risk in respect of the insurance
liabilities is mitigated through holding a high level of liquid assets.
Terms and conditions
The terms and conditions of the insurance contracts offered by the Group determine the level of risk accepted by the
Group. The general terms and conditions of the main insurance contracts and the associated risks are set out in the
table below. The Group has no with-profit contracts.
Category

Essential Terms

Main Risks

Policyholder Guarantee

Unit linked reviewable
assurances

Deductions from units
pay for benefits.
Deductions are
reviewable at any time

Expense

No significant
guarantees

Conventional
reviewable assurances

Regular premiums pay
for benefits. Premium
level is reviewable every
fifth policy anniversary

Mortality, morbidity,
expense

Premium level
guaranteed between
reviews

Conventional
guaranteed assurances

Premium level fixed
throughout life

Mortality, expense

Premium and benefit
level guaranteed
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Management of risks
The table below summarises the main risks to which the insurance business is exposed and the methods by which the
Group seeks to mitigate them
Risk

Description

Management

Underwriting

Failure to price appropriately for
a risk, or the impact of anti-selection

Experience is monitored regularly. For
most business the premium or deduction
rates can be re-set

Epidemic/disaster

An unusually large number of claims
arising from a single incident or event

Protection is provided through
reassurance

Expense

Administration costs exceed
expense allowance

Administration is outsourced and
the contract monitored regularly

Persistency

Loss of product margins due to higher
than anticipated lapses

Monitoring of lapse rates and
investigation of unexpected experience
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19. Insurance contract liabilities

2007
£’ Million

2006
£’ Million

374.3

430.6

Movement in unit linked liabilities

26.3

32.9

Movement in non-unit linked liabilities
New business
Existing business
Effect of PS06/14
Other assumption changes
Claims reserve reclassification
Experience variance

(2.6)
3.4
(6.0)
10.0

(2.9)
2.9
(43.7)
(29.4)
(14.9)
(1.2)

4.8

(89.2)

Balance at 1 January

Total movement in non-unit linked liabilities
Balance at 31 December

405.4

374.3

Unit linked
Non-unit linked

333.8
71.6
405.4

307.5
66.8
374.3

Current
Non current

56.4
349.0
405.4

52.5
321.8
374.3

Assumptions used in the calculation of liabilities
The principal assumptions used in the calculation of the liabilities are:
Assumption
Interest rate

Description
The valuation interest rate is calculated by reference to the long term gilt yield at
31 December 2007 and the specific gilts backing the liabilities. The specific rates
used are between 3.2% and 4.6% depending on the tax regime (3.2% and 4.5% at
31 December 2006).

Mortality

Mortality is based on company experience and is set at 72% of the TM/F92 tables
with an additional loading for smokers. There has been no change since 2006.

Morbidity – CI

Morbidity is based on company experience. The shape and level are unchanged
since last year. Sample annual rates per £ for a male non-smoker are:
Age
25
35
45

Rate
0.000703
0.001235
0.002953
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Morbidity – PHI

Morbidity is based on company experience. Sample annual rates per £ income benefit
p.a. for a male non-smoker are:
Rate
2007
0.00510
0.01345
0.02918

Age
25
35
45
Expenses

Contract liabilities are calculated allowing for the actual costs of administration of the
business. The assumption has been increased to allow for inflation but is otherwise
unchanged.
Annual cost
2007
£20.65
£40.48
£32.38

Product
Investment bonds
Pension business
Protection business
Persistency

2006
0.00586
0.01547
0.03356

2006
£19.63
£39.07
£31.28

Allowance is made for a prudent level of lapses within the calculation of the liabilities.There
has been no change since 2006 in the allowance for lapses. Sample lapse rates include:
Product
Bond
Protection
Single premium pensions

1 – 5 years
3%
14%
2%

6 + years
5%
11%
8%

Note: the lapse assumptions for single premium pension business vary by age rather than
duration. The rates included in the table above are in respect of a plan commencing at
age 55.
Sensitivity analysis
The table below sets out the sensitivity of the profit and net assets to key assumptions. The analysis reflects the change
in the variable/assumption shown while all other variables/assumptions are left unchanged. In practice variables/
assumptions may change at the same time as some may be correlated (for example, an increase in interest rates may
also result in an increase in expenses if the increase reflects higher inflation). It should also be noted that in some
instances sensitivities are non-linear.
Sensitivity analysis

Withdrawal rates
Expense assumptions
Mortality/morbidity

Change in
assumptions

Change in
profit
before tax
2006
£’ Million

Change in
net assets
2007

Change in
net assets
2006

%

Change in
profit
before tax
2007
£’ Million

£’ Million

£’ Million

-10%
-10%
-5%

(2.3)
1.3
0.8

(1.4)
2.1
0.2

(1.9)
1.0
0.6

(1.0)
1.8
0.2

A change in interest rates will have no material impact on insurance profit or net assets.
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20. Reinsurance assets

31 December
2007
£’ Million

31 December
2006
£’ Million

26.5
6.4

23.0
5.3

Reinsurance assets

32.9

28.3

Current
Non current

14.5
18.4
32.9

8.0
20.3
28.3

31 December
2007
£’ Million

31 December
2006
£’ Million

Reinsurers’ share of insurance contract liabilities
Long term insurance contract liability
Claims outstanding

A reconciliation of the movement in the net reinsurance balance is set out below:

Reinsurance assets at 1 January
Reassurance component of net change in claims provision
Reassurance component of change in insurance liabilities

28.3
1.1
3.5

69.0
0.3
(41.0)

Reinsurance assets at 31 December

32.9

28.3

The application of PS06/14 in 2006 had a significant impact on the reinsurance assets, reducing the carrying amount
by £29.0 million.
21. Other provisions

Endowments
£’ Million

At 1 January 2007
Charged to the consolidated income statement
Additional provisions
Unused amounts released

0.8
(0.3)
-

Office
Restructuring
£’ Million
2.1
(1.3)
2.9 1.1 4.0
-

At 31 December 2007

0.5

3.7

Current
Non current

0.4
0.1
0.5

2.9 1.1 4.4
0.8
3.7 1.1 5.3

Other
Provisions
£’ Million

Total
£’ Million

0.2
-

3.1
(1.6)

(0.2)

(0.2)

1.1

5.3

-

0.9

The endowments provision relates to the cost of redress for mortgage endowment complaints. The provision is based
on estimates of the total number of complaints expected to be upheld, the average cost of redress and the estimated
timing of settlement.
The office restructuring provision represents the expected amounts payable under a number of non-cancellable operating
leases for office space that the Group no longer occupies. The provision is based on estimates of the rental payable until the
approximate dates on which the Group expects either to have sublet the affected space or to have reached break clauses
within the relevant lease agreements and after making appropriate allowance for the time value of money.
Other provisions refer to sundry miscellaneous items.
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22. Investment contract benefits

2007
£’ Million

2006
£’ Million

Balance at 1 January
Deposits
Withdrawals
Investment contract benefits
(principally representing investment income)
Less investment contract benefits attributable
to third party holdings in unit trusts

11,819.8
2,588.1
(947.7)

Balance at 31 December

14,144.0

11,819.8

Current
Non current

693.0
13,451.0
14,144.0

579.2
11,240.6
11,819.8

31 December
2007
£’ Million

31 December
2006
£’ Million

11.2

13.1

697.1
(13.3)

9,411.9
2,048.0
(770.7)
1,139.3
(8.7)

23. Borrowings

Bank loan

The Company granted a Fixed Sum Guarantee in 2003 to Bank of Scotland in connection with loans made to members
of St. James’s Place Partnership by Bank of Scotland.
Under the terms of the guarantee, Bank of Scotland agreed, at the request of the Company, to provide loans (“Partner
Loans”), either by way of new loans or by an equitable assignment of existing loans, to the members of the St. James’s
Place Partnership. In the event of default on any of these loans the Company guarantees to repay the outstanding
balance of the loan.
The guarantee can be terminated at any time by the Company giving three months’ notice. At 31 December 2007, the
balance of Bank of Scotland loans covered by this guarantee was £64.1 million (31 December 2006: £61.5 million).
Under the terms of the Assignment Agreement, the Assigned Loans remain legally in the name of the Group and the
outstanding balance of £11.2 million is thus shown as both an asset under other receivables and a financial liability
under borrowing.
The fair value of the outstanding bank loan is not materially different from amortised cost.
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24. Deferred tax liabilities

31 December
2007
£’ Million

31 December
2006
£’ Million

On deferred acquisition costs
On acquired value of in-force business
Within unit linked funds
Other

125.6
17.0
117.6
8.0

108.2
19.2
139.8
10.4

Total deferred tax liability

268.2

277.6

Deferred tax liabilities of £6.9 million as at 31 December 2007 (2006: £6.7 million) have not been recognised in
respect of taxes that would be payable on the remittance of earnings from overseas subsidiaries. Unremitted earnings
totalled £44.4 million at 31 December 2007 (2006: £33.7 million).
25. Deferred income

31 December
2007
£’ Million

31 December
2006
£’ Million

Life business
Unit trust business

247.4
100.4

216.9
75.0

Total deferred income

347.8

291.9

31 December
2007
£’ Million

31 December
2006
£’ Million

37.9
36.5
45.0

44.9
22.1
33.5

119.4

100.5

26. Other payables

Accruals
Miscellaneous
Balances held within unit linked funds
Total other payables

All other payable balances are considered current.
The fair value of financial liabilities in other payables is not materially different from amortised cost.
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27. Financial risk
Risk management objectives and risk policies
The Group adopts a risk averse approach to financial risk with a stated policy of not actively pursuing and accepting
financial risk except when necessary to support other objectives. The Group seeks to manage risk through the
operation of unit linked business whereby the policyholder bears the financial risk. In addition, shareholder assets are
invested in highly rated investments.
The Group’s exposure to credit, liquidity and market risks is set out below in the following paragraphs. The process
for accepting, measuring, monitoring and controlling these risks is set out in the Group’s Risk Management
Framework, which is described on pages 42 to 45 of the Corporate Governance Report.
Categories of financial assets and financial liabilities
The categories and carrying values of the financial assets and financial liabilities held in the Group’s balance sheet are
summarised in the table below:
31 December 2007
Financial Loans and Financial Financial
assets at receivables liabilities at liabilities
fair value
fair value measured
through
through
at
profit and
profit and amortised
loss*
loss*
cost
£’ Million £’ Million £’ Million £’ Million
Financial Assets
Equities
10,780.4
Fixed income
securities
720.7
Investment in Collective
Investment Schemes
1,098.8
Currency forwards
Other receivables
St. James’s Place
Partnership loans
Deferred LAHC
proceeds
Other
Total other receivables
Cash & cash equivalents 1,929.2
Total Financial Assets 14,529.1
Financial Liabilities
Investment contract
benefits
Borrowings
Currency forwards
Other payables
Total Financial Liabilities

Financial
assets at
fair value
through
profit and
loss*
£’ Million

31 December 2006
Loans and
Financial
receivables liabilities at
fair value
through
profit and
loss*
£’ Million
£’ Million

Financial
liabilities
measured
at
amortised
cost
£’ Million

9,014.5
595.2
963.9
0.2
41.4

16.9

118.8
160.2

3.9
66.3
87.1

1,606.9
12,180.7

160.2

14,144.0
0.2
14,144.2

11.2
119.4
130.6

87.1

11,819.8
0.1
11,819.9

*All financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are designated as such upon initial recognition.
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The carrying value of the investment contract liabilities may differ from the amount contractually required to pay at
maturity. This is as a result of the variable maturity values of the financial liabilities as a consequence of future policyhol
der
investments and withdrawals as well as investment return. The contractual value required to be paid to the
policyholder as at 31 December 2007 would not be materially different from the investment contract benefits value in
the table on the previous page.
Income, expense, gains and losses arising from financial assets and financial liabilities
The income, expense, gains and losses arising from financial assets and financial liabilities are summarised in the
table below:
31 December 2007
Financial Loans and Financial Financial
assets at receivables liabilities at liabilities
fair value
fair value measured
through
through
at
profit and
profit and amortised
loss*
loss*
cost
£’ Million £’ Million £’ Million £’ Million

Financial Assets
Unit linked assets
1,065.9
Fixed income
securities
1.7
Investment in Collective
Investment Schemes
11.7
Other receivables
St. James’s Place
Partnership loans
Deferred LAHC
proceeds
Other
Total other receivables
Cash & cash equivalents
4.6
Financial Liabilities
Investment contract
benefits
Borrowings
Other payables

Financial
assets at
fair value
through
profit and
loss*
£’ Million

31 December 2006
Loans and
Financial
receivables liabilities at
fair value
through
profit and
loss*
£’ Million
£’ Million

Financial
liabilities
measured
at
amortised
cost
£’ Million

1,506.8
(0.2)
6.3
2.6

2.2

0.3
2.9

0.4
2.6

5.3

697.1

-

1,139.3

* All financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are designated as such upon initial recognition.
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Credit risk
The Group’s exposure to credit risk is mitigated by a number of policies. Shareholders’ funds are invested in AAA
rated unitised money market funds and deposits with approved banks, in accordance with the SJP Group Credit
Policy, with a view to minimising credit and market risk. Maximum counterparty limits are set for each company
within the Group and aggregate limits are also set at a Group level.
Non-linked liabilities are matched by fixed interest securities with minimum AA credit ratings; maximum
counterparty limits are again set for each company within the Group and at an aggregate Group level.
Reinsurance credit risk is managed in accordance with the Group’s Reinsurance Policy with credit ratings of potential
reinsurers required to meet or exceed minimum specified levels. Consideration is also given to size, risk
concentrations/exposures and ownership in the selection of reinsurers. The Group also seeks to diversify its
reinsurance credit risk through the use of a range of reinsurers.
The amount due from reinsurers relates primarily to one AA-rated reinsurer, as set out in the credit risk table
opposite. The Group is actively seeking to minimise this concentration of credit risk.
The Group’s exposure to credit risk from financial support to the Partnership is managed through securing lending on
future commission streams or business values, coupled with the application of monetary limits on the amounts lent to
individual Partners. No other form of collateral is held as security.
Quantification of the collateral held against those loans to the Partnership that have been impaired is calculated on a
statistical basis and hence individual Partner income streams that might be associated with the impaired balances
cannot be identified with sufficient certainty.
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The following table sets out the credit risk exposure and ratings of financial and other assets which are most susceptible
to credit risk:
31 December 2007

AAA

AA

A

Unrated

£’ Million

£’ Million

£’ Million

£’ Million

Fixed income
securities
44.9
Investment
in Collective
Investment Schemes*
230.2
Cash & cash equivalents
10.0
Amounts due from reassurers
Claims outstanding
0.3
Reassurers share
of LTBF
0.6
Total amount due
from reassurers
0.9
Other receivables
St. James’s Place
Partnership loans
Deferred LAHC
proceeds
Other
Total other receivables

48.6

19.9

1.1

Unit Attributable
Linked
to Unit
Funds
Holders
£’ Million
£’ Million

Total
£’ Million

666.0

9.8

720.7

864.1
1,841.3

3.4
9.4

1,098.8
1,929.2

6.1

6.4

25.9

26.5

32.0

32.9
41.4
49.6
91.0

41.4
68.4
68.4

0.8
0.8

118.8
160.2

* Investment of shareholder assets in Collective Investment Schemes refers to investment in unitised money market funds held fo
r the
longer term.
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31 December 2006

AAA

AA

A

Unrated

£’ Million

£’ Million

£’ Million

£’ Million

Fixed income
securities
50.8
Investment
in Collective
Investment Schemes*
234.7
Cash & cash equivalents
Amounts due from reassurers
Claims outstanding
0.4
Reassurers share
of LTBF
1.8
Total amount due
from reassurers
2.2
Other receivables
St. James’s Place
Partnership loans
Deferred LAHC
proceeds
Other
Total other receivables

Unit Attributable
Linked
to Unit
Funds
Holders
£’ Million
£’ Million
544.4

85.9

17.3

4.3

0.6

0.6

728.6
1,501.4

2.3

3.9

963.9
1,606.9
5.3
23.0

0.6

28.3
16.9

3.9

£’ Million
595.2

21.2
25.5

Total

26.1
43.0

16.9
39.4
39.4

0.8
0.8

3.9
66.3
87.1

* Investment of shareholder assets in Collective Investment Schemes refers to investment in unitised money market funds held fo
r the
longer term.

Financial assets that are either past due or impaired
Loans to St. James’s Place Partnership disclosed in the tables above are shown net of an impairment provision of £7.0
million (2006: £6.9 million). The amount of the impairment loss recognised in the income statement was £0.1 million
(2006: gain £1.0 million). The factors considered in determining the impairment include default history, the nature or
type of the Partner loan, exposure levels to individual Partners and whether the individual Partner is active or has left.
There are no other financial assets that are materially impaired, would otherwise be past due or impaired whose terms
have been renegotiated or are past due but not impaired.
Liquidity risk
The Group is subject to minimal liquidity risk since it maintains a high level of liquid assets to meet its liabilities. The
analysis of contractual maturities for the Group’s financial liabilities is included within the table in the section which
follows.
Market risk
In order to limit the exposure of the Group to market risk, the majority of the Group’s business is unit linked, for
which policyholders carry the financial risk. This removes any risk associated with being able to meet policyholders’
liabilities. However, a reduction in the market value of the unit linked funds would affect the annual management
charges accruing to the Group, since these charges are based on the market value of funds under management. The
associated reduction in dividends could also result in the deferral of tax relief on UK life business expenses and
indirectly could also be associated with a reduction in the volume of new business sales.
Currency risk
The Group is not subject to any significant currency risk since all material financial assets and financial liabilities are
denominated in Sterling.
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Contractual maturity analysis

The following table sets out the contractual maturity analysis of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities as at
31 December 2007:
31 December 2007

Financial Assets
Equities
Fixed income
securities
Investment in Collective
Investment Schemes
Currency forwards
Other receivables
St. James’s Place
Partnership loans
Deferred LAHC
proceeds
Other
Total other receivables
Cash & cash equivalents
Financial Liabilities
Investment contract
benefits
Borrowings
Currency forwards
Other payables

Up to
1 year

1–5
years

Over 5
years

£’ Million

£’ Million

£’ Million

16.1

28.8

231.3

6.9
49.6
56.5
78.5

16.7

16.7

17.8

17.8

11.2
73.9

Total
ex-Unit
linked
funds and
other unit
holders
£’ Million

Unit Attributable
linked
to unit
funds*
holders*

£’ Million

£’ Million

£’ Million

-

10,535.7

244.7

10,780.4

44.9

666.0

9.8

720.7

231.3
-

864.1

3.4

1,098.8
-

41.4
49.6
91.0
78.5

11.2
73.9

Total

41.4
68.4
68.4
1,841.3

0.8
0.8
9.4

118.8
160.2
1,929.2

0.5

14,144.0
11.2
0.2
119.4

14,144.0
0.2
45.0

*Amounts included under unit linked funds and attributable to unit holders are deemed to have a maturity up to one year as they are
repayable or transferable on demand.
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The table below sets out comparative contractural maturity analysis as at 31 December 2006:
31 December 2006

Financial Assets
Equities
Fixed income
securities
Investment in Collective
Investment Schemes
Currency forwards
Other receivables
St. James’s Place
Partnership loans
Deferred LAHC
proceeds
Other
Total other receivables
Cash & cash equivalents
Financial Liabilities
Investment contract
benefits
Borrowings
Currency forwards
Other payables

Up to
1 year

1–5
years

Over 5
years

£’ Million

£’ Million

£’ Million

28.4

22.4

235.3

3.1
3.9
26.1
33.1
103.2

8.1

8.1

5.7

5.7

13.1
64.9

Total
ex-Unit
linked
funds and
other unit
holders
£’ Million

Unit Attributable
linked
to unit
funds*
holders*

£’ Million

£’ Million

£’ Million

-

8,883.0

131.5

9,014.5

50.8

544.4

595.2

235.3
-

728.6
0.2

963.9
0.2

16.9
3.9
26.1
46.9
103.2

13.1
64.9

Total

16.9
39.4
39.4
1,501.4

0.8
0.8
2.3

3.9
66.3
87.1
1,606.9

2.1

11,819.8
13.1
0.1
100.5

11,819.8
0.1
33.5

*Amounts included under unit linked funds and attributable to unit holders are deemed to have a maturity up to one year as they are
repayable or transferable on demand.
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Sensitivity analysis to market risks
The majority of the Group’s business is unit linked and the associated market risk is therefore borne by policyholders.
Financial assets and liabilities held outside unitised funds primarily consist of fixed interest securities, units in money
market funds, cash and cash equivalents, and other assets and liabilities. The fixed interest securities are held to match
non linked liabilities and the liability values move broadly in line with the matching asset values such that fair value
interest rate risk is immaterial, although these is some residual risk due to imperfect matching. Cash held in unitised
money market funds and at bank is valued at par and is unaffected by movement in interest rates. Other assets and
liabilities are similarly unaffected by market movements.
As a result of these combined factors, the Group’s financial assets and liabilities held outside unitised funds are not
materially subject to market risk, and movements in interest rates and equity values have an immaterial impact on the
Group’s profit after tax and equity.
Group profit or loss/equity
Year Ended
Year Ended
31 December
31 December
2007
2006
£’ Million
£’ Million
Interest rate risk
+ 100 basis points change in interest rates
- 100 basis points change in interest rates
Equity price risk
10 per cent increase in equity prices
10 per cent decrease in equity prices
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28. Capital management and allocation
It is the Group’s policy to maintain a strong capital base in order to:
G protect policyholders’ and creditors’ interests;
G support the development of its business and create shareholder value; and
G meet regulatory requirements at all times.
Within the Group each subsidiary manages its own capital in the context of the Group capital plan. Capital generated
in excess of planned requirements is returned to the Group’s parent, St. James’s Place plc, normally by way of
dividends. The Group capital plan is monitored by the Capital Management and Tax Committee for the St. James’s
Place plc Board.
The Group’s policy is for each company to hold the higher of:
G the company’s internal assessment of the capital required; and
G the capital requirement of the relevant supervisory body plus a specified margin over this to absorb changes.
Generally, because of the nature of the business and the current regulatory rules, the higher requirement is that of the
supervisory body plus the specified margin.
The following entities are under supervisory regulation and have to maintain a minimum level of regulatory capital:
St. James’s Place UK plc
St. James’s Place International plc
St. James’s Place Unit Trust Group Ltd
St. James’s Place Wealth Management plc
St. James’s Place Reinsurance Ltd

Regulatory Body and Jurisdiction
FSA: Long-term insurance business
Irish Financial Regulator: Life insurance business
FSA: UCITS Management Company
FSA: Personal Investment Firm
Irish Financial Regulator: Reinsurance

The FSA regulatory requirement for St. James’s Place UK plc (“SJPUK”), which makes up the majority of the Group
capital requirement, includes the prescribed minimum solvency margin requirement (the Capital Resources
Requirement (CRR)) and an assessment of the risks faced under the business, known as the “Individual Capital
Assessment”. The capital requirement is assessed and monitored by the Actuarial Committee, one of the principal
committees of the Executive Committee of the St. James’s Place plc Board.
There has been no material change in the Group’s management of capital during the period.
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Capital composition
The principal forms of capital are included in the following balances on the consolidated balance sheet:
31 December
2007
£’ Million
Share capital
Share premium
Other reserves
Retained earnings

31 December
2006
£’ Million

71.5
82.2
(15.9)
304.7

69.6
57.4
(8.4)
263.6

442.5

382.2

The Group and its individually regulated operations have complied with all externally and internally imposed capital
requirements throughout the period.
29. Share capital
Number of
ordinary shares

At 1 January 2006

Share capital
£’ Million

447,431,123

67.1

Scrip dividend
Exercise of options

3,553,044
12,874,781

0.5
2.0

At 31 December 2006

463,858,948

69.6

Scrip dividend
Exercise of options

2,422,538
10,204,367

0.4
1.5

At 31 December 2007

476,485,853

71.5

The total authorised number of ordinary shares is 605 million (2006: 605 million), with a par value of 15 pence per
share (2006: 15 pence per share). All issued shares are fully paid.
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30. Share-based payments
During the year ended 31 December 2007 the Group operated a number of different equity settled share-based
payment arrangements, which are aggregated as follows:
G

G

G

G

G

G

SAYE plan – this is a standard HMRC approved scheme that is available to all employees where individuals can
contribute up to £250 per month over three years to purchase shares at a price not less than 80% of the market
price at the date of the invitation to participate.
Executive deferred bonus schemes – under these plans the deferred element of the annual bonus is used to
purchase shares at market value in the Company. The shares are held by the Company until vesting after three
years and, in addition to the performance targets, which apply prior to any entitlement being granted, further
performance conditions may also apply on vesting.
Executive performance share plan – under this plan, which was introduced in 2005, two-thirds of shares are
subject to an earnings growth condition of the Group and one-third of shares are subject to a comparative total
shareholder return condition, both measured over a single three year period. Further information regarding the
vesting conditions of the earnings growth and total shareholder return dependent portions of the award is given
in the Remuneration Report on pages 50 and 51.
Executive share option schemes – these include both approved and unapproved elements and vest after three or
five year periods subject to satisfying personal and/or Group earnings performance.
Sales management share option schemes – these unapproved options vest after three or five years, subject to
satisfying personal sales related performance criteria.
Partner share option schemes – these are offered to the Partners of the St. James’s Place Partnership and vest
over three to six years subject to satisfying personal sales related performance criteria.

Share options outstanding under the various share option schemes at 31 December 2007 amount to 35.0 million
shares (2006: 46.2 million). Of these, 30.0 million are under option to Partners of the St. James’s Place Partnership,
2.9 million are under option to executives and senior management (including 0.03 million under option to Directors
as disclosed in the Remuneration Report on page 58) and 2.1 million are under option through the SAYE scheme.
These are exercisable on a range of future dates.
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The table below summarises the share-based payment awards made in 2006 and 2007:
SAYE

Executive
Deferred
Bonus

Executive
Executive
Sales
Performance Share Option Management
Share Plan
Schemes
Share Option
Schemes

Partner
Share Option
Schemes

Awards in 2006:
Date of grant
Number granted

23 March
451,193

29 March
824,589

17 May
1,726,608

-

-

Various
7,310,150

Awards in 2007:
Date of grant
Number granted

23 March
202,007

8 March
730,270

Various
1,202,141

-

-

Various
142,975

3.5 years and
5.5 years
3 year
saving period

3 years

3.5 years

10 years

6 years

10 years

3 years
service and
achievement
of personal
targets in some
instances

3 years
service and
achievement
of earnings
and TSR
targets

3 to 5 years
service and
achievement
of personal
and/or
earnings targets

3 to 5 years
service and
achievement
of personal
targets

3 to 6 years
service and
achievement
of personal
targets

Contractual life
Vesting conditions
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Financial assumptions underlying the calculation of fair value
The fair value expense has been based on the fair value of the instruments granted, as calculated using appropriate derivative
pricing models. The table below shows the assumptions and models used to calculate the grant date fair value of each
award:

Valuation model
Awards in 2006:
Fair value (pence)
Share price (pence)
Exercise price (pence)
Expected volatility (% pa)(1)
Expected dividends (% pa)
Risk-free interest rate (% pa)
Volatility of
competitors (% pa)
Correlation with
competitors (% pa)
Awards in 2007:
Fair value (pence)
Share price (pence)
Exercise price (pence)
Expected volatility (% pa)(1)
Expected dividends (% pa)
Risk-free interest rate (% pa)
Volatility of
competitors (% pa)
Correlation with
competitors (% pa)

SAYE

Executive
Deferred
Bonus

Executive
Performance
Share Plan

Partner
Share Option
Schemes

Black
Scholes

Black
Scholes

Monte
Carlo

Binomial
Lattice

130.15(2)
329.50
244.00
33
1.0
4.5

140.80/320.00(3)
320.00
0.00
N/A
N/A(4)
N/A

179.28/316.75(5)
307.00 to 363.00
0.00
33
1.0
N/A

139.70 to 181.20
316.00 to 408.00
316.00 to 408.00
40 to 42
0.8 to 1.0
4.3 to 5.0

N/A

N/A

20 to 45

N/A

N/A

N/A

20

N/A

152.24(2)
447.75
370.00
27
0.8
5.4

208.74/469.08(3)
469.08
0.00
N/A
N/A(4)
N/A

263.28/447.75(5)
362.00 to 457.25(6)
0.00
27
0.8
N/A

177.80 to 209.70
401.25 to 465.00
401.25 to 465.00
38 to 40
0.7 to 0.8
4.8 to 5.0

N/A

N/A

18 to 32

N/A

N/A

N/A

30

N/A

Notes:
(1) Expected volatility is based on an analysis of the Company’s historic share price volatility over a period (typically threeor five years) which is commensurate with
the expected term of the options or the awards.
(2) In 2006 and 2007, the vesting period for the SAYE plan was three years. The vesting period may be extended by up to six mont
hs in order to catch up on missed
contributions (up to a maximum of six).
(3) There are two populations of the executive deferred bonus schemes, one of which is subject to performance conditions on vest
ing as well as the initial performance
criteria which apply prior to any entitlements being granted to both populations. There are therefore two fair values in the ta
ble above, with the lower value in each
case being relevant to the portion subject to further performance criteria on vesting.
(4) Dividends payable on the shares during the restricted period are paid out during the restricted period for the executive def
erred bonus schemes and no dividend
yield assumption is therefore required.
(5) The awards made under the executive performance share plan are dependent upon earnings growth in the Company (two-thirds ofthe award) and a total
shareholder return of a comparator group of companies (one-third of the award). This results in having two fair values for eachof the awards made in the table
above, the first being in relation to the comparator total shareholder return and the second relating to the Company’s earningsgrowth.
(6) Awards were made under the executive performance share plan on eight separate occasions during 2006 and 2007.
(7) There were no awards made in 2006 or 2007 for the executive share option schemes or the sales management share option scheme
s.
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Year Ended
31 December
2007
Number of
options

Year Ended
31 December
2007
Weighted
average
exercise price

Year Ended
31 December
2006
Number of
options

Year Ended
31 December
2006
Weighted
average
exercise price

2,183,095
202,007
(67,363)
(172,304)
2,145,435

£1.22
£3.70
£2.21
£1.36

£0.83
£2.44
£1.10
£0.72

£1.41

3,252,470
451,193
(140,646)
(1,379,922)
2,183,095

£1.22

45,624

£0.72

17,588

£0.81

6,553,950
(50,541)
(3,869,231)
2,634,178

£1.70

£1.48

£1.85
£1.66
£1.75

11,812,694
(51,876)
(5,206,868)
6,553,950

Exercisable at end of year

1,325,694

£1.77

1,469,089

£1.64

Sales Management Share Options:
Outstanding at start of year
Granted
Forfeited
Exercised
Expired
Outstanding at end of year

505,792
(142,087)
(117,705)
246,000

£1.56

£1.56

£1.59

892,723
(205,681)
(181,250)
505,792

119,125

£1.56

75,000

£1.34
£1.83
£3.28
£2.14
£1.60

£1.69

SAYE
Outstanding at start of year
Granted
Forfeited
Exercised
Expired
Outstanding at end of year
Exercisable at end of year
Executive Share Options:
Outstanding at start of year
Granted
Forfeited
Exercised
Expired
Outstanding at end of year

Exercisable at end of year

£1.56
£1.50

Partner Share Options:
Outstanding at start of year
Granted
Forfeited
Exercised
Expired
Outstanding at end of year

36,921,350
142,975
(235,850)
(6,874,564)
29,953,911

£2.14
£4.45
£1.81
£1.54
£2.30

40,525,716
7,310,150
(2,318,875)
(8,595,641)
36,921,350

Exercisable at end of year

11,300,761

£1.72

13,473,534

The average share price during the year was 406.22 pence (2006: 341.09 pence).
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The SAYE plan options outstanding at 31 December 2007 had exercise prices of 72 pence, 144 pence, 194 pence, 244
pence and 370 pence and a weighted average remaining contractual life of 0.8 years.
The options outstanding under the executive share option schemes at 31 December 2007 had exercise prices ranging
from 85.5 pence to 257 pence and a weighted average remaining contractual life of 5.2 years.
The options outstanding under the sales management share option schemes at 31 December 2007 had exercise prices
ranging from 80 pence to 242 pence and a weighted average remaining contractual life of 2.3 years.
The options outstanding under the Partner share option schemes at 31 December 2007 had exercise prices ranging
from 75 pence to 465 pence and a weighted average remaining contractual life of 6.3 years.
Early exercise assumptions
The following allowance has been made for the impact of early exercise once options have vested:
(1) SAYE plan – all option holders are assumed to exercise half-way through the six month exercise window.
(2) Executive, sales management and partner share option schemes – it is assumed that 10% of option holders are
forced to exercise their options each year irrespective of the level of the share price. For the remainder it is
assumed that one-half will exercise their options each year if the share price is at least 33% above the exercise price.
Allowance for performance conditions
The executive performance share plan includes a market based performance condition based on the Company’s total
shareholder return relative to an index of comparator companies. The impact of this performance condition has been
modelled using Monte Carlo simulation techniques, which involve running many thousands of simulations of future
share price movements for both the Company and the comparator index. For the purpose of these simulations it is
assumed that the share price of the Company and the comparator index are 30% correlated and that the comparator
index has volatilities ranging between 18% pa and 32% pa.
The performance condition is based on the Company’s performance relative to the comparator index over a three year
period commencing on 1 January each year. The fair value calculations for the awards that were made in 2007
therefore include an allowance for the actual performance of the Company’s share price relative to the index over the
period between 1 January 2007 and the various award dates.
Charge to profit and loss account
The table below sets out the charge to the profit and loss account in respect of the share-based payment awards that
have been made since 7 November 2002:
Year Ended
31 December
2007
£’ Million

Year Ended
31 December
2006
£’ Million

12.5

7.6

Share-based payment expense
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31. Reserves

Share
Premium
£’ Million

At 1 January 2006
Profit for the year
Dividends
Issue of share capital
Scrip dividend
Exercise of options
Consideration paid for own shares
Own shares vesting charge
P & L reserve credit in respect of
proceeds from exercise of
share options of shares held in trust
P & L reserve credit in respect of
share option charges

29.6

At 31 December 2006
Profit for the year
Dividends
Issue of share capital
Scrip dividend
Exercise of options
Consideration paid for own shares
Own shares vesting charge
P & L reserve credit in respect of
proceeds from exercise of
share options of shares held in trust
P & L reserve credit in respect of
share option charges

57.4

At 31 December 2007

82.2

Treasury
Shares
Reserve
£’ Million
(11.0)

Profit and
Loss
Reserve
£’ Million
186.5
88.0
(15.1)

Miscellaneous
Reserves

Total

£’ Million

£’ Million

2.3

10.6
17.2
(5.4)
5.7

(10.7)

(5.7)

10.6
17.2
(5.4)
-

2.3

2.3

7.6

7.6

263.6
78.1
(47.7)

2.3

10.3
14.5
(10.3)
2.8

(18.2)

207.4
88.0
(15.1)

312.6
78.1
(47.7)

(2.8)

10.3
14.5
(10.3)
-

1.0

1.0

12.5

12.5

304.7

Miscellaneous reserves represent other non-distributable reserves.
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32. Pension arrangements
The total cost of employer contributions to defined contribution personal pension plans for SJP’s employees during
the year was £3.0 million (2006: £2.2 million).
The occupational pension scheme was wound up during 2007. There were no contributions during the year to the
defined benefit section (2006: £nil) or any employer contributions to the defined contribution section (2006: £0.4
million) prior to being wound up.
33. Financial commitments
At 31 December 2007 the Group had the following annual commitments under non-cancellable leases in connection
with the rental of office buildings:
31 December
2007
£’ Million

31 December
2006
£’ Million

1.0
2.6
7.3

0.5
3.0
6.3

10.9

9.8

Within one year
Between two and five years
In more than five years
Total financial commitments

34. Related party transactions
The Company and the Group have entered into related party transactions with HBOS plc (“HBOS”), various
subsidiaries of HBOS and the Directors of the Company and the Group. HBOS, which owns 60% of the Company’s
share capital, is the ultimate controlling party of the Group.
Transactions with HBOS and HBOS group companies
The following transactions were carried out, on an arm’s length basis, with HBOS and its subsidiaries during the year:
G

G

G

G

G

Commission of £5.1 million (2006: £4.4 million) was receivable from the sale of banking services for St. James’s
Place Bank (a division of Halifax plc)
Commission of £1.2 million (2006: £1.4 million) was receivable from the sale of Stakeholder pensions offered by
Clerical Medical
Commission of £8.2 million (2006: £10.4 million) was receivable from the sale of Halifax, Bank of Scotland and
Birmingham Midshires mortgages
HBOS provided a guarantee at a cost of £0.3 million (2006: £0.5 million) to the Group’s reassurers in respect of
the Group’s obligations in relation to a financial reassurance arrangement
During the year, deposits were placed with Bank of Scotland on normal commercial terms. At 31 December
2007 these deposits amounted to £54.0 million (2006: £28.2 million)
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G

G

G

G
G

Amounts lent by, or assigned to, the Bank of Scotland to members of the St. James’s Place Partnership, under
guarantee by SJP, totalled £64.1 million (2006: £61.3 million)
Fees of £23,098 (2006: £2.6 million) were payable to Insight Investment Management Limited in respect of
investment management services to a number of SJP life, pension and unit trust funds. The outstanding balance
payable at 31 December 2007 was £5,748 (2006: £nil)
Fees of £4.7 million (2006: £1.7 million) were payable to Invista Real Estate Investment Management Limited
(55% owned by HBOS) in respect of investment management services for the property portfolio of the SJP UK life
and pension funds. The outstanding balance payable at 31 December 2007 was £0.4 million (2006: £0.9 million)
Fees of £50,000 (2006: £40,000) were payable to HBOS in respect of the services of non-executive SJP Board Directors
SJP Board Directors have been included in a directors’ and officers’ insurance policy negotiated on a group
basis by HBOS

Transactions with key management personnel
The compensation paid to key management personnel, being the Board of Directors of SJP, is set out in the
Remuneration Report on page 55. The Remuneration Report also sets out transactions with the Directors under the
Deferred Bonus Scheme, the Performance Share Plan, the Executive Share Option Scheme and the SAYE Share
Option Schemes, together with details of the Directors’ interests in the share capital of the Company.
The charge to the profit and loss account in respect of the share-based payment awards made to the executive
Directors of SJP during 2007 was £2.1 million (2006: £1.8 million).
35. Parent company
The ultimate parent company of SJP is HBOS plc, a company registered in Scotland. HBOS plc is the parent of the
largest group in which the results of the Company are consolidated. Copies of the consolidation accounts of HBOS plc
may be obtained from The Mound, Edinburgh EH1 1YZ.
The immediate parent company is HBOS Insurance and Investment Group Limited, a company registered in England
and Wales.
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members
of St. James’s Place plc

We have audited the parent company financial statements of St. James’s Place plc for the year ended 31 December
2007, which comprise the parent company Balance Sheet and the related notes. These parent company financial
statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein. We have also audited the information in
the Directors’ Remuneration Report that is described as having been audited.
We have reported separately on the group financial statements of St. James’s Place plc for the year ended 31 December
2007.
This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with section 235 of the Companies Act
1985. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we
do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for
our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.
Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors
The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Report and Accounts, the Directors’ Remuneration Report and the
parent company financial statements in accordance with applicable law and UK Accounting Standards (UK Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice) are set out in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities on pages 45 and 46. Our
responsibility is to audit the parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report
to be audited in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK
and Ireland).
We report to you our opinion as to whether the parent company financial statements give a true and fair view and
whether the parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited
have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985. We also report to you whether in our
opinion the information given in the Directors’ Report is consistent with the parent company financial statements.
The information given in the Directors’ Report includes that specific information presented in the Corporate
Governance Report, Chief Executive’s Statement, Financial Commentary and Key Performance Indicators that are
cross referred from the Directors’ Report.
In addition we report to you if, in our opinion, the company has not kept proper accounting records, if we have not
received all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or if information specified by law regarding the
directors’ remuneration and other transactions is not disclosed.
We read the other information contained in the Report and Accounts and consider whether it is consistent with the
audited parent company financial statements. We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any
apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the parent company financial statements. Our responsibilities
do not extend to any other information.
Basis of audit opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Accounting Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued
by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts
and disclosures in the parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be
audited. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments made by the directors in the
preparation of the parent company financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the
company’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members
of St. James’s Place plc
(continued)

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the parent company financial
statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are free from material misstatement,
whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our opinion, we also evaluated the overall adequacy
of the presentation of information in the parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors’
Remuneration Report to be audited.
Opinion
In our opinion:
G the parent company financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with UK Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice, of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 December 2007;
G the parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited have
been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985; and
G the information given in the Directors’ Report is consistent with the parent company financial statements.
KPMG Audit Plc
Chartered Accountants
Registered Auditor
London
25 February 2008
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Balance Sheet of the Parent Company

31 December
2007
£’ Million

31 December
2006
£’ Million

337.2
2.2
339.4

324.7
2.1
0.1
326.9

Liabilities
Amounts owed to Group undertakings
Other creditors
Total liabilities

115.5
2.8
118.3

104.4
2.5
106.9

Net assets

221.1

220.0

71.5
82.2
25.8
0.1
41.5

69.6
57.4
13.3
0.1
79.6

221.1

220.0

Note
Assets
Investment in subsidiaries
Income tax assets
Other receivables
Total assets

2

Shareholders’ equity
Share capital
Share premium
Share option reserves
Other reserves
Retained earnings

4
5
5
5
5

Total shareholders’ equity

The financial statements on pages 119 to 123 were approved by the Board of Directors on 25 February 2008 and signed on its beha
lf by:

D Bellamy

Chief Executive

A Croft

Finance Director

The notes and information on pages 120 to 123 form part of these accounts.
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Notes to the Parent Company Accounts

1. Accounting policies
Basis of Preparation
St James’s Place plc (the “Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated in England and Wales and whose
shares are publicly traded. The Company offers a range of insurance, investment and other wealth management
services through its subsidiaries, which are principally incorporated in the UK and Ireland.
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards and under the
historical cost convention. The Company has elected to continue to prepare the parent financial statements in
accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice. In publishing the parent company financial statements,
the Company has taken advantage of the exemption in Section 230 of the Companies Act 1985 not to present its
individual income statement and related notes that form part of these financial statements.
All accounting policies have been reviewed for appropriateness in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard (FRS)
18 (Accounting Policies). In accordance with FRS 1 (Cash Flow Statements), the Company is exempt from the
requirement to prepare a cash flow statement on the grounds that this is provided in its consolidated financial
statements, which are publicly available.
Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Investment return
Investment return comprises dividends from subsidiaries, which are accounted for when received.
(b) Taxation
Taxation is based on profits and income for the period as determined in accordance with the relevant tax legislation,
together with adjustments to provisions for prior periods.
(c) Investment in subsidiaries
Investment in subsidiaries are carried at cost, plus the cost of share awards, in the Company granted by the Company’s
subsidiaries.
(d) Receivables
Other receivables are stated at amortised cost less impairment losses.
(e) Other creditors and amounts owed to Group undertakings.
Other creditors and amounts owed to Group undertakings are stated at amortised cost.
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Notes to the Parent Company Accounts
(continued)

2. Investment in subsidiaries

2007
£’ Million

2006
£’ Million

At 1 January
Movement in the year

324.7
12.5

317.1
7.6

At 31 December

337.2

324.7

Principal Subsidiary Undertakings at 31 December 2007
Investment Holding Companies
Life Assurance
Unit Trust Management
Financial Services
Management Services

St. James’s Place Investments plc
St. James’s Place Wealth Management Group plc
St. James’s Place UK plc
St. James’s Place International plc (incorporated in Ireland)
St. James’s Place Unit Trust Group Limited
St. James’s Place Wealth Management plc
St. James’s Place Management Services Limited

A full list of subsidiaries is available on request from the registered office and will be submitted with the Company’s
Annual Return.
The Company owns indirectly 100% of the voting ordinary equity share capital of the above-named subsidiaries.
All of these companies are registered in England and Wales and operate principally in the United Kingdom except
where otherwise stated.
Due to ongoing solvency requirements there are restrictions on the amount of distributable reserves within the
life assurance and unit trust operating companies of the Group which restricts their ability to transfer cash dividends
to the Company.
3. Financial risk
As disclosed in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group adopts a prudent approach to the
management of financial risk, with a view to minimising where practicable its exposure to market, credit and liquidity
risks. As a stand alone entity the Company would be subject to significant liquidity risk since its assets primarily consist
of investments in subsidiaries. However, since the Group is managed on a unified basis and is subject to minimal
liquidity risk, the Company may, as required, draw on liquid resources from elsewhere within the Group. The
Company is not subject to market and credit risks.
The Company’s financial assets comprise outstanding amounts due in respect of the exercise of share options – these
amounts are not interest bearing. The Company’s financial liabilities comprise balances owed to other Group
companies - these balances are not interest bearing and are repayable on demand.
The carrying values of financial assets and liabilities approximate their fair value.
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Page 122

Notes to the Parent Company Accounts
(continued)

4. Share capital
Share capital disclosures are made in note 29 on page 107 of the consolidated financial statements.
5. Reserves

Share
Premium
£’ Million

At 1 January 2006
Profit for the year
Dividends
Issue of share capital
Scrip dividend
Exercise of options
Cost of share options
expensed in subsidiary

29.6

At 31 December 2006

57.4

Profit for the year
Dividends
Issue of share capital
Scrip dividend
Exercise of options
Cost of share options
expensed in subsidiary
At 31 December 2007

Profit and
Loss
Reserve
£’ Million
97.6
(2.9)
(15.1)

Share
Option
Reserve
£’ Million

Other
Reserves

Total

£’ Million

£’ Million

5.7

0.1

10.6
17.2

10.6
17.2
7.6
79.6

13.3

7.6
0.1

9.6
(47.7)

150.4
9.6
(47.7)

10.3
14.5

10.3
14.5
12.5

82.2

133.0
(2.9)
(15.1)

41.5

25.8
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Page 123

Notes to the Parent Company Accounts
(continued)

6. Related party transactions
The Company has entered into related party transactions with HBOS plc , various subsidiaries of the Company and
directors of the Company. HBOS, which owns 60% of the Company’s share capital, is the ultimate controlling party of
the Company.
Transactions with HBOS
The following transactions were carried out, on an arm’s length basis, with HBOS:
G

HBOS provided a guarantee at a cost of £0.3 million (2006:£0.5 million) to the Group’s reassurers in respect of the
Group’s obligations in relation to a financial eassurance arrangement. This cost is met by the Company on behalf of
the Group.

Transactions with subsidiary companies
The following transactions were carried out with subsidiary companies:
G

G

A tax expense of £2.2 million (2006 income: £2.0 million) has been r ecognised in relation to Group corporate
tax relief; and
Internal Group dividends paid to the Company during the year amounted to £10 million (2006:£nil).

Transactions with key management personnel
The compensation paid to k ey management per sonnel, being the Board of Dir ectors of SJP, is set out in the
Remuneration Report on page 55. The Remuneration Report also sets out transactions with the Directors under the
Deferred Bonus Scheme, the Performance Share Plan, the Executive Share Option Scheme and the SAYE Share Option
Schemes, together with details of the Directors’ interests in the share capital of the Company.
The change to the pr ofit and loss account in r espect of the shar e-based payment awards made to the ex ecutive
Directors of SJP during 2007 was £2.1 million (2006: £1.8 million).
7. Auditor’s remuneration
The total audit fee in r espect of the Group is set out in note 5 on page 82 of the consolida ted financial st tements.
The audit fee charged to the Company for the year ended 31 December 2007 is £nil (2006:£nil).
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Independent Auditors’ Report to St. James’s Place plc
on the European Embedded Value Basis Supplementary Information

We have audited the EEV basis supplementary information (“the supplementary information”) of St. James’s Place plcon
pages 126 to 136 in respect of the year ended 31 December 2007. The supplementary information has been prepared
in accordance with the European Embedded Value Principles issued in May 2004 by the CFO Forum as supplemented
by the Additional Guidance on European Embedded Value Disclosures issued in October 2005 (together “the EEV
Principles”) using the methodology and assumptions set out on pages 129 to 132. The supplementary information
should be read in conjunction with the group financial statements which are on pages 64 to 115.
This report is made solely to the company in accordance with the terms of our engagement. Our audit work has been
undertaken so that we might state to the company those matters we have been engaged to state in this report and for no
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than
the company for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.
Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor
As described in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities on pages 45 and 46, the directors’ responsibilities include
preparing the supplementary information on the EEV basis in accordance with the EEV Principles. Our
responsibilities, as independent auditor, in relation to the supplementary information are established in the United
Kingdom by the Auditing Practices Board, by our profession’s ethical guidance and terms of our engagement.
Under the terms of engagement we are required to report to the company our opinion as to whether the
supplementary information has been properly prepared in accordance with the EEV Principles using the methodology
and assumptions set out on pages 129 to 132. We also report if we have not received all the information and
explanations we require for this audit.
Basis of audit opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the
Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures in the supplementary information. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments
made by the directors in the preparation of supplementary information, and of whether the accounting policies applied
in the preparation of the supplementary information are appropriate to the group’s circumstances, consistently
applied and adequately disclosed.
We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the supplementary
information is free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our
opinion, we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of the supplementary information.
Opinion
In our opinion, the EEV basis supplementary information for the year ended 31 December 2007 has been properly
prepared in accordance with the EEV Principles using the methodology and assumptions set out on pages 129 to 132.

KPMG Audit Plc
Chartered Accountants
Registered Auditor
London
25 February 2008
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Page 126

European Embedded Value Basis

The following supplementary information shows the result for the Group adopting a European Embedded Value (EEV)
basis for reporting the results of its wholly owned life and unit trust businesses.
Consolidated Income Statement

Year Ended
31 December
2007
£’ Million

Year Ended
31 December
2006
£’ Million

Life business
Unit trust business
Other
Operating profit

189.9
59.0
(4.2)
244.7

139.0
39.9
(2.9)
176.0

Investment return variances
Economic assumption changes
Profit from core business

(14.5)
0.2
230.4

70.8
(9.8)
237.0

Profit from other business
Profit on sale of LAHC
EEV profit on ordinary activities before tax

230.4

7.0
244.0

(44.8)
(15.3)
(2.0)
20.1
(42.0)

(46.5)
(19.4)
6.1
-

188.4

184.2

Taxation
Life business
Unit trust business
Other
LAHC
Tax rate change

EEV profit on ordinary activities after tax

The notes and information on pages 129 to 136 form part of this supplementary information.
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Page 127

European Embedded Value Basis
(continued)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year Ended
31 December
2007
£’ Million

Year Ended
31 December
2006
£’ Million

1,032.7

828.8

Post tax profit for the year

188.4

184.2

Dividends

(47.7)

(15.1)

26.7

30.3

(10.3)

(5.4)

12.5

7.6

1.0

2.3

1,203.3

1,032.7

Opening equity shareholders’ funds on an EEV basis

Issue of share capital
Consideration paid for own shares
P&L reserve credit in respect of share option charges
P & L reserve credit in respect of proceeds from exercise
of share options of shares held in trust
Closing equity shareholders’ funds on an EEV basis

The notes and information on pages 129 to 136 form part of this supplementary information.
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European Embedded Value Basis
(continued)

Consolidated Balance Sheet

31 December
2007
£’ Million

31 December
2006
£’ Million

484.6

393.6

Property & equipment
Deferred tax assets
Investment property
Investments
Reinsurance assets
Insurance and investment contract receivables
Income tax assets
Other receivables
Cash & cash equivalents

605.1
199.7
1,289.4
10.4
125.2
642.5
12,599.9
32.9
18.0
19.5
160.2
1,929.2

524.1
171.5
1,089.2
6.3
83.8
568.2
10,573.8
28.3
11.5
9.7
87.1
1,606.9

Total assets

16,827.2

14,064.8

Liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities
Other provisions
Financial liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Insurance and investment contract payables
Deferred income
Income tax liabilities
Other payables
Net asset value attributable to unit holders

405.4
5.3
14,155.4
251.2
21.8
347.8
50.0
119.4
267.6

374.3
3.1
11,833.0
258.4
18.5
291.9
19.9
100.5
132.5

Total liabilities

15,623.9

13,032.1

Net assets

1,203.3

1,032.7

Shareholders’ equity
Share capital
Share premium
Other reserves

71.5
82.2
1,049.6

69.6
57.4
905.7

Total shareholders’ equity

1,203.3

1,032.7

Pence
252.5

Pence
222.6

Assets
Intangible assets
Deferred acquisition costs
Value of long-term business in-force
- long-term insurance
- unit trusts

Net assets per share

The supplementary information on pages 126 to 136 was approved by the Board of Directors on 25 February 2008 and
signed on its behalf by:
D Bellamy

Chief Executive

A Croft

Finance Director

The notes and information on pages 129 to 136 form part of this supplementary information
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Page 129

Notes to the European Embedded Value Basis

I. Basis of preparation
The supplementary information on pages 126 to 136 shows the Group’s results as measured on a European Embedded
Value (EEV) basis. This includes results for the life, pension and investment business, including unit trust business.
The valuation is undertaken by the Group on a basis determined in accordance with the EEV Principles issued in May
2004 by the Chief Financial Officers Forum, a group of chief financial officers from 19 major European insurers, as
supplemented by the Additional Guidance on EEV Disclosures issued in October 2005 (together “the EEV
Principles”). The treatment of all other transactions and balances is unchanged from the primary financial statements
on an IFRS basis. The objective of the EEV basis is to provide shareholders with more realistic information on the
financial position and performance of the Group than that provided by the IFRS basis.
Under the EEV methodology, profit is recognised as it is earned over the life of the products within the covered
business. The embedded value of the covered business is the sum of the shareholders’ net worth in respect of the
covered business and the present value of the projected profit stream.
II. Methodology
(a) Covered business
The covered business is the life, pension and investment business, including unit trust business, undertaken by the
Group.
(b)Calculation of EEV on existing business
Profit from existing business comprises the expected return on the value of in-force business at the start of the year
plus the impact of any changes in the assumptions regarding future operating experience, plus changes in reserving
basis (other than economic assumption changes), plus profits and losses caused by differences between the actual
experience for the period and the assumptions used to calculate the embedded value at the end of the period.
(c) Allowance for risk
The allowance for risk in the shareholder cash flows is a key feature of the EEV Principles. The EEV Principles set out
three main areas of allowance for risk in the embedded value:
G
G
G

the risk discount rate;
the allowance for the cost of financial options and guarantees; and
the cost of holding both prudential reserves and any additional capital required.

The reported EEV allows for risk via a risk discount rate based on a bottom-up market-consistent approach, plus an
appropriate additional margin for non-market risk. The Group does not offer products that carry any significant
financial guarantees or options.
(d)Non-market risk
Best estimate assumptions have been established based on available information and when used within the market
consistent calculations provide the primary evaluation of the impact of non-market risk. However, some non-market
operational risks are not symmetric, with adverse experience having a higher impact on the EEV than favourable
experience. Allowance has been made for this by increasing the risk discount rate by 0.8%.
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Page 130

Notes to the European Embedded Value Basis
(continued)

(e) The risk discount rate
A market-consistent embedded value for each product class has been calculated.
In principle, each cash flow is valued using the discount rate applied to such a cash flow in the capital markets.
However in practice, where cash flows are either independent or move linearly with market movement, it is possible
to apply a simplified method known as the “certainty equivalent” approach. Under this approach all assets are assumed
to earn the risk free rate and are discounted using that risk free rate. A market-consistent cost of holding the required
capital has also been calculated.
As part of this approach, an appropriate adjustment has been made to reflect the fact that the value of tax relief on
expenses does not move linearly with market movements. Finally, an additional allowance for non-market risk has
been made by increasing the discount rate by 0.8%.
For presentational purposes, a risk discount rate has then been calculated which under the EEV basis gives the same
value determined above. This provides an average risk discount rate for the EEV and is described in relation to the risk
free rate. This average risk discount rate has also been used to calculate the published value of new business.
(f) Cost of required capital
In light of the results of internal analysis, the Directors consider that the minimum regulatory capital provides
adequate capital cover for the risks inherent in the covered business. The required capital for the EEV calculations has
therefore been set to the minimum regulatory capital.
The EEV includes a reduction for the cost of holding the required capital. No allowance has been made for any potential
adjustment that the investors may apply because they do not have direct control over their capital. Any such adjustment
would be subjective, as different investors will have different views of what, if any, adjustment should be made.
(g) New business
The new business contribution arising from reported new business premiums has been calculated using the same
assumptions as used in the EEV at the end of the financial year. The value of contractual incremental premiums to
existing business is treated as new business in the year of the increment, rather than at the outset of the policy. This
approach better reflects the way the Group manages its business.
The value of new business has been established at the end of the reporting period and has been calculated using actual
acquisition costs.
(h)Taxation
The EEV includes the present value of tax relief on life assurance expenses calculated on a market-consistent basis.
This calculation takes into account all expense and income amounts projected for the in-force business (including any
carried forward unutilised relief on expenses).

130 St. James’s Place plc Report & Accounts 2007

211729 SJP R&A 2007 txt:JR0530 Report & Accounts 2007

16/3/08

11:15

Page 131

Notes to the European Embedded Value Basis
(continued)

In determining the market-consistent value an appropriate allowance is made to reflect the fact that the value of tax
relief on expenses does not move linearly with market movements.
When calculating the value of new business, priority is given to relieving the expenses relating to that business.
III. Assumptions
(a) Economic assumptions
The principal economic assumptions used within the cash flows at 31 December 2007 are set out below:
Year Ended
31 December
2007
£’ Million

Year Ended
31 December
2006
£’ Million

Risk free rate
Inflation rate

4.7%
3.1%

4.9%
3.0%

Risk discount rate (net of tax)

7.8%

8.0%

Future investment returns:
- Gilts
- Equities
- Unit linked funds
- Capital growth
- Dividend income
- Total

4.7%
7.7%

4.9%
7.9%

3.9%
3.2%
7.1%

4.5%
2.8%
7.3%

Expense inflation
Indexation of capital gains

3.8%
2.2%

3.6%
2.2%

The risk free rate is set by reference to the yield on 10 year gilts. Other investment returns are set by reference to the risk
free rate.
The inflation rate is derived from the implicit inflation in the valuation of 10 year index-linked gilts. This rate is
increased to reflect higher increases in earnings related expenses. The inflation rate is reduced by 10% to derive the
indexation of capital gains for the proportion of the fund invested in equities.
(b)Experience assumptions
The principal experience assumptions have been set on a best estimate basis. They are reviewed regularly.
The persistency assumptions are derived from the Group’s own experience, or where insufficient data exists, from
external industry experience.
The expense assumptions include allowance for both the costs charged by the relevant third party administrators for
acquisition and maintenance, and the corporate costs incurred in respect of covered business. The corporate costs have
been apportioned so that the total maintenance costs represent the anticipated ongoing expenses, including systems
development costs, which are expected to arise in future years in meeting the policy servicing requirements of the
in-force business.

131 St. James’s Place plc Report & Accounts 2007

211729 SJP R&A 2007 txt:JR0530 Report & Accounts 2007

16/3/08

11:15

Page 132

Notes to the European Embedded Value Basis
(continued)

Mortality and morbidity assumptions have been set by reference to the Group’s own experience, published industry
data and the rates set by the Group’s reassurers.
(c) Taxation
Future taxation has been determined assuming a continuation of the current tax legislation. The EEV result has been
calculated on an after-tax basis and has been grossed up to a pre-tax level for presentation in the profit and loss
account. The corporation tax rate used for this grossing up is 26% for UK life and pensions business, 12.5% for Irish
life and pensions business and 28% for unit trust business. The tax rates reflect the change in the rate of corporation tax
from 30% to 28% with effect from 1 April 2008, as included within the 2007 Finance Act.
IV. Components of EEV profit
(a) Life business

New business contribution
Profit from existing business
Unwind of discount rate
Experience variances
Operating assumption changes
Investment income

Note

Year Ended
31 December
2007
£’ Million

Year Ended
31 December
2006
£’ Million

1

114.5

87.6

59.1
12.2
(2.8)
6.9

50.3
(2.6)
(2.4)
6.1

Operating profit before tax
Investment return variances
Economic assumption changes

189.9
(9.5)
(0.3)

139.0
46.8
(10.6)

Profit before tax
Attributed tax
Tax rate change

180.1
(44.8)
15.8

175.2
(46.5)
-

Profit after tax

151.1

128.7

Note 1: New business contribution after tax is £86.3 million (2006: £63.9 million)
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Notes to the European Embedded Value Basis
(continued)

(b)Unit trust business
Note
New business contribution
Profit from existing business
Unwind of discount rate
Experience variances
Operating assumption changes

Year Ended
31 December
2007
£’ Million

Year Ended
31 December
2006
£’ Million

36.4

27.6

18.6
4.0
-

15.2
0.2
(3.1)

59.0
(5.0)
0.5

39.9
24.0
0.8

54.5
(15.3)
4.3

64.7
(19.4)
-

43.5

45.3

Year Ended
31 December
2007
£’ Million

Year Ended
31 December
2006
£’ Million

150.9

115.2

1

Operating profit before tax
Investment return variances
Economic assumption changes
Profit before tax
Attributed tax
Tax rate change
Profit after tax
Note 1: New business contribution after tax is £26.2 million (2006: £19.3 million)

(c) Combined life and unit trust business
Note
New business contribution
Profit from existing business:
Unwind of discount rate
Experience variances
Operating assumption changes
Investment income

1

77.7
16.2
(2.8)
6.9

65.5
(2.4)
(5.5)
6.1

Operating profit before tax
Investment return variances
Economic assumption changes

248.9
(14.5)
0.2

178.9
70.8
(9.8)

Profit before tax
Attributed tax
Tax rate change

234.6
(60.1)
20.1

239.9
(65.9)
-

Profit after tax

194.6

174.0

Note 1: New business contribution after tax is £112.5 million (2006: £83.2 million).
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Notes to the European Embedded Value Basis
(continued)

(d)Detailed analysis
In order to better explain the movement in capital flows, the components of the EEV profit for the year ended
31 December 2007 are shown separately between the movement in IFRS net assets and the present value of the
in-force business (PVIF) in the table below. All figures are shown net of tax.
Movement
in IFRS
Net Assets
£’ Million
New business contribution
Profit from existing business
Unwind of discount rate
Experience variances
Operating assumption changes
Investment return
Investment return variances
Economic assumption changes
Miscellaneous

Movement
in PVIF

Movement
in EEV

£’ Million

£’ Million

(54.6)
95.4
28.4
5.4
5.5
(1.1)
(0.6)
(0.3)

Profit after tax

78.1

167.1
(95.4)
57.8 57.8
(16.8)
12.6 18.0
(9.9)
0.8
(5.9)

112.5
-

110.3

188.4

11.6
5.5
(11.0)
0.2
(6.2)

The main component of the experience variances derives from the change in approach deferred tax, which reduces the
VIF and increases the net assets.
The comparative figures for 2006, are as follows:
Movement
in IFRS
Net Assets
£’ Million
New business contribution
Profit from existing business
Unwind of discount rate
Experience variances
Operating assumption changes
Investment return
Investment return variances
Economic assumption changes
Profit on sale of LAHC
Miscellaneous
Profit after tax

Movement
in PVIF

Movement
in EEV

£’ Million

£’ Million

(52.9)
83.2
13.2
20.4
4.6
3.9
(1.1)
7.0
9.7

136.1
(83.2)
47.5
(14.5)
(24.4)
0.1
47.2
(6.1)
(6.5)

88.0

96.2
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Notes to the European Embedded Value Basis
(continued)

V. EEV sensitivities
The table below shows the estimated impact on the combined life and unit trust reported value of new business and
EEV to changes in various EEV calculated assumptions. In each case, only the indicated item is varied relative to the
restated values.
Change in new business
contribution

Pre-tax
£’ Million

Post-tax
£’ Million

Change in
European
Embedded
Value
Post-tax
£’ Million

150.9

112.5

1,203.3

20.6

15.3

73.5

100bp reduction in risk free rates, with corresponding
change in fixed interest asset values

(1.6)

(1.1)

(5.0)

10% reduction in withdrawal rates

12.3

9.2

50.9

3.4

2.5

13.3

-

-

Note

Value at 31 December 2007
100bp reduction in risk discount rate

1

10% reduction in expenses
10% reduction in market value of equity assets

(99.7)

5% reduction in mortality and morbidity

2

0.0

0.0

0.6

100bp increase in equity expected returns

3

-

-

-

Note 1: Although not directly relevant under a market-consistent valuation where the risk discount rate is a derived disclosureonly, this sensitivity shows the level of
adjustment which would be required to reflect differing investor views of risk.
Note 2: Assumes the benefit of lower experience is passed on to clients and reassurers at the earliest opportunity.
Note 3: As a market-consistent approach is used, equity expected returns only affect the derived discount rates and not the emb
edded value or contribution to profit
from new business.
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Notes to the European Embedded Value Basis
(continued)

VI. Reconciliation of IFRS and EEV profit before tax and net assets

Year Ended
31 December
2007
£’ Million

Year Ended
31 December
2006
£’ Million

IFRS profit before tax
Movement in life value of in-force
Movement in unit trust value of in-force

103.2
88.6
38.6

179.9
17.4
46.7

Total EEV profit before tax

230.4

244.0

31 December
2007
£’ Million

31 December
2006
£’ Million

IFRS net assets
Less: acquired value of in-force
Add: deferred tax on acquired value of in-force
Add: life value of in-force
Add: unit trust value of in-force
EEV net assets

442.5
(61.0)
17.0
605.1
199.7

382.2
(64.3)
19.2
524.1
171.5

1,203.3

1,032.7

31 December
2007
£’ Million

31 December
2006
£’ Million

Life company free assets
Required life company solvency capital
Other subsidiaries, consolidation and IFRS adjustments

100.5
39.5
302.5

105.4
33.0
243.8

IFRS net assets

442.5

382.2

Year Ended
31 December
2007
£’ Million

Year Ended
31 December
2006
£’ Million

VII. Reconciliation of life company free assets to consolidated
group equity and analysis of movement in free assets

Life company free assets at 1 January
Investment in new business
Profit from existing business
Investment return
Movement in required solvency capital

105.4
(55.6)
51.8
5.4
(6.5)

65.0
(54.2)
91.0
4.6
(1.0)

Life company free assets at 31 December

100.5

105.4
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Shareholder Information
Analysis of number of shareholders
Analysis by
number of shares
1 – 999
1,000– 9,999
10,000 – 99,999
100,000 and above

Holders

%

Shares held

%

2,692
2,904
622
201

41.9
45.3
9.7
3.1

1,097,140
8,648,326
17,143,262
449,597,125

0.2
1.8
3.6
94.4

6,419

100.0

476,485,853

100.0

Financial calendar
Ex-dividend date for final dividend
Calculation period for scrip final dividend
Record date for final dividend
Latest date for receipt of scrip dividend mandates
Announcement of first quarter new business
Annual General Meeting
Payment date for final dividend
Announcement of Interim Results and second quarter new business
Announcement of third quarter new business

5 March 2008
6 – 12 March 2008
7 March 2008
23 April 2008
29 April 2008
30 April 2008
14 May 2008
29 July 2008
4 November 2008

Scrip dividend
If you would prefer to receive, subject to shareholder approval, new shares instead of cash dividends, please complete
a scrip dividend mandate, which is available from the Registrars, Computershare Investor Services plc. Their contact
details are on page 139.
Share dealing
A telephone share dealing service has been established with the Registrars, Computershare Investor Services plc,
which provides shareholders with a simple way of buying or selling St. James’s Place plc shares on the London Stock
Exchange. If you are interested in this service telephone 0870 703 0084.
Electronic communications
If you would like to have access to shareholder communications such as the Annual Report and the Notice of General
Meeting through the internet rather than receive them by post, please register at www.etreeuk.com.
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How to Contact Us and Advisers
HOW TO CONTACT US
Registered Office
St. James’s Place House
Dollar Street
Cirencester
GL7 2AQ

ADVISERS
Bankers
Bank of Scotland
150 Fountainbridge
Edinburgh
EH3 9PE

Tel: 01285 640302
Fax: 01285 640436
www.sjp.co.uk

Brokers
JPMorgan Cazenove & Co Limited
20 Moorgate
London EC2R 6DA

Chairman Mike Wilson
email: mike.wilson@sjp.co.uk

Dresdner Kleinwort
30 Gresham Street
London EC2P 2XY

Chief Executive David Bellamy
email: david.bellamy@sjp.co.uk
Finance Director Andrew Croft
email: andrew.croft@sjp.co.uk
Company Secretary Hugh Gladman
email: hugh.gladman@sjp.co.uk
Customer Service Stephen Williams
Tel: 01285 878034
Fax: 01285 656129
email: stephen.williams@sjp.co.uk
Analyst Enquiries Andrew Croft
Tel: 01285 878079
Fax: 01285 657208
email: andrew.croft@sjp.co.uk

Auditors
KPMG Audit Plc
1 Canada Square
London E14 5AG
Registrars & Transfer Office
Computershare Investor Services plc
The Pavilions
Bridgwater Road
Bristol BS99 6ZY
email: web.queries@computershare.co.uk
Tel: 0870 702 0197
www.computershare.com

Media Enquiries
Brunswick Group LLP
Tel: 020 7404 5959
Fax: 020 7831 2823
email: sjp@brunswickgroup.com
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St. James’s Place Partnership Locations
Belfast
St. James’s Place House
14 Cromac Place
Belfast
BT7 2JB

Glasgow
Minerva House
131 - 133 Minerva Street
Glasgow
G3 8LE

Gerry Quinn
Tel: 028 9072 6500

Hugh Morton
Tel: 0141 304 1700

Bristol
Beech House
Brotherswood Court
Great Park Road
Bradley Stoke
Bristol
BS32 4QW

Hamilton Place
11 Hamilton Place
Mayfair
London
W1J 7DA

George Hills
Tel: 01454 618700
City
St. James’s Place House
3 Moorgate Place
London
EC2R 6EA
Roger McKibbin
Tel: 020 7638 2400
Edinburgh
Melville House
18 - 22 Melville Street
Edinburgh
EH3 7NS
Hugh Morton
Tel: 0131 459 9200
Elstree
St. James’s Place House
5 Oaks Court
Warwick Road
Borehamwood
Herts
WD6 1GS

Simon Monks
Tel: 020 7495 1771
Kingsway
3rd Floor
York House
23 Kingsway
London
WC2B 6UJ
Damian Bradbury
Tel: 020 7333 1900
Leeds
Chancellor Court
The Calls
Leeds
LS2 7EH
Graham Wigley
Tel: 0113 244 4054
Liverpool
Martins Building
Water Street
Liverpool
L2 3SX

Manchester
7th Floor
Sunlight House
Little Quay Street
Manchester
M3 3LF
Matt Quinn
Tel: 0161 834 9480
Newbury
Montague Court
London Road
Newbury
Berks
RG14 1JL
Peter Glew
Tel: 01635 582424
Newcastle
One Trinity Gardens
Broad Chare
Newcastle upon Tyne
NE1 2HF
Graham Wigley
Tel: 0191 260 5373
Nottingham
St. James’s Place House
Castle Quay
Castle Boulevard
Nottingham
NG7 1FW
Jeremy Clay
Tel: 0115 924 2899

Matt Quinn
Tel: 0151 224 8700

Simon Monks
Tel: 020 8207 4000
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Solent
St. James’s Place House
1480 Parkway
Solent Business Park
Whitley
Fareham
Hants
PO15 7AF
Peter Glew
Tel: 01489 881400
Solihull
St. James’s Place House
Central Boulevard
Blythe Valley Business
Park
Shirley
Solihull
B90 8AR
Peter Edwards
Tel: 0121 733 6733
Westerham
1st Floor
The Crown
London Road
Westerham
Kent
TN16 1DJ
Bob Harvey
Tel: 01959 561606
Witham
Roslyn House
16 Newland Street
Witham
Essex
CM8 2AQ
Simon Coll
Tel: 01376 501947

SJP Stock Item 732 2007
Perivan Financial Print 211729

